
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Amy Dredge 
 (Tel: 01443 864281   Email: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: Dydd Mercher, 16 Medi 2020 Dydd Mercher, 16 Medi 2020 

 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg will be held via Microsoft Teams on Dydd Mawrth, 22ain 
Medi, 2020 at 5.30 pm to consider the matters contained in the following agenda.  Councillors and the 
public wishing to speak on any item can do so by making a request to the Chair.  You are also welcome to 
use Welsh at the meeting, both these requests require a minimum notice period of 3 working days.,  
 

This meeting will be recorded and made available to view via the Council’s website, except for 
discussions involving confidential or exempt items.  Therefore the images/audio of those individuals 

speaking will be publicly available to all via the recording on the Council website at 
www.caerphilly.gov.uk 

 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Pages 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/


I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a gynhaliwyd ar 24 Chwefror 2020. 

1 - 8 
 

4  Ystyried unrhyw fater a gyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor hwn yn unol â'r drefn galw i mewn. 
 

 
5  Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg. 

 
9 - 20 

 
6  I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau* Cabinet canlynol:-   

 
1. Strategaeth Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol (EOTAS). 

 
2. Dal i Ddysgu. 

 
 *If Os oes aelod o’r Pwyllgor Craffu yn dymuno i unrhyw un o'r adroddiadau Cabinet uchod i gael eu 
dwyn ymlaen ar gyfer adolygiad yn y cyfarfod, cysylltwch â Amy Dredge, 01443 863100, erbyn 10.00 
a.m. ar ddydd Llun 21ain, Medi 2020. 
 
 
I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau Craffu canlynol:- 
 
 

1. Strategaeth Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol (EOTAS). 
 

2. Dal i Ddysgu. 
 
7  Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif    Ymgynghoriad statudol - Ehangu Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae'r 

Drindod. Ymgynghoriad statudol - Ehangu ac ail-leoli Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon ar hen 
safle Ysgol Uwchradd Cwmcarn 

21 - 188 
 

8  Cyflwyniad - Dychwelyd yn llawn i ysgolion, Medi 2020. 
189 - 200 

 
 
Circulation: 
 
Councillors Mrs E.M. Aldworth, C. Andrews (Is Gadeirydd), P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, C.J. Cuss, W. David, 
A. Farina-Childs, D.T. Hardacre, D. Havard, M.P. James, B. Miles, Mrs G.D. Oliver, Mrs T. Parry 
(Cadeirydd), J.E. Roberts a J. Simmonds 
 
Co-opted Members: 
 
Cardiff ROC Archdiocesan Commission for Education Representative (with voting rights on 
educational matters) Mr M. Western 
 
Parent Governor Representatives (with voting rights on educational matters)  
 
Outside Body Representatives (without voting rights) 
Mrs J. Havard (NEU) a Mrs P. Ireland (NEU) 
 
Caerphilly Governors Association (without voting rights) 
Mr D Davies 



 
And Appropriate Officers 
 
 
HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION 
 

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting, 
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed.  Minutes of Meetings including details 
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. 
 

You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and 
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed. 
 
For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy 

Notice on our website or contact Legal Services by email griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD O BELL A GYNHALIWYD DRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS 
DDYDD MAWRTH, 22 MEDI 2020 AM 5.30PM 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd T. Parry - Cadeirydd 

Y Cynghorydd C. Andrews - Is-gadeirydd 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

E. A. Aldworth, C. Cuss, W. David, A. Farina-Childs, D.T. Hardacre, D. Havard, M.P. James, 
B. Miles, Mrs G.D. Oliver, J. Roberts a J. Simmonds.   

 

Y Cynghorydd R. Whiting (Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Chyflawniad). 
 

Ynghyd â: 
 
 Swyddogion: R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau 

Corfforaethol), K. Cole (Prif Swyddog Addysg), S. Richards (Pennaeth Cynllunio a 
Strategaeth Addysg), R. Tranter (Pennaeth y Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Monitro), 
A. West (Rheolwr Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif)., J. Lougher (Rheolwr Datblygu Chwaraeon a 
Hamdden), M. Jacques (Swyddog Craffu) ac A. Dredge (Swyddog Gwasanaethau'r Pwyllgor). 

  
Hefyd yn Bresennol: 

 
 Aelodau Cyfetholedig: Mr D. Davies (Cymdeithas Llywodraethwyr Caerffili), Mrs P.J. Ireland 

(NEU) a Mr M. Western (Cynrychiolydd Comisiwn Archesgobaeth Eglwys Uniongred Rwsiaidd 
Caerdydd dros Addysg). 

 
 I. Elliott (Pennaeth Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod). 

A. Tucknutt (Pennaeth Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon). 
 
 
1. CROESO 
 

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd Aelodau a Swyddogion presennol a newydd i'r cyfarfod a 
chyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet newydd dros Addysg a Chyflawniad, y Cynghorydd R. Whiting 
i'w gyfarfod cyntaf o'r Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg. 

 
 
2. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 

Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Gynghorwyr P.J. Bevan ac A. Collis. 
 

 
3. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 

Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiant ar ddechrau nac yn ystod y cyfarfod. 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



 

4. COFNODION – 24 CHWEFROR 2020 
 

CYTUNWYD y dylid cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a 
gynhaliwyd ddydd Mawrth 24 Chwefror 2020 (cofnodion rhifau 1-11) fel cofnod cywir 
a'u llofnodi gan y Cadeirydd. 
 
 

5. YSTYRIED UNRHYW FATER A GYFEIRIR AT Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU YN UNOL Â'R 
WEITHDREFN GALW I MEWN 

 
 Ni chyfeiriwyd unrhyw faterion at y Pwyllgor Craffu yn unol â'r weithdrefn galw i mewn. 
 
 
6. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR ADDYSG 
 

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Craffu yr adroddiad a amlinellodd Flaenraglen Waith ddrafft y 
Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg rhwng mis Medi a mis Tachwedd 2020.  Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau 
ystyried y rhaglen waith a gwneud unrhyw ddiwygiadau neu gynnig unrhyw eitemau 
ychwanegol i'w cynnwys ar gyfer cyfarfodydd yn y dyfodol. 
 
Trafododd yr Aelodau'r adroddiad a holwyd a ddylid ychwanegu'r adroddiadau a drefnwyd yn 
wreiddiol ar gyfer Cyfarfodydd Craffu yn gynharach yn y flwyddyn nas cynhaliwyd oherwydd y 
pandemig COVID-19 at y Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer cyfarfodydd yn y dyfodol.  Awgrymwyd y 
gellid dosbarthu rhai adroddiadau sydd wedi'u hysgrifennu i'r Aelodau drwy eitemau 
gwybodaeth ac os codwyd unrhyw bryderon bryd hynny gellid eu cynnwys ar agenda'r dyfodol 
i'w hystyried.  Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau gysylltu â'r Swyddog Craffu yn dilyn y cyfarfod i 
awgrymu pa adroddiadau y dylid eu blaenoriaethu a'u dosbarthu. 
 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cytunodd yr Aelodau'n unfrydol, yn amodol ar y canlynol, i gyhoeddi'r 
Flaenraglen Waith sydd wedi'i hatodi i'r adroddiad ar wefan y Cyngor: 
 

CYTUNWYD y dylid symud y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a drefnwyd ar gyfer 3 Tachwedd 
2020 i ddydd Iau 26 Tachwedd 2020.  Bydd hyn yn rhoi digon o amser i Swyddogion 
baratoi adroddiad mewn perthynas â chanlyniad Cam 1 Rhaglen Band B Ysgolion a 
Cholegau'r 21ain Ganrif - Ymgynghoriad mewn perthynas ag Ysgol a Chanolfan 
Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod ac Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon, wrth i'r cyfnod 
ymgynghori ddod i ben ar 26 Hydref 2020. 

  
7. ADRODDIADAU CABINET 
 
 Nid oedd yr un o adroddiadau'r Cabinet a restrwyd ar yr agenda wedi'u galw ymlaen i'w trafod 

yn y cyfarfod. 
 
 

ADRODDIADAU SWYDDOGION  
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiadau canlynol. 
 
 
8. RHAGLEN BAND B YSGOLION A CHOLEGAU'R 21AIN GANRIF - YMGYNGHORIAD 

MEWN PERTHYNAS AG YSGOL A CHANOLFAN ADNODDAU CAE’R DRINDOD AC 
YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM GWYDDON  

 
Pwrpas yr adroddiad oedd ymgynghori'n swyddogol a chael sylwadau Aelodau ynghylch 
cynigion Cam 1 Band B ar gyfer ehangu'r ddarpariaeth yn Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r 
Drindod ac adleoli ac ehangu Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon i hen safle Ysgol Uwchradd 
Cwmcarn.  Nodwyd bod y cyfnod ymgynghori ar gyfer y ddau gynnig wedi dechrau ar 14 Medi 

Page 2



 

2020 ac y bydd yn dod i ben ar 26 Hydref 2020. Cyflwynwyd y ddau gynllun ar wahân i'r 
Pwyllgor Craffu.   
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau bod rhaglen Ysgolion a Cholegau ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif yn brif 
raglen strategol hirdymor o fuddsoddiad cyfalaf.  Mae'n cael ei hariannu ar y cyd gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru ac Awdurdodau Lleol a'i nod yw creu cenhedlaeth o ysgolion yr 21ain 
ganrif yng Nghymru.  Amlinellwyd nodau allweddol rhaglen fuddsoddi Band B Ysgolion a 
Cholegau'r 21ain Ganrif a amlinellwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru fel a ganlyn: 
 

 Lleihau nifer yr ysgolion mewn cyflwr gwael; 

 Sicrhau bod gan y Cyngor ysgolion o’r maint cywir ac yn y lleoliad cywir, gan ddarparu 
digon o leoedd i ddarparu addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg a Saesneg. 

 Sicrhau defnydd effeithiol ac effeithlon o'r ystâd addysgol i'w defnyddio gan Ysgolion a'r 
Gymuned ehangach. 

 
Amlinellwyd y cynnig mewn perthynas ag Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon gan Swyddog. Y 
cynnig yr ymgynghorir arno ar hyn o bryd yw adleoli'r ysgol i ysgol darpariaeth cyfrwng 
Cymraeg bwrpasol newydd a fyddai’n cynnwys cyfleuster cynradd gyda gofal plant, canolfan 
adnoddau arbennig, meithrinfa a darpariaeth i rai o dan 3 oed.  Cynigir lleoli'r ysgol ar hen 
safle Ysgol Uwchradd Cwmcarn er mwyn gallu cyflwyno'r cwricwlwm yn gynhwysol mewn 
amgylchedd ysgogol ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif. Bydd y cyfleuster newydd yn cefnogi defnydd y 
gymuned ac yn hyrwyddo'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg.   

 
Amlinellodd y Swyddog y rhesymeg dros y cynnig ar gyfer Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon, 
gan gynnwys cyflwr yr ysgol bresennol, y galw a ragwelir, yr effaith ar ysgolion eraill, arolygiad 
Estyn, dalgylch a gwireddu gofynion amcanion Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg 
Caerffili.  Mae manylion llawn ar gael yn y Dogfennau Ymgynghori a gynhyrchwyd fel rhan o'r 
broses ymgynghori ac sydd ar gael yn electronig ac ar ffurf copi caled ar gais. 

 
Amlinellwyd y cynnig mewn perthynas ag Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod gan 
Swyddog.  Y cynnig yw ehangu'r ysgol bresennol drwy godi estyniad newydd a lle chwarae 
awyr agored i ddarparu cyfleusterau ychwanegol ar gyfer y galw cynyddol am leoedd, 
ardaloedd ymyrraeth arbenigol a mannau chwarae awyr agored.  Bydd y cyfleuster hefyd yn 
darparu adnoddau ychwanegol fydd ar gael i'r gymuned eu defnyddio.  Mae sylwadau’r plant 
yn yr ysgol wedi'u cynnwys yn y cynnig. 

 
Amlinellodd y Swyddog y rhesymeg dros y cynnig ar gyfer Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r 
Drindod.  Yr ysgol yw'r unig ysgol yn y Fwrdeistref sy'n darparu ar gyfer disgyblion rhwng 3 a 
19 oed sydd ag ystod eang o anghenion a gofynion addysgol arbennig.  Bydd y cyfleuster 
newydd yn cynnwys mannau hyblyg gyda nodweddion unigryw ac arloesol i helpu disgyblion i 
wella eu sgiliau i gynorthwyo'r Awdurdod ymhellach i fodloni gofynion y Ddeddf Anghenion 
Dysgu Ychwanegol.  Mae manylion llawn ar gael yn y Dogfennau Ymgynghori a gynhyrchwyd 
fel rhan o'r broses ymgynghori ac sydd ar gael yn electronig ac ar ffurf copi caled ar gais. 

 
Fel rhan o ofynion Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 2018 Llywodraeth Cymru ac Adran 42/44 o 
Ddeddf Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013, eglurwyd bod yn rhaid cyhoeddi 
cynigion pan fydd y Cyngor yn gwneud 'newid sy’n cael ei reoleiddio' i ysgol a gynhelir neu 
ysgol Arbennig yn y drefn honno.  Rhaid ymgynghori ag Aelodau a Rhanddeiliaid ehangach 
fel y nodir ac a amlinellir yn y Cod.  Ceisir barn disgyblion drwy gefnogaeth yr ysgol fel grŵp 
ymgynghorai allweddol a chaiff eu sylwadau eu cynnwys yn yr Adroddiad Ymgynghori. 
Unwaith y daw'r cyfnod ymgynghori i ben ar 26 Hydref 2020, bydd adroddiad ymgynghori ar 
gyfer pob cynnig, sy'n crynhoi barn ymgyngoreion, yn cael ei roi gerbron y Pwyllgor Craffu cyn 
cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet i'w ystyried.  Yna, bydd y Cabinet yn penderfynu a ddylid bwrw 
ymlaen â'r cynnig, diwygio'r cynnig neu beidio â bwrw ymlaen â'r cynnig.  Os bydd y Cabinet 
yn penderfynu bwrw ymlaen, cyhoeddir Hysbysiadau Statudol unigol gan ddarparu cyfnod 
rhybudd o 28 diwrnod ar gyfer gwrthwynebiadau.  Nodwyd mai'r broses ymgynghori bresennol 
oedd rhoi barn ar y cynigion, nid ydynt yn wrthwynebiadau ar hyn o bryd. Dywedwyd wrth yr 

Page 3



 

Aelodau fod Deddf Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013 yn darparu bod unrhyw 
un sy'n dymuno gwrthwynebu cynnig trefniadaeth ysgolion yn cael cyfle i wneud hynny. I'w 
ystyried yn wrthwynebiadau statudol, rhaid gwneud gwrthwynebiadau yn ysgrifenedig a'u 
hanfon at y Cyngor o fewn y cyfnod rhybudd.  Dim ond ar ôl cyhoeddi hysbysiad statudol y 
gellir cofrestru ymatebion ffurfiol.  

 
Croesawodd yr Aelodau Ms A. Tucknutt (Pennaeth Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon) a Mr I. 
Elliott (Pennaeth Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod) i'r cyfarfod.  Rhoddodd y ddau 
ohonynt amlinelliad byr o’r cynigion mewn perthynas â'u Hysgolion a'r effaith gadarnhaol y 
byddai hyn yn ei chael ar les disgyblion. Tynnodd y ddau Bennaeth sylw at arolygiad rhagorol 
Estyn yr oedd y ddwy ysgol wedi'i dderbyn ar draws pob un o'r 5 maes arolygu a sut mae'r 
disgyblion wedi bod yn rhan o'r gwaith o ddatblygu'r cynigion.  Cadarnhaodd Mr I. Elliott hefyd 
sut yr oedd yr 80 lle ychwanegol wedi'u nodi.  Gwyliodd y Pwyllgor fideo Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm 
Gwyddon a gynhyrchwyd fel rhan o'r broses ymgynghori.  Oherwydd problemau technegol, 
nid oedd modd dangos fideo Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod a chytunwyd y 
byddai'n cael ei ddosbarthu i bob aelod ar ôl y cyfarfod.  Roedd y fideos yn dangos staff a 
disgyblion brwdfrydig yn cyflwyno eu hysgolion ac yn tynnu sylw at y manteision y gallai 
cynigion Cam 1 Band B eu cynnig, yn ogystal â datganiadau gan bartneriaid allweddol a 
fyddai hefyd yn elwa o'r cynigion.   
 
Trafododd yr Aelodau'r adroddiad a'r broses ymgynghori a holwyd a oedd y pandemig 
COVID-19 wedi effeithio ar y cynlluniau mewn perthynas â chynllunio ar gyfer darpariaeth 
ysgolion yn y dyfodol.  Yn ogystal â hyn, p’un ai a oedd y broses ymgynghori wedi'i haddasu o 
ran ymgysylltu'n llawn â'r holl randdeiliaid, o ystyried y cyfyngiadau presennol.  Holodd Aelod 
arall pam na ellid cynnal o leiaf 1 neu 2 gyfarfod wyneb yn wyneb gyda'r gymuned ac Aelodau 
wardiau lleol i roi cyfle i ymgysylltu lle gall pobl ofyn cwestiynau yn hytrach na'u rhoi yn 
ysgrifenedig.  Eglurodd y Swyddog nad oes unrhyw gynlluniau i newid dyluniad yr adeiladau a 
nodir yn y cynigion o ganlyniad i COVID-19.  Mewn perthynas â'r broses ymgynghori, roedd 
Swyddogion wedi bwriadu dechrau'r broses ymgynghori ym mis Mai 2020 felly bu oedi gyda'r 
broses hon.  Er bod cyfarfodydd wyneb yn wyneb â rhanddeiliaid, gan gynnwys rhieni, 
llywodraethwyr, aelodau o staff a'r gymuned wedi'u hystyried, nid yw'n ofynnol ymgynghori fel 
hyn yn unol â gofynion y Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion.  Yng ngoleuni canllawiau COVID-19 a 
ddatblygwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar gadw pellter cymdeithasol, cynhaliwyd ymgynghoriad 
drwy broses ysgrifenedig.  Yn ogystal â hyn, yr wythnos hon trefnodd Tîm Ysgolion yr 21ain 
Ganrif sesiwn 'Holi ac Ateb' i'r holl randdeiliaid ei defnyddio a bydd yr holl gwestiynau ac 
atebion yn cael eu cyhoeddi ar Wefan Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif.  Mae'r holl randdeiliaid eisoes 
wedi'u cyfeirio at y wefan hon er mwyn gweld yr holl wybodaeth sydd ar gael mewn perthynas 
â'r ymgynghoriad.  Cadarnhawyd hefyd y gellir cael gafael ar gopïau o'r ddogfen ymgynghori 
yn Gymraeg a Saesneg ar-lein a bod copïau caled ar gael ar gais. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurhad ynghylch sefyllfa darpariaeth loeren gyda dosbarthiadau mewn 
ysgolion prif ffrwd ac ai’r bwriad yn yr hirdymor oedd dod â nhw'n ôl i Ysgol a Chanolfan 
Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod ar ôl i’r estyniad arfaethedig gael ei godi.  Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth 
fod Caerffili mewn sefyllfa unigryw gan fod yr ysgol arbennig ar un pen i'r sbectrwm a'r ystafell 
ddosbarth lloeren yn yr ysgol brif ffrwd yn y pen arall.  Mae rhieni'n hoffi'r opsiwn hwn ac mae 
hefyd yn cynyddu'r capasiti o fewn yr ysgol. Ni fyddent yn cael eu dod yn ôl i Ysgol a 
Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod ei hun gan y byddai hyn yn cael ei ystyried yn anfanteisiol 
i’r disgyblion.  Nodir y manylion llawn yn y ddogfen Ymgynghori.   
 
Mynegodd aelod gefnogaeth i ehangu Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod ond 
cododd bryderon hefyd ynghylch rhai o'r trefniadau a gynigiwyd ar gyfer Clwb Rygbi Penallta 
mewn perthynas ag ehangu Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod a ph’un ai a 
ymgynghorwyd yn anffurfiol â Chlwb Rygbi Penallta cyn cyhoeddi'r ddogfen ymgynghori.  
Holodd yr aelod hefyd a oedd y dogfennau ymgynghori ar gael ar ffurf copi caled gan nad 
oedd gan bawb fynediad i’r fersiynau ar-lein.   Cynigiodd yr Aelod y gellid gwella cae arall ar 
safle'r Clwb Rygbi (a ddefnyddir ar hyn o bryd fel cae ymarfer) a’i godi i safon y gynghrair ac y 
byddai angen darn bach o dir gan Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod i wneud hyn.  
Eglurodd swyddogion fod trafodaethau wedi dechrau gyda'r Clwb Rygbi ym mis Tachwedd 

Page 4



 

2019, eu bod wedi cyfarfod eto ym mis Mawrth 2020 ac yna ym mis Gorffennaf 2020 pan 
ddarparwyd copi o'r achos busnes yn nodi cefndir y prosiect.  Mae negeseuon e-bost hefyd 
wedi'u cyfnewid a deialog barhaus gyda diweddariadau yn ystod y broses.  Tynnodd 
swyddogion sylw at y ffaith bod y rhan fwyaf o'r tîm cyntaf yn chwarae yn y Ganolfan 
Ragoriaeth.  Edrychodd swyddogion ar ddimensiynau'r llain ymarfer, a adwaenir yn lleol fel 
Trinity 2 a'r problemau llifogydd gyda'r llain isel.  Gofynnwyd am gyngor ynghylch adeiladu'r 
llain, ond ni fyddai hyn yn cael caniatâd cynllunio.  Cynnig y Cyngor felly yw gwella cae Sue 
Noakes a’i godi i safon tîm gyntaf sydd o fewn pellter cerdded i'r Clwb Rygbi. Mae'r tîm 
ieuenctid ym Mhenallta eisoes yn defnyddio'r cae hwn.  Yn seiliedig ar yr wybodaeth a 
ddarparwyd am lifogydd, tynnodd yr Aelod ei argymhelliad ychwanegol arfaethedig yn ôl.  
Cadarnhaodd swyddogion hefyd fod gwybodaeth yr Ymgynghoriad wedi cael 
cyhoeddusrwydd eang a'i bod, ar flaen y ddogfen, yn nodi y gellir sicrhau bod gwybodaeth ar 
gael yn Gymraeg, Saesneg, ieithoedd eraill a bod copi caled ar gael ar gais. 
 
Cododd Aelod nifer o bryderon, er ei fod yn gefnogol i’r cynnig i ehangu Ysgol a Chanolfan 
Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod, mewn perthynas â'r effaith y bydd hyn yn ei chael ar y gymuned.  
Holodd pam nad oedd safleoedd eraill wedi cael eu hystyried pan fydd niferoedd yr ysgolion 
yn cynyddu ac awgrymodd y dylid adeiladu ysgol fwy ar safle arall i ddiogelu'r ysgol yn y 
dyfodol.  Tynnodd yr aelod sylw hefyd at bryderon ynghylch adeiladu yn yr ardal yn y 
gorffennol a dywedodd fod dros 1000 o wrthwynebiadau wedi'u cyflwyno yn erbyn y cynnig 
hwn ar hyn o bryd. 
 
Cadarnhaodd Mr I Elliott sut y cyfrifwyd niferoedd y disgyblion, gan edrych ar dueddiadau 
ledled Cymru.  Eglurwyd bod Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod nid yn unig yn 
ddarpariaeth addysg ond yn cysylltu'n agos iawn ag iechyd a gwasanaethau cymdeithasol.  
Esboniodd y Pennaeth sut y bydd niferoedd yn cael eu rhagweld yn y dyfodol a pham mai 
ehangu'r ysgol bresennol oedd yr opsiwn a ffefrir.  Pwysleisiodd fod Ysgol a Chanolfan 
Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod yn unigryw i Gaerffili a'r gymuned yw'r fwrdeistref gyfan. 
 
Rhoddodd swyddogion eglurhad ynglŷn â'r datganiad ynghylch y gwrthwynebiadau.  Ni 
chafodd ffynhonnell y wybodaeth ei hegluro.  Roedd yn dal yn ddyddiau cynnar o ran 
Ymgynghori, dywedodd y Swyddog fod safbwyntiau wedi'u cyflwyno o blaid ac yn erbyn y 
cynnig, ond nid oedd y nifer a ddyfynnwyd gan yr aelod wedi'u hadlewyrchu yn yr hyn a 
dderbyniwyd hyd yma.  
 
Mynegwyd pryder pellach hefyd ynglŷn â defnyddio a dyrannu defnydd yn y Ganolfan 
Ragoriaeth a bod cae Sue Noakes o leiaf 20 i 25 munud ar droed o Benallta.  Cadarnhaodd 
swyddogion fod gan y Ganolfan Ragoriaeth system archebu restredig, y cytunwyd arni gan y 
Cabinet mewn ymgynghoriad ag Undeb Rygbi Cymru ac Ymddiriedolaeth Bêl-droed Cymru.  
Mae meini prawf ar gyfer y dyraniad ac mae gan Glwb Rygbi Penallta archebion wythnosol 
ers i'r ganolfan agor.  Er efallai nad lleoliad Sue Noakes yw'r lleoliad a ffefrir gan y clybiau ar 
hyn o bryd, mae'r tîm ieuenctid yn defnyddio'r safle ar hyn o bryd. 

 
Gofynnodd aelod a fyddai'r asesiad risg a gynhaliwyd fel rhan o'r cynnig yn sicrhau y byddai 
datrysiad draenio cynaliadwy yn cael ei ddatblygu i atal llifogydd lleol.  Cadarnhaodd 
swyddogion y byddai'r broses gynllunio yn cynnwys ateb cynaliadwy wedi’i gynllunio i safonau 
presennol y Corff Cymeradwyo Draenio Cynaliadwy (SAB) ac yr ymgynghorir â Cyfoeth 
Naturiol Cymru fel y gwneir gydag unrhyw ddatblygiad yn y Fwrdeistref ar gyfer unrhyw beth 
dros 100 metr sgwâr. 
 
Wrth gloi, cyfeiriodd nifer o Aelodau at amgylchiadau unigol pan oeddent wedi mynychu Ysgol 
a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod a pha mor sylfaenol ac arbennig yw'r cyfleuster hwn yn 
y Fwrdeistref Sirol.   Wrth bwyso a mesur, er y gallai clwb rygbi Penallta gael ei effeithio a bod 
angen trafodaethau pellach i ganfod ffordd ymlaen, nodwyd bod y cynnig i ehangu’r ysgol fel 
yr amlinellir yn gyfle i weithio mewn partneriaeth ac i gefnogi'r plant mwyaf agored i niwed.  

  

Page 5



 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau yn adroddiad y Swyddog ac a drafodwyd yn y 
cyfarfod. Cafodd ei gynnig a’i eilio, a chytunwyd yn unfrydol y byddai'r bleidlais mewn 
perthynas â phob ysgol yn cael ei chymryd ar wahân: 

i. cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion mewn perthynas ag Ysgol a 
Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod yn cael eu cymeradwyo ac wrth nodi bod 
12 o blaid ac 1 yn erbyn, cytunodd y mwyafrif a oedd yn bresennol ar hyn; 
 

ii. cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion mewn perthynas ag Ysgol Gymraeg 
Cwm Gwyddon yn cael eu cymeradwyo a chytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 

 
 
8. DYCHWELYD I'R YSGOL YN LLAWN MEDI 2020 
 

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg gyflwyniad a oedd yn rhoi manylion ynghylch sut mae'r 
Adran Addysg ac ysgolion wedi ymateb ac addasu yn ystod y pandemig COVID-19.   
 
Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod y cyhoeddiad i gau'r ysgolion wedi'i wneud ddydd Mercher, 18 
Mawrth, 2020 ar gyfer dydd Gwener, 20 Mawrth.  O fewn dyddiau cytunwyd ar y strategaeth 
prydau ysgol am ddim a'i gweithredu, a phroseswyd tua 1,000 o geisiadau am ofal plant i 
weithwyr allweddol.  Sefydlwyd 6 hyb prif ffrwd ac 1 ganolfan ADY gyda 4 canolfan 
ychwanegol prif ffrwd arall a 2 ganolfan disgyblion agored i niwed a chyfrannodd dros 1,700 o 
staff at y broses hon. 
 
Ail-agorodd ysgolion ddydd Llun, 29 Mehefin, 2020, er mwyn gwirio, dal i fyny a pharatoi - 
gydag uchafswm o 1/3 o gapasiti disgyblion.  Cwblhawyd Asesiadau Risg ar gyfer holl 
safleoedd ysgolion a staff a disgyblion agored i niwed.  Cyhoeddodd yr Awdurdod Lleol 
ganllawiau a pharhaodd cyfarfodydd wythnosol gyda phenaethiaid. 

 
Rhwng mis Mehefin a mis Medi, cynhaliwyd cyfarfodydd wythnosol gyda swyddogion mewnol 
i adolygu'r canllawiau a chynhaliwyd cyfarfodydd wythnosol hefyd gydag Undebau Llafur i 
ymgynghori ar unrhyw newidiadau i'r canllawiau.  Parhaodd cyfarfodydd gyda phenaethiaid 
drwy'r haf tan yr hydref gan ddrafftio canllawiau newydd yr Awdurdod Lleol a darparu cyngor a 
chymorth ar gyfer adolygu Asesiadau Risg ar gyfer safleoedd a staff.  Roedd trefniadau 
arlwyo a glanhau yn parhau i gael eu hadolygu ond byddai pob disgybl yn dod â phecyn cinio 
tan 1.10.2020.   
 
Y disgwyliadau ar gyfer Medi 2020 oedd parhau i gyflwyno prydau ysgol am ddim tan 30 Medi 
2020 ac y dylid dynodi dydd Mawrth 1 a dydd Mercher 2 Medi 2020 yn ddiwrnodau cynllunio 
dynodedig i allu diweddaru Asesiadau Risg.  Byddai disgyblion yn dechrau dychwelyd mewn 
grwpiau o 3 Medi fel bod pob disgybl yn dychwelyd o ddydd Llun 14 Medi a byddai Ysgolion 
yn sefydlu cynlluniau parhad busnes. 
 

 Crynhodd y Swyddog y cymorth a gynigiwyd i ysgolion a oedd yn cynnwys: 
 

 Cyngor a chymorth ar gyfer Asesiadau Risg safle ac unigol. 

 Canllawiau ALl yn cael eu diweddaru'n rheolaidd i gynnwys prosesau, e.e. profi, olrhain a 
diogelu. 

 Cyfathrebu cyson a mynediad at gyngor a chymorth. 

 Wi-fi i ymwelwyr ym mhob ysgol. 

 Rhaglen Technoleg Addysg. 

 Cyllid ar gyfer gwerslyfrau i bob disgybl ym Mlynyddoedd 10 ac 11. 

 Polisi a dosbarthu gorchuddion wyneb. 

 Cyllid Dysgu Carlam. 
 

Wrth gloi, nododd y Swyddog yr agweddau mwyaf heriol ar gyfer ysgolion.  Roedd y rhain yn 
cynnwys cadw pellter cymdeithasol a lleihau'r cyswllt rhwng grwpiau, y broses Profi, Olrhain a 

Page 6



 

Diogelu a rheoli gorbryder.  Hefyd, atebion arlwyo, gan gynnwys clybiau brecwast o 1 Hydref 
2020. 

 
Mynegodd y Cadeirydd ei hedmygedd enfawr i holl staff yr Awdurdod Lleol, y Prifathrawon a 
staff yr ysgol am eu gwaith caled wrth gynllunio a pharatoi ar gyfer yr holl waith a wnaed, gan 
gynnwys hwyluso hybiau'r ysgol a phrydau ysgol am ddim.  Canmolodd Aelodau'r Pwyllgor y 
Prif Swyddog Addysg a'i Thîm am y canllawiau clir a roddwyd i ysgolion ledled y sir ac i bob 
Pennaeth sydd hefyd wedi gweithio'n eithriadol o galed.  Gofynnodd Aelod sut yr oedd diogelu 
wedi'i fonitro yn ystod y cyfnod hwn.  Mae swyddogion wedi gweithio'n agos gyda'r 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Mr I. Elliott i nodi disgyblion sy'n agored i niwed a 
blaenoriaethu anghenion y disgyblion hynny a threfnu lleoliadau yn Ysgol a Chanolfan 
Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod lle bo angen.  Mae swyddogion yn gweithio'n agos gydag ysgolion i 
fonitro pob plentyn sy'n agored i niwed.  Mae'r Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid a'r Gwasanaeth Addysg 
hefyd wedi cadw mewn cysylltiad â'u grwpiau drwy’r cyfnod a chadarnhaodd y Swyddog y bu 
ymdrech tîm eithriadol yn gyffredinol. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Swyddog am gyflwyno'r cyflwyniad ac ymateb i ymholiadau a 
godwyd  

 a nododd y Pwyllgor Craffu gynnwys y cyflwyniad. 
 
 Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 8:20pm. 
 

Fe’i cymeradwywyd fel cofnod cywir ac yn amodol ar unrhyw ddiwygiadau neu gywiriadau y 
cytunwyd arnynt ac a gofnodwyd yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Tachwedd 
2020 fe'u llofnodwyd gan y Cadeirydd. 

 
 

_______________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

 

Page 7



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 8



 
 

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 22ND SEPTEMBER 2020 
 

SUBJECT: EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To report the Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas reflect 

the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, the public or 
stakeholders. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme prior to 

publication. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Education Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all reports that were 

identified at the Scrutiny Leadership Group meeting on Thursday 20 August, 2020.  The work 
programme outlines the reports planned for the period September 2020 to November 2020. 

 
5.2 The forward work programme is made up of reports identified by officers and members.  

Members are asked to consider the work programme alongside the cabinet work programme 
and suggest any changes before it is published on the council website.  Scrutiny committee 
will review this work programme at every meeting going forward alongside any changes to the 
cabinet work programme or report requests. 

 
5.3 The Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1.  The 

Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. A copy of the prioritisation flowchart is 
attached at appendix 3 to assist the scrutiny committee to determine what items should be 
added to the forward work programme.  

 
 

Page 9

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



5.4 Conclusion 
 
 The work programme is for consideration and amendment by the scrutiny committee prior to 

publication on the council website.  
 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 No assumptions are necessary.   
 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000. The Local 

Government Wales Measure 2011 and subsequent Statutory Guidance include requirements 
to publicise the work of scrutiny committees. The operation of scrutiny committee forward 
work programmes was agreed following decisions by Council in October 2013 and October 
2015.   

 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   
 
 Scrutiny Committee forward work programmes contributes towards and impacts upon the 

Corporate Well-being Objectives by ensuring that the Executive is held to account for its 
Corporate Objectives, which are:     

 
 Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

 
 Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

 
 Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the 

county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s well-being 
 

 Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases 
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment 
 

 Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 
the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 
 

 Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being 
 
  
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Forward Work Programmes contribute to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-

being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by ensuring there is an effective scrutiny 
function and that council policies are scrutinised against the following goals: 

 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 

 A globally responsible Wales 
 
  

Page 10



9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 The Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
 
Author: Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Legal 

Services 
 Councillor Teresa Parry Chair Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 
Appendix 2 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
Appendix 3 Forward Work Programme Prioritisation Flowchart 
 

Page 11



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 12



Appendix 1. 
 

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 22nd September 2020 

Subject  

 

Purpose  

 

Key Issues  

 

Witnesses  

 

Statutory consultation – 

Trinity Fields Expansion 

Statutory consultation   Sue Richards - Head of 

Education Planning & 

Strategy 

Statutory consultation – 

Expansion and re-location 

of YGG Cwm Gwyddon on 

the former Cwmcarn high 

Site 

Statutory consultation   Sue Richards - Head of 

Education Planning & 

Strategy 

Return to school – update 

(Presentation) 

  Keri Cole, Chief Education 

Officer 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13



Appendix 1. 
 

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 3rd November 2020 

Subject  

 

Purpose  

 

Key Issues  

 

Witnesses  

 

Exclusion Policy   Keri Cole, Chief Education 

Officer 

Performance – summer 

outcomes 

  Keri Cole, Chief Education 

Officer 

Phase 2 – 21st Century 

Schools Proposals 

  Sue Richards - Head of 

Education Planning & 

Strategy 

    

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14



Appendix 1. 
 

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 22nd September 2020 Information Reports 

Subject  

 

Purpose  

 

Key Issues  

 

Witnesses  

 

Budget Monitoring Report 

– Month 3 

  Steve Harris 

 

 

Jane Southcombe  
   

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 15



 
Appendix 1. 
 

Education Scrutiny Committee Information Reports Forward Work Programme: May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 3rd November 2020 Information Reports 

Subject  

 

Purpose  

 

Key Issues  

 

Witnesses  

 

    

    

    

    

 
 
 
 

P
age 16



Appendix 2 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme 

 

  

 

       

Date Item 

 
Key Issue Author 

Cabinet 
Member 

          

30/09/2020 

Leaseholder 
Management 
Charges 

Received 

Shaun Couzens Cllr Phipps 

30/09/2020 

Covid recovery 
framework 

Received 
Christina Cllr Marsden 

30/09/2020 

Economic 
Recovery 
Framework 

Received 

Rhian Kyte Cllr Morgan 

 
 

Page 17



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 18



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 
APPENDIX 3 

  Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme Prioritisation 

          

 

 

                      

 

            

         

            

            

            

               

 

            

            

               

            

                 

            

            

               

                  

            

            

            

            

         

 

  

Is the issue of strategic 

importance? 

There is concern of poor 

performance or a significant 

budgetary issue has been 

identified 

Issue identified as corporate 

priority or identified as 

service or corporate risk 

 

Is the topic timely? Will 

scrutiny be able to make 

recommendations? 

Suitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

No 

Suitable as Task and Finish 

group review 

Unsuitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

Issue highlighted by an 

Auditor, Regulator or 

Inspector, which identified 

areas for improvement or 

concern. 

No 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Change to Legislation or 

Guidance 
No 

Evidence of public 

dissatisfaction (e.g. Public 

Satisfaction Survey)  
Yes 

 

No 

No Yes 

 

Page 19



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 20



 
 
 

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
22ND SEPTEMBER 2020 

    

SUBJECT:  21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES BAND B 
PROGRAMME – CONSULTATION IN RESPECT OF  
TRINITY FIELDS SPECIAL SCHOOL AND RESOURCE 
CENTRE AND YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM GWYDDON 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to officially consult with Members in respect of the Trinity 

Fields Special School and Resource Centre and Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon 
proposals. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 The purpose of the report is to consult with members on the proposals for the 

expansion of provision at Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre and relocation 
and expansion of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon onto the former Cwmcarn High 
site. 

 
2.2 The consultation period for both proposals commenced on the 14th September 2020 

and ends on the 26th October 2020. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Members are asked to: 

a) Note the information contained in the report and the attached consultation packs 
 

 b) To obtain Members views as part of the consultation process for both proposals 
which will be noted as part of the minutes of this meeting and included in the 
Consultation Report document which will be presented to Cabinet as part of the 
decision making process. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To ensure Members are consulted with regards to the outlined proposals and assist 

the Council in discharging its duty in consulting stakeholders in line with the 
requirements of the Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code 2018. 

Page 21

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



 
 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Consultation in respect of the Band B Phase 1 proposals 
   
5.1.1 The key aims of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Band B investment 

programme, outlined by Welsh Government, is to: 
  

• Reduce the number of poor condition schools. 
• Ensure that we have the right size schools in the right location, providing enough 

places to deliver Welsh and English medium education. 
• Ensure the effective and efficient use of the educational estate for use by both 

Schools and the wider Community. 
 
5.1.2 The first two schemes identified are the expansion of Trinity Fields Special School 

and Resource Centre and the relocation and expansion of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm 
Gwyddon.   

 
5.1.3 As part of the requirements of the Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code 

2018 and Section 42/44 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, 
proposals must be published when we make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a maintained 
school and consultation must be undertaken with Members and wider Stakeholders 
as outlined in the attached documentation. 

 
5.1.4 Each scheme will be considered separately and has its own associated 

documentation.  The consultation period for both proposals commenced on the 14th 
September 2020 and will end on the 26th October 2020. 

 
5.1.5 Following consultation, all the comments received during the consultation period will 

be compiled into a Consultation Report in respect of each proposal.  Both reports will 
be taken to Cabinet who will then decide as to whether to proceed, make changes or 
not to proceed with each individual proposal. 

 
5.1.6 Should Cabinet decide to proceed, individual Statutory Notices will be published 

providing a 28 day notice period for objections.  The School Standards and 
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 provides that anyone wishing to make objections to a 
school organisation proposal has the opportunity to do so.  To be considered as 
statutory objections, objections must be made in writing and sent to the Council 
within the notice period.  Formal Responses can only be registered following the 
publication of a statutory notice. Full details of the Consultation Process can be found 
in the full Consultation Document as part of the attached documentation. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 No assumptions have been made in relation to this report as the process outlined by 

Welsh Government is being adhered to ensure transparency, balanced and open 
decision making. 

 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 

Page 22



7.1 Caerphilly’s Attainment Strategy: To raise standards and ensure our learners are 
healthy, confident, proud and ambitious and can access high quality educational 
opportunities, settings and experience. 

 

7.2 Caerphilly’s Wellbeing Objectives 2018 to 2023. This proposal will assist the 
Authority in meeting these objectives in particular the following:  

Well-being Objective 1 – Improve Education opportunities for all. 

Well-being Objective 2 – Enabling Employment. 

 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Well-Being of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales.  It requires public bodies to 
think more about the long-term, working with people and communities, looking to 
prevent problems and take a more joined up approach.  This will create a Wales that 
we all want to live in, now and in the future.  The Act puts in place seven well-being 
goals:  

 

 A prosperous Wales. 

 A resilient Wales. 

 A healthier Wales. 

 A more equal Wales. 

 A Wales of cohesive communities. 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

 A globally responsible Wales. 
 
8.2 The Act sets out the sustainable development principle against which all public 

bodies in Wales should assess their decision-making. The aim of the legislation is to 
ensure the well-being of future generations through maximising the contribution 
public bodies make towards the well-being goals. In using the sustainable 
development principle it is incumbent that the authority considers the whole of the 
population it serves and considers the effect of its actions on future generations. The 
principle, also known as the five ways of working is assessed below: 
 
• Long Term -   Forecasting of pupil numbers has been utilised to identify the 

demand for school places to ensure sufficient Educational places in our schools.  
• Prevention - Improving the quality of the Education estate generally will support 

pupils in their long term education and skills outcome in that they are more likely 
to succeed if their Educational experience is positive.  

  

Page 23



• Integration - The 21st Century Schools Programme is subject to BREEAM and 
Community Benefits of individual proposals are assessed and monitored for their 
impact on the Welsh economy. The proposals are also part of a strategy to 
promote Welsh Language and Culture. 

• Collaboration – The 21st Century Schools Programme is collaboration between 
the Council and Welsh Government to improve the quality of the Education 
estate. 

• Involvement – Through the consultation process the Council will ensure that 
there is full engagement with all relevant stakeholders as outlined in the School 
Organisation Code 2018, e.g. parents, pupils and the local community. 
Collaborative partnership working between 21st Century Schools and the Early 
Years Division, Health and Social Services. 

 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 All relevant Equality Impact Assessments for individual projects have been 
undertaken prior to moving to this consultation stage and are available to any 
persons who wish to receive copies. These proposals link with the WESP and the 
five year Welsh Language Strategy 2017-2022 and will therefore have a positive 
impact on Welsh Medium Education. The proposal in relation to Trinity Fields Special 
School and Resource Centre will also have a positive impact on the children and 
young people with additional learning needs who are and will be attending the 
School.  

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Phase 1 of the programme, Trinity Fields expansion and the relocation and 

expansion of YGG Cwm Gwyddon totals £22,002,921 The Authority’s contribution  
within this sum is £6.451m.  

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 This will be dependant on specific proposals and will be considered as part of the 

consultation process. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The draft report was distributed as detailed below. All comments received have been 

reflected in this version of the report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 School Organisation Code 2018 (Welsh Government) 
 School Standards & Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 

Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 
Legislation (Wales) Act 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



Author:   Andrea West, 21st Century Schools Manager  
  
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services 
 Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director Communities 
 Councillor Barbara Jones, Cabinet Member, Education and Achievement 
 Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services & Acting S151 

Officer 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 

Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning & Strategy 
Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion & ALN  
Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager 
Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement 
Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager 
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer, Equalities, Welsh Language & 
 Consultation) 
Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Service and Monitoring Officer 
Ros Roberts, Business Improvement Officer 

 Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property Services 
 Steve Pugh, Corporate Communications Manager 
  
Background Papers: 

    
Consultation Pack – Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon 
Consultation Pack – Trinity Fields Special School and Resource Centre 

Page 25



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 26



 

 

Ref: LT/AW 
21st Century Schools 
01443 864817 
 
14th September 2020 
 

 

Dear Consultee 

In line with the requirements of the School Organisation Code 2018, we are writing to 

inform you about a proposal the Council is submitting in relation to a regulated 

alteration to a maintained school. 

The proposal is in connection with: 

➢ The relocation of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon. 

The consultation period will run from the 14th September 2020 to the 26th October 

2020. 

Full details in relation to the proposal can be found at: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

 

Regards 

21st Century Schools Team 
Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Document
1 of 5

Page 27

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 28



 
 

21st Century Schools 
Consultation Document 
2020 
 

 

YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM GWYDDON 
 

14th September 2020– 26th October 2020 
 

 
 

 

This document is available electronically at   

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

Information can also be made available in other formats, languages and in hard copy on request. 

Please contact us on 01443 864817 to arrange this. 
 
 
 

                

Document 2 of 5

Page 29

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction 

➢ What is this booklet about? 
➢ What is the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme? 
➢ What are we proposing to do? 

 

 

Page 3 

Page 3 

Page 4 

Consultation Process 

➢ Who are we consulting with? 
➢ How can you find out more? 
➢ Views of children on the proposal 

 

 

Page 6 

Page 7 

Page 7 

Why are we proposing these changes? 

➢ Background Information 
➢ Planning of school places 
➢ Condition and Suitability of school buildings 
➢ Illustrative Master Plan 

 

 

Page 8 
Page 10 

Page 10 

Page 11 

How would other schools be affected? 

➢ Early Years Provision and Projected Demand 
➢ Primary Years Provision, ‘Growing School’ Model and Admissions 
➢ Catchment Area Arrangements 
➢ Disruption to pupils  
➢ Secondary Provision 

 

 

Page 12 

Page 13 

Page 14 

Page 15 

Page 15 

 

What will be the impact of the proposal? 

➢ Education Standards, Quality and Leadership 
➢ Governance Arrangements and School Categorisation 
➢ Staff Matters 
➢ Financial Matters 
➢ Impact on Welsh Language Provision 
➢ Learner Travel Arrangements 
➢ Equalities 
➢ Specialist Facilities / Additional Learning Needs 
➢ Community Impact and Community Benefit 

 

Page 16 

Page 19 

Page 19 

Page 19 

Page 20 

Page 21 

Page 21 

Page 23 

Page 24 
 

What are the Benefits of the proposal? 

➢ Benefits 
➢ Disbenefits 
➢ Risks 
➢ Alternative options that have been discounted 

 

 

Page 25 

Page 25 

Page 26 

Page 27 
 

Next Steps 

➢ Consultation Period and Key Dates 
➢ Statutory Notices, Reporting and Decision Making 
➢ Have your say 

 

 

Page 31 

Page 31 

Page 32 
 

Supporting Information 

➢ Frequently Asked Questions 
➢ Feedback Form  

 

Page 33 

Page 34 

Page 30



 
 

 

 

 

Introduction 

 

➢ What is this booklet about? 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) has embarked upon an exciting but challenging 

journey of improvement and change.  

Schools in Wales need to be in good condition and suitable for the delivery of education.  In 

some cases, schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended, or partially rebuilt to 

meet the standards needed for contemporary teaching and learning.  However, some existing 

schools are no longer in the right place and in such cases we might propose new schools or 

changes to existing schools. 

We aspire to continue to raise school standards and improve the quality of the learning 

environment to create fit-for-purpose 21st century schools and give every child in Caerphilly the 

best possible start in life. 

This booklet is for anyone who has an interest in education in Caerphilly and may be of particular 

interest to parents/guardians of children attending or expecting to attend Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm 

Gwyddon. 

Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon has been identified as a priority site for development.  This 

booklet sets out the changes we are suggesting to this primary education facility in the Borough 

and the reasons for these proposed changes. 

The consultation process represents an opportunity for people to learn about the proposal, ask 

questions and make comments that will be recorded and summarised in a consultation report.  

This report will be published on the Council’s website and will be considered when Cabinet 

decides on the way forward. 

 

 

➢ What is the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme? 

The 21st Century Schools and Colleges programme is a major, long-term, strategic capital 

investment programme.  It is jointly funded by the Welsh Government and local authorities and 

aims to create a generation of 21st century schools in Wales.  

The first part of the programme (Band A) ran from 2014 to March 2019.  

Caerphilly has benefited greatly from investments in the initial “Band A” 21st Century Schools 

programme with approximately £56.5 million invested in schools for both educational and 

community use.  

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 
 

 

Band A funding in Caerphilly was used to deliver : 

 

 
✓ Islwyn High School 
✓ Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Rhymni, Y Gwyndy Campus 
✓ Idris Davies School 3-18 
✓ Newbridge School extension 
✓ Blackwood Comprehensive improvements  
✓ Blackwood Comprehensive 3G pitch 
✓ Trinity Fields School improvements  

 

 
The second part of this funding (Band B) started in April 2019, with the priority areas being: 
 

• Reduce the number of poor condition schools 

• Ensure that we have the right size schools in the right location  

• Provide enough places to deliver Welsh and English medium education 

• Ensure the effective and efficient use of the educational estate 
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council submitted a Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) and 
received Welsh government approval in principle for an identified investment of £78 million, 
subject to individual project consultation and approval.  
 
The SOP sets the strategic vision for the Band B programme within the context of the priorities 
and wellbeing goals of the Council.  We identified a need to invest in improving our school 
buildings, meeting the demand for education in both Welsh and English, reducing surplus 
places and developing shared and co-located facilities and it is this aspiration that is driving 
this proposal. 

 

 

➢ What are we proposing to do? 

 

We are proposing to: 

o Relocate Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon to a new purpose built Welsh-medium 
provision school to be situated on the vacant site of the former Cwmcarn High 
School (Cwmcarn, NP11 7NG) with an anticipated occupation date of September 
2023 

 
o It is proposed that the new building will incorporate a primary facility with Childcare, 

Special Resource Base (SRB), Nursery, Rising Threes and main school classrooms, main 
assembly hall, food technology space, a library and IT space 

 
o The identified site will also have sufficient accommodation to facilitate a new building that 

will provide accommodation for approximately 420 pupils plus 60 nursery places and 16 

SRB places and ensure equality of access by promoting and supporting the development 

and delivery of inclusive education through delivery of the full curriculum to pupils in a 

modern, safe and inspiring learning environment 

 

 

Page 32



 
 

 

o The new building will provide a stimulating teaching and learning environment with 21st 
Century facilities including improved ICT facilities, centered on the learning, self-esteem 
and well-being of all pupils and improve lifelong learning opportunities for members of the 
community to strengthen and safeguard the promotion of the Welsh language, culture and 
heritage across Caerphilly East 

 
o The new building will have improved the outside learning space offering external play 

areas, a tarmacadam MUGA area and access to a grass pitch. The usage of sporting 
facilities will also be considered for the community at suitable times in keeping with the 
curriculum timetable 

 
o The proposed project will take into account the desire to encourage and facilitate 

community use of the asset.  The design process will seek to include measures to enable 
safe ‘zoning’ of parts of the new school building, including the hall and a multi-functional 
classroom compliant space which could be adapted for use 

 

 

  
Library / IT / Breakout Areas ‘The Street’ 
 

Typical Classroom 

  
External Softplay Areas  Hall and Dining 

 

 
Images above are examples of what has been achieved as part of a Band A project at Idris Davies 3-18, Rhymney  

Page 33



 
 

 

 

 

Consultation Process 

 

➢ Who are we consulting with? 

Our consultation process must follow the Welsh Government guidelines as set out in the School 

Organisation Code 2018.  Proposals must be published when we make a ‘regulated alteration’ 

to a maintained school under Section 42 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 

2013. 

We are obligated to advise the following of our proposals by letter or email: 

 
 

o Parents, prospective parents, guardians and carers of all pupils of schools directly 
o affected by the proposal  
o Headteacher, staff and governors of schools directly affected by the proposal 
o Pupils/Pupil Councils of schools directly affected by the proposal 
o Directors of Education of all bordering Las – Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr 

Tydfil, Newport, Powys, Rhondda Cynon Taf, Torfaen 
o Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 
o Church in Wales Diocesan Board 
o Local Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 
o Governing body of other schools which the proposer considers are likely to be affected 

by the proposal 
o Local CCBC Members  
o All Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing the area served 
o by the schools directly affected by the proposal 
o Welsh Ministers 
o ESTYN 
o Teaching Associations 
o Support Staff Associations 
o South East Wales Consortium (EAS) 
o South East Wales Transport Alliance (SEWTA) 
o Gwent and South Wales Police and Crime Commissioners 
o Local Town and Community Councils 
o Mudiad Meithrin and voluntary nursery providers 
o Menter Iaith 
o Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
o Parent Network 
o Welsh Education Forum 
o Welsh Language Commissioner 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 
 

 

➢ How can you find out more? 

The planning and development of effective school organisation proposals is crucial to the Welsh 

Government’s goal of transforming education in Wales and providing better educational 

outcomes with a commitment to increase school effectiveness, and narrow inequalities in 

achievement between advantaged and disadvantaged areas, groups and individuals. 

The School Organisation Code 2018 states that when undertaking a consultation process in 

connection with a school proposal, the Council must publish information to enable transparent, 

balanced and open decision making. 

As part of this proposal, the following documentation has been produced: 

• A Consultation Document outlining the proposal (this document) 

• A Children and Young People’s Summary 

• An Equalities and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

• A Community Impact Assessment (contained in this document) 

 

The Welsh Language Standards are a set of legally binding requirements that aim to allow people 

in Wales the ability to receive services in the Welsh language. The Standards clearly set out our 

responsibilities are in terms of providing bilingual services, ensuring the Welsh language is not 

treated less favorably than the English language. All documentation is therefore published in 

Welsh and English and available in other languages or formats on request.  Further information 

is available on the Council’s website 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools 

Hardcopies can be made available on request and further details in relation to the processes 

and timelines can be found later in this document in the ‘Next Steps’ Section. 

 

Please note: A separate Planning Application Process will be carried out by the Authority’s 

Property Services Department and details of all applications can be found on the Council’s 

Website when the process is live: 

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Planning-and-building-control/Planning-applications 

 

➢ Views of children on the proposal  
 

The Council has acknowledged that the voice of young people is about involving them as active 

participants in the development, delivery, management an improvement of their educational and 

student experience and needs to be at the heart of planning, provision and evaluation.  

Young people have a right to act to express their views in all matters affecting them and for their 

views to be heard and given due weight in accordance with their age and maturity.  The Council 

recognises the potential of young people to enrich the decision-making processes, to share 

perspectives and to participate as citizens and facilitators of change.   

This is also been reflected by the Estyn report ‘Pupil Participation: a best practice guide’, which 

highlights how effective participation benefits pupils and helps schools to improve.  

Page 35

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Planning-and-building-control/Planning-applications


 
 

 

The 21st Century Schools Team in Caerphilly will ensure that when bringing forward any 

proposal, suitable arrangements are made to consult and involve pupils throughout the process 

and post occupancy.   

The Council will consult with pupils in the school and the information gathered will be included in 

the final consultation report.  A virtual meeting using video conferencing technology (Microsoft 

Teams / Zoom) will be undertaken to discuss the proposal with the school council and talk them 

through the child friendly version of the Consultation document.  This recorded discussion will be 

included in the documentation forwarded to Cabinet for consideration once the consultation 

period has ended. 

 

 

 

 

Why are we proposing these changes? 

 
 

➢ Background Information 

New buildings can play a key role not only as places to inspire and educate our children but also 

as vibrant and dynamic learning environments in which all ages are able to learn and grow that 

are used not only by pupils but by families and the wider community.  Our aim is to secure equality 

of access by promoting and supporting the development of inclusive education and giving a 

commitment to providing the best possible quality of education and services within available 

resources.   

The Council is committed to providing all children and young people with high quality education, 

tailored to meet their needs, which will develop their potential, extend aspiration, promote social 

inclusion and contribute to the economic regeneration of the area.  Progress has been made, 

however there is still work to be done to improve outcomes and wellbeing for all children and 

young people. 

In addition, Welsh Government approved Caerphilly’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

(WESP) in 2018. Caerphilly currently has 11 Welsh-medium primary schools, each providing 

education for pupils between 3 and 11 years. The establishment of this new fit-for-purpose facility 

and the relocation of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon Welsh-medium primary school will assist 

in reaching these objectives and will support Welsh Government’s charter of achieving 1 million 

Welsh speakers across Wales by 2050.  

 
In November 2020, the existing Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon will have occupied their current 
site for 20 years.  Located in the heart of a small village, the school is the 3rd occupier of the site 
which has seen multiple incarnations over the years to utilise the asset to its fullest extent. 
 
There are approximately 260 pupils on roll, an additional 180 to the original concept to house 80 
when the school was originally handed occupancy of the site. 
 
The site the school occupies has a total area of approximately 0.3 Hectares which 
accommodates 5 structures and limited outdoor play areas. The site is enclosed on all sides, 
with no option for expansion, and has no direct access routes other than via a side street adjacent 
to the local public houses and village institute. Notably the site is also on a slanted gradient, 

Page 36



 
 

 

resulting in multiple levels for both indoor and outdoor space which significantly reduces access 
and functionality for less able-bodied individuals.  
 

 

 

Whilst it was acknowledged in the 2013 Estyn Report that the school makes ‘The best possible 
use of the resources available both inside and outside the building to enrich the curriculum’, there 
are limitations which have been inherited due to the nature of the site.  The report also stated 
that ‘Purposeful use is made of the school’s accommodation and grounds for play and Learning’ 
with ‘sufficient resources for the purposes of the Curriculum’.  However, with developments in 
the curriculum over the last 6 year period and increased pressure from the new Curriculum for 
Wales will result in additional strain is being placed on ensuring fit for purpose resources and 
facilities and will do so for the foreseeable future if the situation is left unchanged. 

 
When the school estate was surveyed in May 2018, Cwm Gwyddon was deemed to have passed 

the 60 year life expectancy.  Despite investment in the site, it can no longer be developed from 

an educational perspective as there is insufficient space within the current site to expand the 

school any further.  

The Authority believes that this proposal represents the best opportunity to safeguard and 

sustain educational standards for the future and provides a platform for improvement through 

significant investment in permanent facilities. This will provide a stimulating teaching and 

learning environment with 21st Century facilities including improved ICT facilities, outdoor play 

and extended access provision for community use, centred on the learning, self-esteem and 

wellbeing of all. 

There is a clear link between new and improved school buildings and improved performance as 

highlighted by ESTYN.  Increased school performance will lead to additional pupils accessing 

Welsh Medium Education locally, increasing the critical mass and providing more professional 

teaching opportunities for teachers. 

 

 

Page 37



 
 

 

➢ Planning of school places 

All Councils in Wales must make sure they provide enough school spaces for pupils of all ages 

in order to provide the best quality of education and ensure the funding provided by the Welsh 

government is used effectively. All Councils in Wales must also provide places that meet the 

needs of the pupils in Welsh, English or faith medium and must be suitable for any additional 

learning needs.  

There has been a significant increase in Welsh medium provision within CCBC since its inception 
in 1996.  Pupil numbers in Primary schools have increased by over 60% to a current level in 
excess of 2900. During this 20-year period, 3 additional schools were established, with 7 of the 
8 original schools either being replaced or receiving adaptations / extensions to increase 
capacity.  The Council’s commitment to Welsh medium education development continues to be 
a priority as evidenced in Band A and as part of this Band B proposal of the Welsh Government’s 
21st Century Schools programme 

 

 

➢ Condition and Suitability of school buildings 

As well as having the right number of school places the council must ensure that school facilities 

are fit for purpose. Schools must support the delivery of high quality learning.  

 
All existing Caerphilly schools have recently been subject to a Building Condition survey. 

Condition surveys are evidence-based auditable records and undertaken by suitably qualified 

and experienced personnel.  The current Cwm Gwyddon site has been judged to be in condition 

C on a scale of A (excellent) to D (poor).   

 

 

 
 

The existing main building (pictured above), was built around 1890 and operates over 2 floors.  
The ground floor houses 3 classrooms, pupil cloakrooms, 2 offices and a reception area.  There 
is also a hall which does not offer the required capacity to completely fulfil the curricular need 
(i.e. Physical Education classes need to be split to half class as no more than 15 pupils per 
session) and there is no direct access to outdoor play space.  Accommodation of whole school 

Page 38



 
 

 

assemblies or concerts is also unfeasible, and the school negotiates use of off-site facilities such 
as the Memorial Hall in Newbridge which is 2 miles away from the school. This incurs both rental 
and travel costs but, more importantly results in significant timetable issues and lost education 
time for pupils.  Due to the camber on the site, the building has several internal steps to access 
the split level.  
 
The 1st floor is only accessible via numerous staircases and is not fully accessible.  It 
accommodates 4 further classrooms, an ICT suite and a multi-use Library and music room with 
minimal storage capacity.  Asbestos has also been identified in the fabric of the building, although 
this is tightly controlled and contained at present, however this makes any additional 
modifications to the site restricted. 
 
The 2nd substantive building located on site, houses the main kitchen, eating area, Cylch Meithrin 
and Menter Iaith provision.  The eating area only accommodates 80 in one sitting which places 
additional logistical requirements on the school timetable to accommodate all the pupils on a 
rolling programme of lunches over a 2-hour timeslot.  The facility has 2 access points, both of 
which are only accessible via steps hence the hall is utilised for overspill with ramped access 
resulting in the hall not being available for extra-curricular activities during this time slot.  
 
There are 3 additional single story prefabricated modular buildings and a single storage container 
to accommodate the additional pupils and storage needs of the site.  These additions have been 
relocated and refurbished from other schools and as a result have significantly reduced the 
outdoor play area.   
 

 
➢ Illustrative Master Plan 

 
‘A Foundation for Success’ provide a framework for the future regeneration of the County 
Borough up to 2023. The document sets out strategic priorities for regeneration under four key 
themes: 

• Supporting People (reducing inequality, building capacity and resilience to create healthier, 
prosperous, cohesive communities); 

• Supporting Business (creating employment opportunities, increasing entrepreneurial 
activities, encouraging innovation and improving access to employment); 

• Supporting Quality of Life (providing the right physical environment for our communities that 
encourages them to prosper); 

• Connecting People and Places (improving connectivity locally, regionally and globally). 

The Regeneration Strategy is supported by a suite of targeted action plans and strategies aimed 
at capturing regeneration opportunities and developing key sites and premises throughout the 
County Borough. 

The Masterplan identifies a number of projects in the area that could deliver substantial economic 

and community benefit, and it will provide a framework for the delivery of those projects.  

 

 

Page 39



 
 

 

 

 

How would other schools be affected? 

 
 

Changes in one part of the Education sector in the County has a wider ‘ripple’ effect on other 

schools and their pupils.   When considering any proposals, the sustainability and enhancement 

of the education network and wider area is considered.  Due regard will be given to the impact 

of this proposal and consultation will be undertaken with any affected schools.   

 

➢ Early Years Provision and Projected Demand 

 

In the current school provision, there is space for a Cylch Meithrin and Clwb Meithrin & Clwb 
Carco in an aging demountable. They will be relocated into a   new childcare setting as part of 
the new school development.  We anticipate this new development and potential for further 
development on the site in future projects along with the Childcare Offer may significantly 
increase demand for childcare. The movement of the Welsh medium school further down the 
Islwyn corridor is likely to also increase demand. Across the borough there is an increasing 
demand for Welsh medium places and with the new Welsh Education Strategic Plan regulations 
there is also a stretching target for development of Welsh medium places. The increase in school 
provision will require a similar percentage increase in childcare places to meet the needs of 
working families across the age range 0-12years. There is also increasing parental demand for 
childcare in the Risca area (referenced in the CSA refresh 2020). 

The childcare provision required will be two rooms initially for 20 places am and pm in each room 
for Welsh medium provision. They will also require office space, kitchen, staff toilet and 4 
children’s toilets in the development, as well as the ability to separate the area by alarm from the 
rest of the school to run outside of school opening hours. In the childcare regulations and 
guidance for providing quality provision there is a requirement to sufficient outdoor space to allow 
physical activity as well as enable all the areas of learning to be met outside.   

We anticipate the current third sector providers operating the provision. Current provision 
includes:  

• Cylch Meithrin Cwm Gwyddon (playgroup for 2-3year olds) – run by management 
committee who are a registered charity – 16 places (am only) 

• Clwb Meithrin Cwm Gwyddon (wraparound for rising ¾ attending FP in school) – run by 
Menter Iaith Caerffili – offering 48 places – operating am and pm from Sept 2018 

• Clwb Carco Cwm Gwyddon (after school provision for 4-11 year olds) – run by Menter 
Iaith Caerffili – 24 places 

We would also aim to support them to develop and register Clwb Gwyliau (holiday provision) 
which may increase demand through the Childcare Offer. The development of this provision 
using childcare specific funding ensures that it cannot be brought into use by the school and 
displace the childcare and therefore builds long term certainty for the settings to develop their 
business. The shared use of new facilities enables greater economic efficiencies and more 
sustainability financially.  

We anticipate 48 childcare places at any one time therefore this could look like:  

• 24 playgroup morning  

• 72 wraparound (24 am and 48 pm) [potential 50-72 childcare offer places] 

Page 40



 
 

 

• 48 after school [potential 10 childcare offer places] 

• 48 holiday places [potential 20-30 childcare offer places] 
 

Our strategic development of childcare provision on school site enables a smooth transition from 
the school / nursery provision to the childcare unit. Having the unit designed in the school from 
the beginning enables the best location to be designed including movements of children between 
provision as well as pick up / drop off access for parents. This maximises the benefits of co-
location and enables the best transition for children who could be on site from 2 years old.  

This is part of a key priority in the 21st century Band B schools programme and as such makes 
economies of scale being included in the design and implementation from the start and shows 
the commitment from the local authority in developing Welsh medium provision.  

Demand – the Head Teacher has requested the Clwb Meithrin operate morning and afternoon 
from Sept 2018 and had moved the setting from a 16 place space to a 24 place classroom. The 
new school will be located lower down the Islwyn Valley and will likely capture children from the 
Cross keys and Risca areas where the transition rates form the current Cylchoedd Meithrin has 
been traditionally very low because of the travelling distance to the Welsh Primary’s current 
location. 

Additional places created on top of current provision: 

• Playgroup (Cylch Meithrin) – additional 8 places 

• Wrap (Clwb Meithrin) – additional 24 places 

• After School (Clwb Carco) – additional 24 places 

• Holiday (Clwb Gwyliau – additional 48 places 

 
 

➢ Primary Years Provision, Growing school model and Admissions  
 

Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon opened to pupils in November 1992, and the school is growing 
year-on–year.  Although the school is established as a ‘growing school’, there is only physical 
capacity on the existing permanent site for up to 168 pupils.   
 
Number on roll (2019-20 actual): 

 

Year 2019-20 

Cwm Gwyddon 207 

 
Projected Numbers for the current School Site  
 

Year   
No. on 

Roll 
Excluding 
Nursery 

    
2020  234 205 
2021  231 202 
2022  231 200 
2023  232 202 
2024  233 203 
2025   242 212 

 

   
 

Page 41



 
 

 

The model of growth for the school is set out below: 
 

Admission 
Year 

2022 2023 2024 2025 

Capacity 315 350 385 420 

 
Increasing the admission number by a manageable amount will allow stimulation of the demands 

for Welsh medium while not over developing the provision to destabilise other already 

established educational provisions within the area. It is anticipated that the admission number 

for the new school will be 45 when the school initially opens and will be increased incrementally 

by 5 per year until it reaches its full capacity of 60 pupils. This will also support the management 

of surplus places in the area.   By allowing the school to grow on an annual basis it will protect 

the other schools in the area from potentially losing pupils. 

 

 

➢ Catchment Area Arrangements 
 
 

Welsh medium primary school catchment areas 

 

1 Ysgol y Lawnt 

2 Ysgol Bro Sannan 

3 Ysgol Penalltau 

4 Ysgol Gymraeg Gilfach Fargoed 

5 Ysgol Gymraeg Trelyn 

6 Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Allta 

7 Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Derwen 

8 Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon 

9 Ysgol Ifor Bach 

10 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg y Castell 

11 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Caerffili 

 

 

The next nearest Community Welsh Medium School to the existing site and proposed site of 

Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon is Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Derwen: 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 
 

 

Projected numbers for the next six years 
 

Year 
Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Derwen 

 

 
No. on Roll 

 
Excluding 
Nursery 

Capacity 
 

2020 217 190 210 
2021 218 192 210 
2022 221 195 210 
2023 219 193 210 
2024 219 192 210 
2025 222 196 210 

 

The Council has secured funding under the Welsh Medium Grant to expand capacity on at Ysgol 

Gymraeg Cwm Derwen to be able to meet growing demand from within catchment. 

 

The 3 following Community English Medium Primary Schools are within close proximity to the 

existing site and the proposed new site for Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon. 

Projected numbers for the next six years 
 

Year Abercarn Primary School 
 

Cwmcarn Primary Waunfawr Primary 

 No. on 
roll 

Excl. 
Nursery 

Capacity No. on 
roll 

Excl. 
Nursery 

Capacity No. on 
roll 

Excl. 
Nursery 

Capacity 

2020 256 224 244 249 220 261 187 162 178 

2021 252 221 244 242 212 261 187 163 178 

2022 249 219 244 241 208 261 189 164 178 

2023 249 218 244 244 210 261 195 170 178 

2024 247 216 244 256 223 261 194 169 178 

2025 243 212 244 260 227 261 198 173 178 

 

 

➢ Disruption to pupils 
 

The proposal seeks to build a new school facility on an alternative location to that of the current 

school.  As such, there will be no disruption to pupils on the Cwm Gwyddon site during the build 

phase.  In addition, there will also be no transportation or access related issues as construction 

is off site. 

 

➢ Secondary Provision 

 

It is clear how important the Welsh language is to life in Wales. Maintaining and increasing the 

range of Welsh medium provision is a significant challenge for the Council.  Changes to Welsh 

medium primary education will inevitably have an impact upon Welsh medium secondary 

education 

Page 43



 
 

 

The more pupils who enjoy a Welsh medium primary education, the more are likely to attend 

Welsh medium secondary education and have the fullest opportunities to live their lives in Wales 

using the Welsh language. 

Within the borough, as evidenced in the WESP, more learners are continuing to improve their 

language skills on transfer from primary to secondary school and progression rates remain at a 

consistently high level.  In consideration of the potential impact of this proposal, the site layout 

and configuration will be undertaken strategically to ensure space maximisation and provide the 

potential to facilitate Secondary provision in the future should the need to increase capacity be 

identified in that area. 

 

 

 

What will be the impact of the proposal? 

 
 

➢ Education Standards, Quality and Leadership 

 

During the implementation of the project, the school will continue to receive ongoing advice and 
support from the local authority, school improvement service and any relevant stakeholders to 
help ensure that the school maintains effective leadership and provides high quality teaching 
and learning experiences. 
 

Quality and standards in schools in Caerphilly are monitored by Estyn and the Local Authority 
(LA).  Estyn is the office of Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education and Training in Wales. It 
is a Crown body, established under the Education Act 1992. Estyn is independent of the National 
Assembly for Wales but receives its funding from the Welsh Government under Section 104 of 
the Government of Wales Act 1998. Estyn inspects quality and standards in education and 
training providers in Wales.  
 
The most recent inspection result of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon is outlined below: 

The school received an Estyn inspection in 2020, therefore, the published reports reflect the 

revised inspection framework introduced in September 2017.  As detailed below, the five 

inspection areas indicate that Cwm Gwyddon is a highly effective setting, with strong leadership, 

providing excellent learning experiences and provision to all pupils. 

Notable features in the report, linked to the key inspection areas, are itemised below: 

Summary of ESTYN  Judgements: Ysgol Cwm Gwyddon – inspected March 2020 
 

IA1 – Standards 
 

IA2 – Wellbeing 
and attitudes to 
learning  

IA3 – Teaching 
and learning 
experiences 

IA4 – Care, 
support and 
guidance 

IA5 – 
Leadership and 
management 

 
Excellent 

 

 
Excellent 

 
Excellent 

 
Excellent 

 
Excellent 

 

Page 44



 
 

 

1. Standards:  

• Nearly all pupils make very strong progress, and many make higher than the expected 

progress in developing their literacy, numeracy, and information and communication 

technology (ICT) skills. 

• Nearly all pupils develop as conscientious and confident learners with mature 

independent working skills. 

• Nearly all pupils’ speaking and listening skills are of very high quality. 

• Nearly all pupils communicate very maturely in both languages and express their ideas, 

opinions and feelings effectively and clearly when working in pairs, groups and as a whole 

class. 

• Nearly all pupils write interesting extended pieces of a high standard in both languages 

 

2. Wellbeing and attitudes to learning: 

• Nearly all pupils’ behaviour is excellent across the school. 

• Nearly all pupils are highly conscientious, express their opinions effectively and take their 

leadership duties seriously as members of various councils. 

• Nearly all pupils have an excellent attitude towards their learning. 

• Nearly all are enthusiastic in lessons and work diligently for extended periods when 

completing their activities. 

• Nearly all pupils show obvious pride in their Welshness and very positive attitudes towards 

the Welsh language. 

 

3. Teaching and Learning: 

• Teachers provide a stimulating and imaginative curriculum that develops pupils’ skills very 

successfully across the areas of learning. 

• Nearly all pupils, including those who are eligible for free school meals, make good 

progress or better in their learning. 

• The school promotes Welshness highly effectively through a wide range of rich activities 

for pupils to learn about Welsh history and culture and use the Welsh language at every 

opportunity. 

 

4. Care, guidance and support 

• The quality of care, support and guidance that are provided by the school is excellent, 

and has a very positive effect on pupils’ standards and wellbeing. 

• The school has very strong links with its community and takes full advantage of its support 

• Opportunities that pupils are given to develop their creative and expressive arts skills are 

an excellent feature. 

 

5. Leadership: 

• The headteacher provides innovative, strong and caring leadership. 

• Leaders share a clear vision for the school, which focuses strongly on supporting pupils’ 

wellbeing, and developing ambitious and confident learners within a Welsh environment. 

This vision is shared very successfully with all stakeholders. 

• The school has excellent pedagogical partnerships with Welsh-medium schools in south 

east Wales. 

For comparative purposes, an overview of Estyn outcomes for the nearest Welsh-Medium and 

3 English Medium primaries has been included: 

Page 45



 
 

 

Name of 

school 

Date of 

inspection 

Inspection 

pre/post revised 

framework 

Judgements 

Ysgol Gymraeg 

Cwm Derwen 

June 2015 Pre-revised 

framework 

School’s current performance: good 
Prospects for improvement: good 
 
Standards: good 
Wellbeing: adequate 
Learning experiences: good 
Teaching: good 
Care, guidance and support: good 
Learning environment: good 
 
Leadership: good 
Improving quality: good 
Partnership working: good 
Resource management: good 
 

Abercarn 

Primary 

November 

2017 

Post revised 

framework 

Standards: good 
Wellbeing and attitudes to learning: good 
Teaching: good 
Care, guidance and support: good 
Leadership: good 
 

Cwmcarn 

Primary 

May 2017 Pre-revised 

framework 

School’s current performance: adequate 
Prospects for improvement: good 
 
Standards: adequate 
Wellbeing: adequate 
Learning experiences: good 
Teaching: good 
Care, guidance and support: good 
Learning environment: good 
 
Leadership: good 
Improving quality: good 
Partnership working: good 
Resource management: adequate 
 

Waunfawr 

Primary 

March 

2017 

Pre-revised 

framework 

School’s current performance: good 
Prospects for improvement: good 
 
Standards: good 
Wellbeing: good 
Learning experiences: good 
Teaching: good 
Care, guidance and support: good 
Learning environment: good 
 
Leadership: good 
Improving quality: good 
Partnership working: good 
Resource management: good 

Page 46



 
 

 

 
Consideration of the potential impact of the proposal on quality and standards is aligned with the 
Estyn Inspection framework.  Considering the findings in the published report, it is not expected 
that any of the inspection areas will be adversely affected.  Indeed, the information outlined in 
the proposal will indicate how the school can continue to develop and build on their current 
excellent practice.  Throughout the transition period, the school will continue to receive 
appropriate support and challenge from the local authority and school improvement service to 
ensure that standards, wellbeing and attitudes to learning, teaching and learning, care, guidance 
and support and leadership retain their current effectiveness. 
 

➢ Governance Arrangements and School Categorisation  
 

There are no anticipated changes to school governance arrangements at Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm 

Gwyddon as a result of this proposal. The governing body will continue in its current form.   

The National School Categorisation system provides a useful picture in identifying the schools 
that need the most help, support and guidance to improve. The system has been developed 
collectively between regional education consortia and Welsh Government.  Historically, the 
school has been identified as a ‘green’ school, therefore, requiring limited levels of support to 
self-improve. 
 
It should be noted that due to the current Covid-19 pandemic, national categorisation has been 
suspended from September 2020.  However, support is available to schools that require 
additional intervention and guidance. 

 

 

➢ Staff Matters 

 
School staff play an important role in ensuring pupils are learning in a safe and 
supportive learning environment. They can foster positive, trusting relationships with pupils and 
improve the school climate by encouraging parent and family involvement in education. 
 
By forging strong relationships, staff can affect virtually every aspect of their pupils’ lives, 
teaching them the important life lessons that will help them succeed beyond just academia. 
It is not always easy to change a pupil’s life, which is why it takes a great teacher to do so. 
 

The Council recognises that retaining the experience and support of the existing staff cohort at 
the school will support pupils through a period of transition.  This proposal will not look to make 
any reductions in the current arrangements, quite the opposite.  This proposal supports the 
potential to expand provision, breadth of knowledge accessible to the pupils and encourage 
workforce development through the sharing of best practice. 

 

 

➢ Financial Matters 
 

Funding has already been set aside for the Council’s share of the capital costs of the project. 
The recurrent (revenue) costs will be considered as part of budget planning moving forward. Any 
additional costs or savings will be factored into the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

Caerphilly CBC Members have already agreed to set aside an earmarked reserve for the 
Council’s contribution to capital costs associated with the Authority’s 21st Century Band B 

Page 47



 
 

 

proposals. The value of this reserve is currently £6.975m. Cabinet has agreed to allocate 
£5.766m from this reserve to support two Band B Projects, the Cwm Gwyddon proposal being 
one of these (Cabinet 10th July 2019 / Cabinet 22nd July 2020) 

At this point in time no capital receipts or recurrent cost savings have been identified to support 
the progression of these Projects. Funds have already been identified and earmarked for the 
Council’s share of the capital costs of the Projects.  

 

Whilst there is an initial increased cost identified as part of the initial expansion of provision, it is 
envisaged that better strategic Management of the school estate and reduced backlog 
maintenance will support the sustainable schools agenda.  In addition, the existing school 
premises will be declared surplus to requirements by the Local Education Authority and in turn 
could produce a Capital Receipt that would help support future strategic plans. 

 

 
➢ Impact on Welsh Language Provision 

The First Minister’s programme for Government 2016-2021 Taking Wales Forward, is working 
towards one million people speaking the Welsh language by 2050.  
 
The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011, the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 
Act 2013 and the Legislation (Wales) Act 2019, provides a series of standards and places a 
statutory duty on the Council to assess the demand for Welsh medium education in the area.  
One of the key standards is a requirement to develop a 5 year Welsh language strategy, with 
the aim of increasing the number of Welsh speakers and which will enable us to facilitate the 
use of the Welsh Language within the county borough.    
 
The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan sets out Caerphilly’s commitment to the Promotion of 
Welsh language and the provision of quality, attractive educational facilities.  Within the WESP 
we are striving to stimulate demand for Welsh medium education, which we know is more 
sustainable for families if education provision is expanded in line with childcare available.   
 
One of the objectives of the WESP is. 
 

“To identify funding in Band B of 21st Century Schools programme, for the development 

of sufficient Welsh medium places in areas where they are coming under pressure, in 

particular Bedwas Trethomas Machen area, and the Islwyn East area.” 

The Cwm Gwyddon proposal falls within the Islwyn East area which has been highlighted as an 
area for development.  In order to contribute to the Welsh Government target of one million Welsh 
speakers by 2050, there is significant importance in improving provision in Welsh medium 
childcare and education, as well as working in partnership with community based groups or 
organisations to continue the use of conversational Welsh socially or in the workplace following 
the end of formal education. Without the continued use of Welsh there is a risk young people 
from English speaking households may lose confidence in their Welsh language skills. 
 
We will aim to stimulate and provide local, accessible, sustainable, community-focused provision 
to meet the growing demand for Welsh medium education. 
 
 
Under Section 105(7) of the Education Act 2002 – “A Welsh speaking school is a school where 
more than half of the following subjects are taught wholly or partly in Welsh – a) Religious 

Page 48



 
 

 

Education, and b) The subjects other than English and Welsh which are foundation subjects in 
relation to pupils at the school. 

 

➢ Learner Travel Arrangements 

All Councils have a statutory duty under Section 10 of the Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 
to promote access to education and training through the medium of Welsh.  There are 11 Welsh 
Medium Primary Schools spread geographically throughout the Borough and 10 English Medium 
Schools within the catchment area of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon. 
 
The proposal will seek to create a new and enhanced facility through the relocation of Ysgol 
Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon to the former Cwmcarn High site which is less than 1 mile from the 
existing school site.  
 
It is anticipated that the likely effect of different travelling arrangements as a result of the proposal 
will be minimal, although it is acknowledged that some pupils may find themselves living closer 
to the new school site and conversely others finding themselves further away although the 
difference between the two sites is minimal. 
 

Caerphilly complies with the requirements of the Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 through 
providing transport to Welsh medium schools for pupils of statutory school age in accordance 
with our individual transport policy. Caerphilly’s transport policy is more generous than the 
legislative requirement by providing transport to the ‘relevant’ school (i.e. catchment or nearest 
school) of more than a distance of 1.5 miles primary and 2 miles secondary.  

The table below details the nearest available alternatives: 
 

Nearest 
Alternative 

Medium Condition  Distance / 
Travel 

 

Ysgol Gymraeg 
Cwm Derwen, 
NP12 0JL 
 

Welsh C+ More than 
5 miles 

Abercarn 
Primary School, 
NP11 5LH 
 

English B+ 1.8 miles 

Cwmcarn 
Primary, NP11 
7LZ 
 

English C+ 0.7 miles 

Waunfawr 
Primary, NP11 
7PG 
 

English B 1.5 miles 

 

➢ Equalities 

The Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we will 
work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and mutual respect 
within and between our communities. 

Page 49



 
 

 

Impact assessments help us to show that the council has due regard in the exercise of its equality 
duty under the Equality Act 2010. They are a tool we use to ensure the policies, practices, 
projects and activities which shape our work are ensuring equal access to all our services.  

Impact assessments  look at whether changes to how we do things (like working practices or 
ways we deliver services) are likely to have a positive or negative impact on the people we serve 
and on those who deliver our services. They help us to plan to reduce or remove negative impact 
– for example by making reasonable changes to how a group receives a service (perhaps 
providing information in a different format or providing ramped access into a building etc.).  

A full Equalities and Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been undertaken.  This document 

is available to view a part of the consultation pack on the website.  

In addition, in line with the recommendations of the School Organisational Code 2018, a 

Community Impact Assessment has been undertaken (as per below) : 

School Organisation Code 2018  

Please provide information regarding … 

 

Community Impact Assessment 

• Proportion of pupils from the catchment 
area that attend the school 

 

94.94% as of January 2020 

• Proportion of pupils from outside the 
catchment area that attend the school 

5.06% as of January 2020 

 

• Any other facilities the school 
accommodates e.g. youth club/play group 

 

The school currently accommodates Cylch 
Meithrin and Clwb Meithrin & Clwb Carco 

• Any other facilities or services the school 
provides e.g. after school clubs, 
community library 

 

The school currently supports a handful of 
community groups including Welsh classes, 
Mother and Toddler sessions and an ICT 
class 

• If accommodation, facilities or services 
are provided by a school, where they 
would be provided in the event of closure; 

 

The new site would look to continue to 
support the current activities on sites at 
Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon with an 
enhanced facility being constructed within 1 
mile of current site.  

 

• Whether other facilities available in the 
immediate local or wider community will 
or could be enhanced in the event of a 
school closure  

 

The proposal is to relocate the school. Whilst 
the proposal is not linked to a closure of the 
school, it is acknowledged that current 
groups using the site may not wish to travel.  
In such instances, the local community have 
access to Abercarn Library and the local 
Village Hall as alternative venues. 

 

• Facilities and services provided at any 
alternative school 

The proposal withstanding, the next Welsh 
medium Primary school within proximity of 
the area is Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Derwen.  
The 3 closest English Medium schools are 
Cwmcarn Primary, Abercarn Primary, and 
Waunfawr Primary.  These schools are able 

Page 50



 
 

 

to accommodate groups/afterschool clubs 
although they are not specifically built for 
community usage and will require negotiation 
with Head Teacher on site.   

• The distance and travelling time involved 
in attending an alternative school of the 
same language category 

The next nearest Welsh medium primary 
school within the Authority is Ysgol Cwm 
Derwen.  Based on information gained from 
Googlemaps, Ysgol Cwm Derwen is 5 miles 
away from Ysgol Cwm Gwyddon which 
approximates a car journey of 10 minutes or 
a  bus journey of 40 minutes based on 
available public transport routes. 

 

• How parents’ and pupils’ engagement 
with the alternative school and any 
facilities it may offer could be supported 
(e.g. how pupils (and particularly any less 
advantaged pupils) will be helped to 
participate in after school activities) 

With reference to any out of hours activity, 
the onus is on the parents as these are 
classed as non-statutory hours and the 
Council is under no legal obligation to 
support these.  However, the Authority does 
have a pro-active Youth Team who would be 
able to provide additional advice for families 
who require additional support.   
 

• Impact on health and wellbeing  The Council supports the Active Travel 
initiative in providing safe routes to the new 
school site to encourage pupils to walk/cycle 
to school.  For those less able, the new 
facility will also provide improved access and 
internal space to encourage independence 
for pupils to remain active and engaged. 
 

• Any wider implications the changes would 
have on public transport provisions 

A minimal impact is anticipated as the new 
location is within 1 mile of the current site 
and the existing public transport routes would 
be utilised for example the 151 bus.  
 

• Wider community safety issues These issues will be looked at as part of the 
Planning Application process.  Further 
information on where to access this 
information is referenced earlier in this 
document 
 

 

➢ Specialist Facilities / Additional Learning Needs 

 

A key responsibility of the Council is to ensure that there are sufficient pupil places in the most 

appropriate locations and maintain an awareness of demographic changes (i.e increases and 

decreases in the pupil population).  The Council is also required to identify an authority-wide 

strategy for community provision in schools, as well as specialist provision for pupils with Special 

Educational Needs (SEN) or disabilities.  The new school will be built in accordance with Building 

Bulletin 99 framework.  The key design criteria will aim to ensure the facilities are appropriate 

and usable for present and future circumstances. 
Page 51



 
 

 

The Council has a responsibility to review SEN provision on a regular basis in line with the ALN 
and Tribunal Act.  Information shows that the numbers of children with needs requiring specialist 
provision are increasing.  The Council is committed to ensuring that all learners have equality of 
opportunity and recognise the right of all children and young people to receive high quality 
education. The Council is also committed to the principle of keeping children close to home 
wherever possible. Future proofing provision within the county is therefore essential.  
 
These developments will make a significant contribution to the Council approach to the ALN 
reform.  The Council focus is on ensuring that children with ALN across all schools in the borough 
have their needs met with appropriate provision in place in mainstream or more specialist 
settings.  The approach includes the development of a workforce that has the appropriate skills 
and training opportunities to meet needs and promoting collaborative working with other 
agencies.  

 

 
➢ Community Impact and Community Benefit 

 

Community Impact 

 
‘The Cwricwlwm Cymreig is at the heart of the school’s work programme and provision for 
developing the Welsh language is promoted very effectively. The wide range of extra-curricular 
activities that are provided helps pupils to develop a number of key personal and social skills 
well’ – Estyn 2013.  However, the report fails to mention that many of the extra-curricular activities 
take place off site which has implications on the school budget with the cost of rental and 
transport.  For example, the size of the hall is limiting to the point that school concerts are often 
accommodated at a local Memorial Hall and as there are no specialist facilities for sports 
activities, the school buses the pupils to a nearby location for sports day.   
 
Where possible, the current school encourages use by the community, but this is restricted by 
the access and facilities on offer to a handful of Welsh classes, Mother and Toddler sessions 
and an ICT class.   
 
The proposed project will take into account the desire to encourage and facilitate community use 
of the asset. To this end the design process will seek to include measures to enable safe ‘zoning’ 
of parts of the new school building, including the hall and a multi-functional classroom compliant 
space which could be adapted for use.  The usage of sporting facilities will also be considered 
for the community at suitable times in keeping with the curriculum timetable.  It will also 
strengthen and safeguard the promotion of the Welsh language, Culture and Heritage within the 
Community.    
 
As outlined in the Community Impact Assessment, it is envisaged that a number of the current 
activities that the school supports the community in undertaking will continue at the new venue.  
For groups unable to travel the additional distance, the Council will mitigate lost usage of school 
by providing facilities at the local library based in the community or look at supporting alternative 
venues where appropriate. 
 
 

Community Benefit 

Projects include Community Benefits as a Core Requirement and will therefore be scored as part 

of the Quality evaluation. It sets out a number of targets around local targeted recruitment & 

training, supply chains, community & education initiatives and environmental matters such as 
Page 52



 
 

 

minimising waste and reducing energy consumption. Protecting habitats, biodiversity and 

reducing pollution is a matter of course throughout the contract period and relevant surveys have 

already been undertaken and included within the procurement documentation. 

 

 

 

 

What are the Benefits of the proposal? 

 
 

➢ Benefits 

The principal benefits of the scheme are as follows: 

 

• Provides an ‘all-new’ school for 420 pupils plus nursery, SRB and Childcare provision 

• Relocation of school from an existing 60+ year old premises with substantive restraints 

• Provision of energy efficient facility 

• Modern state of the art classrooms 

• New catering facility and flexible hall 

• New outdoor activity facility 

• Modern flagship facility for Welsh-medium education in Caerphilly 

• Space maximisation through reconfiguration of site  

• A stimulating environment to deliver high quality learner outcomes 

• Community Use 
 

The proposed new Welsh-medium school will provide a new fit for purpose replacement 
primary facility with Childcare, SRB, Nursery, Rising Threes and main school classrooms, 
main assembly hall, food technology space, a library and IT space.  It will also offer external 
play areas and access to a grass pitch. The new building will provide accommodation and 
ensure equality of access by promoting and supporting the development and delivery of 
inclusive education through delivery of the full curriculum to pupils in a modern, safe and 
inspiring learning environment. 
 

➢ Disbenefits 

 
The principal disbenefits of the scheme are as follows: 

 

• Travel times may change for a minority of pupils dependent on their proximity to the 
new school location 

• Community usage and accessibility of alternative provision for groups using the 
existing site needs to be supported and new site will offer enhanced facilities 

• Removing an embedded school from a community into a different area albeit within 
less than 1 mile of the existing school site 

• There will be a period of transition for the pupils and appropriate support for ‘Settling 
in’ will require consideration 

• The current piece of land will need to be decommissioned and disposed of in line with 
appropriate guidelines 

Page 53



 
 

 

• It is anticipated there will be minimal impact on other schools through a managed and 
phased capacity increase 

 
➢ Risks 

 
Risks will be managed pro-actively in accordance with our risk management procedures.  The 

programme makes an allowance for a risk contingency to cover unforeseen events, having 

regard to the results of the optimism bias assessments. 

The Council recognises the risks associated with construction procurement. 
The principal risks of the delivery of the scheme are identified as follows: 
 
 

Risk Mitigating Factor 

 

Planning process (this is separate to this 
consultation document) 

The planning process will be managed by 
Property Services in line with legislative 
requirements 

 

Impact of any planning conditions on cost Full Tender process will be undertaken 

 

Sufficiency of funding to deliver scope including 
abnormals 

Contingency planning will form part of the 
tender process 

 

Availability of resources/ contractors The South East & Mid Wales 
Collaborative Construction Framework 
(SEWSCAP) framework will be accessed 

 

Rising costs due to regional supply/demand 
dynamic 

Will be managed through contingency 
planning 

 

Design development In house architect service will be 
accessed 

 

Adverse weather conditions Factored into project management 
timelines 

 

Sufficiency of Utilities services Factored into project management 
timelines 

 

Project Governance and decision making Full Project Board will be established 

 

Benefits realisation (meeting end user 
requirements) 

Factored into consultation and 
procurement process 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 
 

 

➢ Alternative options that have been discounted 

The following options were considered and scored: - 

Option Description 

 

Option 1  

 

Do Nothing 

Option 2  

 
Refurbish existing school which has already met the 60-year life expectancy 

Option 3  

 

Build new school same size school on the existing site 

Option 4  

 

Build a new school, same size school on a new site with childcare   

Option 5  

 

Build a new, larger school on a new site with nursery, childcare and Special 
Resource Base 

 

Each option was initially discussed between a selection of Council Officers from across multiple-

departments and then a score allocated to each option against the following Critical Success 

Factors: 

• Building Bulletin compliant school 

• Low carbon, low energy eco-friendly environment 

• Building suited to local environment and acceptable to planning Authority 

• Education facility that is acceptable to stakeholders 

• Delivered within budget and within required timescales 

• Agreement of the proposal by Welsh Government 

 

As well as considering the Critical Success Factors, the Officers also considered the Strategic 

Fit, Educational Fit, Accessibility, Financial Fit and Environmental Impact as key Investment 

Objectives. 

The Investment Objectives were weighted based on the current priority areas for the Council.  

Priority Investment areas were given a 5 (High) to 1 (Low).   

Each option was then scored against the criteria outlined above 

5 exceeds the criteria 

4 meets the criteria 

3 neither meets/does not meet the criteria 

2 partially meets the criteria, and, 

1 does not meet the criteria 

 

 

 

Page 55



 
 

 

The score was then multiplied by the weighting for each section and an overall total for each 

option. 

 

Option Score 

 

Option 1 – Do Nothing  

 

30 

Option 2 – Refurbish existing school which has already met the 60-year life 
expectancy 

 

43 

Option 3 - Build new school same size school on the existing site 

 

81 

Option 4 - Build a new school, same size school on a new site with childcare   

 

94 

Option 5 - Build a new, larger school on a new site with nursery, childcare and 
Special Resource Base 

 

105 

 

The outcome of the options analysis resulted in the highest 2 scoring options being taken forward 

to a shortlist, where the benefits if the options were considered. The tables below illustrate this 

based on comparative analysis: 

 

Option 4 - Build a new school, same size school on a new site with childcare   

➢ A new school offering high quality, modern educational facilities fit for the 21st Century. 
➢ Meeting the recommendations of BB 99 
➢ Potential to achieve better educational outcomes for pupils currently at the school through 

enhancing their learning environment. 
➢ Improved access to outdoor learning facilities 
➢ Improved school building and facilities. The project will deliver a school building that will be 

more energy efficient, reduce the backlog maintenance and ensure compliance with 
Equality Act 2010. 

 

Option 4 

Build a new school, same size school on a new site with childcare 

BENEFITS DISBENEFITS 

 

• Addresses long term issues of pupils 
being taught in temporary 
accommodation that are graded C/D 
for suitability and providing a long term 
solution 

• Reduction in maintenance and on-
going running costs 

• Provides adequate and equitable 
teaching and childcare environment to 

 

• New build to be located on site 0.8 
miles from existing school site, 
however given the catchment area 
there will also be children who would 
now reside closer to the new build. 

• New build would be unable to 
accommodate childcare provision, 
SRB and Community Use  

• Unable to achieve the targets 
Page 56



 
 

 

meet Building Bulletin requirements. 

• Improved accessibility 

• Improves the outside learning space  

• Improve the learning outcomes for 
pupils  

• Provides a stimulating teaching and 
learning environment with 21st 
Century facilities including improved 
ICT facilities, centred on the learning, 
self-esteem and well-being of all 
pupils and improve lifelong learning 
opportunities for members of the 
community to strengthen and 
safeguard the promotion of the Welsh 
language, culture and heritage across 
Caerphilly East. 

identified in the WESP 

• Unable to accommodate expansion of 
pupil numbers 

 

 

 

 

Option 5 - Build a new, larger school on a new site with nursery, childcare and Special 

Resource Base 

➢ A new school offering high quality, modern educational facilities fit for the 21st Century. 
➢ Meeting the recommendations of BB 99 
➢ Potential to achieve better educational outcomes for pupils currently at the school through 

enhancing their learning environment. 
➢ Improved access to outdoor learning facilities 
➢ Improved school building and facilities. The project will deliver a school building that will be 

more energy efficient, reduce the backlog maintenance and ensure compliance with 
Equality Act 2010.  

➢ Increase childcare provision to enable the delivery of wrap around, after school and holiday 
provision with a view to improving transition rates within Welsh medium between childcare 
provision and the foundation phase  

➢ Increase in Welsh Medium learners by the expansion of Education and Childcare provision 
to support CCBC in meeting WG target of one million Welsh speakers by 2050. 

➢ Facility with an ability to meet community need. 

 

 

Option 5 

Build a new, larger school on a new site with nursery, childcare and Special Resource Base 

BENEFITS DISBENEFITS 

• Addresses long term issues of pupils 
being taught in temporary 
accommodation that are graded D for 
suitability and providing a long term 
solution 

• Permanent school building could 
attract more pupils 

• No disruption to daily operations of 
existing school during building phase 

• New build to be located on site 0.8 
miles from existing school site, 
however given the catchment area 
there will also be children who would 
now reside closer to the new build. 

 

Page 57



 
 

 

• Reduction in maintenance and on-
going running costs 

• Increase in capacity within a strategic 
allowance   

• Complies with all National and Local 
policies 

• Support WG objective of having 1 
million Welsh speakers by 2050 

• Caters for the Educational needs and 
preferences of the Local Community 
and provide and provide sufficient, 
permanent, fit for purpose and 
sustainable accommodation. 

• Provides adequate and equitable 
teaching and childcare environment to 
meet Building Bulletin requirements. 

• Improved accessibility 

• Improves the outside learning space  

• Improve the learning outcomes for 
pupils  

• Facilitates the establishment of 
additional childcare provision by 
providing appropriate facilities to serve 
the community. 

• Provides a stimulating teaching and 
learning environment with 21st 
Century facilities including improved 
ICT facilities, centred on the learning, 
self-esteem and well-being of all 
pupils and improve lifelong learning 
opportunities for members of the 
community to strengthen and 
safeguard the promotion of the Welsh 
language, culture and heritage across 
Caerphilly East 

• SRB established and ALN needs met 

 

 

Taking the appraisals together delivers the conclusion that the new build replacement 
schemes provide the best balance of costs, benefits and risks, with the remodel and limited 
rebuild options offering poor value for money and high risk.  Consequently, Option 5 is 
confirmed as the preferred option for the Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 58



 
 

 

 

 

Next Steps 

 
 

➢ Consultation Period and key dates 

 

The formal consultation process begins on Monday 14th September 2020  

This consultation document is available electronically on the Council website.  For further 

information, please visit: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

 

A Children and Young People’s Everyday Summary Version of this consultation has also been 

produced.  Both this and the full version are available via the Caerphilly County Borough Council 

website and printed copies are also available on request. 

If you would like this information in any other format, for example large print, or help with 

interpretation in a different language, please contact us on 01443 864817 so that the necessary 

arrangements can be made to provide this service.   

The closing date for responses to this consultation is midnight on Monday 26th October 

2020 

Unfortunately, we will not be able to consider any responses received after this date. 

 

 

➢ Statutory Notices, Reporting and Decision Making 
 

Following consultation, Caerphilly’s Cabinet will receive a Consultation Report which will outline 
the proposal and all the comments received from the public during the consultation period.  At 
this stage, the members can decide whether to proceed with the proposal, make changes to the 
proposal or not to proceed with the proposal. 
 

Should Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, a Statutory Notice will be published 

providing a 28 day notice period for objections.  The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 

Act 2013 provides that anyone wishing to make objections to a school organisation proposal has 

the opportunity to do so.  To be considered as statutory objections, objections must be made in 

writing and sent to the Council within the 28-day period. 

Cabinet will then consider the outcome of the Statutory Notice at a future meeting and determine 

whether to implement the proposal having given due consideration to all the information 

provided. 

In the event of objections, the Council will publish an objection report providing a summary of the 

objections and Cabinet’s response to those objections within 7 days or the day of the 

determination of the proposal.  This report will be available for all persons to view on the Council 

website and paper copies will be available on request. 

Page 59

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

Should Cabinet approve the proposal, a full Business Case will be submitted to the Welsh 

Minister for final approval and the works will commence. 

 

 

➢ Have your say 

 
Your views matter and we want you to tell us what you think about the changes we have 

proposed in this document.  We would like you to consider the information contained within the 

document and to hear your views as to whether or not you support the proposal.  All views are 

welcomed in support of or opposed to the proposal.  This is your chance to ask questions and 

make comments that will be considered when the Council decides how to proceed. 

For further information, please visit: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

 

For this proposal, we will be undertaking a paper consultation exercise.  Due to the current 

implications of COVID-19 we will refrain from undertaking any face-to-face consultation sessions 

to support social distancing and maintain safe working practices for all. 

If you would like to comment on the proposal, you can do this by: 

o Completing the online response form on the Council’s website 

o Complete a response pro forma attached to this document and return it to the 21st Century 

School Team at Caerphilly 

o Email your comments to the 21st Century Schools Team at Caerphilly 

 

Page 60

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

 

 

Please note that we are only able to receive comments in writing, either via the online form, pro 

forma or via email.  You must include your full name and postal address as part of the information 

provided. 

 

 

 

 

Supporting Information 

 
 

➢ Frequently Asked Questions 

 

The Council and the 21st Century Schools Team have a history of delivering innovative and 
transformational projects as part of the Band A 21st Century Schools Programme and beyond. 

 

From the 21st September until the 28th September, the 21st Century Schools Team will be 

collating a list of your queries in the form of an ‘Frequently Asked Questions’ document that will 

be updated at the end of that week and posted on the website. 

 

➢ Feedback Form 
 

 

Page 61



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Here in Caerphilly we have bold ambitions to provide every learner with the best life chances 
and we are committed to doing this through the provision of high-quality teaching and learning 
environments as part of our 21st Century Schools programme. 
 
In some cases, schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended, or partially rebuilt 
to meet the standards needed for contemporary teaching and learning. However, some existing 
schools are no longer in the right place or meet pupil demand. In such cases we might propose 
new schools or changes to existing schools. 
 
 

 

 
The Council wishes to make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a Maintained school. 

 

This response relates to: 

The Relocation of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon to a new 

purpose-built Welsh-medium provision school to be situated 

at the former Cwmcarn High School site 

 

The closing date for responses is 26th October 2020. 

 

It is recommended that you read the background information before completing this 

questionnaire. 

   

You can also visit our website and complete the survey online by going to: 
 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools 
 

 

                        21st Century Schools Consultation Document 2020 

YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM GWYDDON 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 62

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

We are collecting this information as part of our obligation under the Welsh Government’s School 

Organisation Code (November 2018).   

How  we use your personal information:  

The information you provide will used by the service area relevant to the consultation / survey 

within Caerphilly County Borough Council. Views expressed will be collated together and used 

to produce a summary report.  Depending on scope / nature of the survey / consultation, the 

summary report will be used to evaluate and remodel services / priorities etc. We will not keep 

your views in in a way that will identify you for longer than is necessary. 

You have a number of rights in relation to the information we hold about you, including the right 

of access to your information and the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your 

information is processed. For further information on how we process the information and your 

rights please follow this link:  

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-

Surveys.aspx 

 

About You: 
 

I am responding to this survey as: 
 

A Pupil  ☐  A Parent  ☐ A Staff Member   ☐ A School Governor ☐  

of the school affected by this proposal / or  

An Elected Member    ☐     Other (please give details)     

 

 

Print Name:    
 

Address: 
 

Postcode:                                             E-mail:  
  

 
 
All Consultation Documentation will be made available on the Council’s website.   
If you wish to be notified of the publication of the consultation report using the email provided, 

please tick here:   ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that all comments made as part of this consultation will be considered by Cabinet as part of 

the first phase of the process.  Formal Responses can only be registered following the publication of a 

statutory notice. Full details of the Consultation Process can be found in the full Consultation Document. 

 
 

 

Page 63

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx


 
 

 

Your views matter.  
Please complete this questionnaire and return via post or email to: 
 

 
 
 
Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views about the proposal: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other ☐ 
 

I support the proposal ☐ 
 

I do not support the proposal ☐ 

 

Please provide your comments on the proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 64



 
 

 

Equalities Monitoring:  
 

Are you … Male                                              ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

Female                                          ☐  

Other (please write in) 

 

Age Under 16                                       ☐ 40-65                                            ☐ 

16-25                                            ☐ Over 65                                         ☐ 

26-39                                            ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

 

Disability I am not Disabled                          ☐ Learning Difficulties                      ☐ 

Physical / Mobility Impaired          ☐ Visually Impaired                          ☐ 

Hearing Impaired                          ☐ Speech Impaired                          ☐ 

Other (please write in) 

 

Welsh Language 

Skills 

 A Little Moderately Quite Well Fluently 

Speak ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Understand ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Read  ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Write ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

No Welsh Language Skills         ☐ Unwilling to Declare           ☐ 

 

 

If you feel that your response to this survey has been influenced (positively or negatively) 

because of any of the following: your ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, 

disability, gender reassignment, religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or 

other languages, nationality or responsibility for any dependents, please give details below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 66



21st Century Schools – Consultation Children and Young People’s Summary

YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM GWYDDON
14th September– 26th October 2020

Document 3 of 5

P
age 67



What we’ll talk about:

• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

• What is the project being proposed?

• Who else are we talking with?

• How can you tell us what you think?

• Why is it important for us to know your views?

• Why do we want to carry out the project?

• Will other schools be affected?

• How will the project impact on things like…

✓ Education and Quality 

✓ Governance and Staffing

✓ Finance

✓ Welsh Language 

✓ Travel and the Environment

✓ Equalities

✓ Specialist Facilities and Additional Learning Needs

✓ The Community

• What will the benefits and disadvantages be?

• Are there any risks?

• Why this project and not something else?

• How long are we gathering views?

• What will happen next?

Hi, I’m Vision and this is 

my dog K9-2.1

We’re here to talk to you 

about an exciting project 

and we want to know what 

you think!

P
age 68



Introduction
• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

✓ Caerphilly Council wants to improve school conditions to raise standards and give 

every child the best possible start in life.

✓ Sometimes schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended or a new 

school built entirely.

✓ The 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme is a partnership between the 

Council and Welsh Government. 

P
age 69



Introduction
• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

✓ Caerphilly has its own team who bid for money to invest in schools like   

they’ve already done for:

Islwyn High

Idris Davies 3-18

Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Rhymni – Y Gwyndy

Newbridge School

Blackwood Comprehensive

Trinity Fields 

✓ £56.5 million already spent in Band A of the programme between 2014  

and 2019.  This proposal would be part of a new Band B programme

✓ Band B is focusing on:

➢ reducing the number of poor condition schools

➢ ensuring we have the right size schools in the right location

➢ providing enough places to deliver Welsh and English medium 

education

➢ ensuring the effective and efficient use of schools

Here’s a photo of 
the new  Islwyn 
High, one of the 

Band A projects the 
Council delivered

P
age 70



Introduction
• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

‘Woof!’ These 
photos are some 
examples of what 
has been achieved

P
age 71



Introduction • What is the project being proposed?

The Council are proposing to:

➢ Relocate Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon to a new specially 

built school where the former Cwmcarn High School used to 

be.   (It’s less than a mile from the current school)

➢ The new site will also have facilities for Childcare, Nursery and a 

Special Resource Base

➢ The new school will have more space so that up to 420 pupils can 

go to school there

➢ There will be new classrooms, ICT and outdoor play areas

➢ The school will still be a Welsh speaking school and will also be 

available for use by the local community

P
age 72



Consultation • Who else are we talking with?

✓ The Council has to follow a piece of legislation produced by the Welsh Government called the 

School Organisation Code 2018 when they want to make any changes to a school.  

✓ This proposal falls under the heading called making a ‘Regulated Alteration to a maintained school’

✓ The Code says that the Council has to write to a number of groups (by letter or email) and tell them about 

what they would like to do, this includes:

➢ Parents

➢ Pupils

➢ Headteachers, Staff and Governors of the schools affected

➢ Other neighbouring Local Authorities

➢ The Welsh Minister

➢ Local Town and Community Councils

➢ ESTYN

✓ There is a formal consultation process that must be followed and a Consultation 

Document must be published in both hardcopy and electronic version

✓ The full process is explained in the full Consultation Document
More information can be found here: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools

P
age 73

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


Consultation
• How can you tell us what you think?

• Why is it important for us to know your views?

✓ There are several ways to tell the Council what you think –

➢ Completing the online response form on the Council’s website

➢ Complete a response pro forma attached to the Consultation Document and return it to the 21st Century School Team at Caerphilly

➢ Email your comments to the 21st Century Schools Team   21stCenturySchools@caerphilly.gov.uk

✓ The Closing date for responses to this consultation is midnight on Monday 26th October 2020

✓ Your views matter and we welcome any in support or opposed to the proposal. 

This is your change to ask questions and make comments that will be considered when the Council decides    

how to proceed.

✓ The 21st Century Schools Team will be meeting with the School Council.  The voice of young people in the 

development, delivery, management and improvement of their education is at the heart of everything.

P
age 74

mailto:21stCenturySchools@caerphilly.gov.uk


Proposal • Background

✓ Ysgol Gymaeg Cwm Gwyddon is one of 11 Welsh 

Medium Primary Schools in the Borough

✓ It provides Welsh medium education

✓ It caters for pupils from ages 3-11

✓ At present the school has 260 pupils on roll with more 

expected

✓ There is no capacity of space to expand the current 

building configuration

P
age 75



Proposal • Why do we want to carry out the project?

Planning of School Places Condition and Suitability Master Plan

The Council must provide enough school 

spaces for pupils:

➢ There are about 260 pupils 

attending school at Cwm 

Gwyddon even though the 

original school was designed to 

have 80 with more applying

➢ The Council knows that there is  

demand for Welsh 

Primary Schools in the 

Borough and is                                 

supporting the Welsh

Government’s

Cymraeg 2050 agenda

The Council must ensure that schools are 

fit for purpose:

➢ The current Cwm Gwyddon 

School was built around 1890

➢ We know that the hall isn’t big 

enough at lunch times and for 

P.E, plus there isn’t much 

outdoor space for playing

➢ The top floor is difficult for 

everyone to access

➢ The Condition Survey rates the 

school as a ‘C’

➢ It costs a lot to keep the school 

running ‘backlog maintenance’

The Council has a Regeneration Strategy 

for the Caerphilly area:

➢ Supporting People – reducing 

inequality and creating healthier, 

prosperous, cohesive 

communities

➢ Supporting Business – creating 

employment opportunities

➢ Supporting Quality of Life –

providing the right physical 

environments

➢ Connecting People and Places –

improving connectivity 

P
age 76



Other Schools? • Will other schools be affected?

✓ There are 11 Welsh Medium Primary 

Schools in the Borough

✓ Each school has its own catchment 

area.  If you live in that area you are 

eligible to attend that school subject 

to availability

✓ Within the Cwm Gwyddon School 

catchment area, there are also 10

English Medium Primary Schools

✓ Admission numbers will be managed 

to stimulate the demand for Welsh 

Medium without over developing it 

and impacting on other schools

✓ A balance will be struck by slowly 

increasing the number of pupils who 

can join the school over a 5 year 

period

Cwm Gwyddon’s Catchment Area is 

in the East of the Borough.

I’ll bring my ball

P
age 77



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Education and Quality 

✓ Quality and standards are monitored by Estyn and the Local Authority 

✓ Cwm Gwyddon had its last Estyn inspection in 2020

✓ During (and after) the proposal, the School will continue to receive ongoing advice 

and support from the local authority, school improvement service and any relevant 

stakeholders to help ensure that the school maintains effective leadership and 

provides high quality teaching and learning experiences.

Summary of ESTYN Judgements: Ysgol Cwm Gwyddon – inspected March 2020

IA1 – Standards IA2 – Wellbeing and

attitudes to learning

IA3 – Teaching and

learning experiences

IA4 – Care, support

and guidance

IA5 – Leadership and

management

Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent

P
age 78



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Governance and Staffing

✓ School staff play an important role in ensuring pupils are learning in 

a safe and supportive learning environment

✓ Good staff foster positive, trusting relationships with pupils and 

improve the school climate by encouraging parent and family 

involvement in education.

✓ The Council wants to retain the experience and support of the 

existing staff at the school

➢ No reductions in staffing levels are proposed

➢ There is potential to increase the number of staff 

✓ The Council wants to encourage workforce development through the 

sharing of best practice.

✓ The Governing Body of the School will also stay the same

P
age 79



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Finance

✓ The Council has already set aside funding for it’s share of the project 

(Capital costs)

✓ Any ongoing cost will be part of budget planning moving forward 

(Revenue costs)

✓ There is a reserve of £5.766 million to support the first 2 Band B 

projects

✓ Initial increased costs have been identified to expand the school on the 

new site but this will be offset by reduced Backlog Maintenance of the 

current school site

✓ The current school site will be declared surplus to requirements and 

could be sold off to get a Capital Receipt. The monies would then be 

reinvested in future schemes

P
age 80



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Welsh Language

✓ The Council has to follow a piece of legislation called the School 

Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 which places a duty 

on the Council to assess the demand for Welsh medium education in 

the area

✓ The Council has produced a 5 year strategy called the Welsh in 

Education Strategic Plan with the aim of increasing the number of 

Welsh Speakers by 2050

✓ The Caerphilly East area (where Cwm Gwyddon is) has been 

highlighted as an area for development to ensure there are enough 

Welsh medium places

✓ The Council also wants to work with the local community to support 

using Welsh socially and confidently

✓ The proposal aims to provide a local, accessible space for everyone to 

use Welsh 

P
age 81



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Travel and the Environment

✓ The Council has to follow a piece of legislation called the 

Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 and provide transport for pupils of  

statutory school age

✓ The Council’s Transport Policy helps pupils to get to their school (i.e nearest 

school) if they live more than 1.5 miles away from a Primary or 2 miles for a 

Secondary

✓ The proposed new site for the school is less than 1 mile away from the 

existing Cwm Gwyddon site.  Some pupils may find themselves closer to the 

new school, others further away

✓ The Council will carry out an assessment to help understand how this 

proposal will impact on the time it takes you to get to school

✓ To help the environment the Council will look at supporting safe walking 

routes and cycle paths into the school as well as drop-off zones

✓ The new building will also be low carbon and eco-friendly with the designs 

considering things like solar panels, automated lighting, special glazing, 

venting and enhanced outdoor spaces

P
age 82



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Equalities

✓ People have different needs, requirements and goals

✓ The Council is working to tackle discrimination and promote good relations and mutual 

respect within our communities

✓ Impact Assessments are a tool to show how projects and policies are ensuring equal 

access to all our services

✓ A full Equalities and Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been carried out

✓ In addition, a Community Impact Assessment has been undertaken looking:

• Proportion of catchment pupils

▪ Facilities and Services provided at the current school and what happens if they move

▪ Where are the next nearest alternative schools and how far away are they

▪ How to proposal would impact on health and wellbeing

▪ Any wider implications on transport and community safety

✓ The full version of the Community Impact Assessment can be found in the Full 

Consultation Document

To read all the Impact Assessments, visit: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools

P
age 83

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Specialist Facilities / Additional Learning Needs

✓ All learners have a right to equality of opportunity and high quality education

✓ The Council has a Strategy for providing specialist support for pupils with Special 

Education Needs or disabilities.

✓ A key principle is keeping children close to home where possible

✓ The number of children with needs requiring specialist provision is increasing

✓ This proposal will provide a Special Resource Base as part of the school to meet 

local need for our most vulnerable pupils

✓ The New building will be built to Building Bulletin 99 standard to ensure facilities 

are fit for all

✓ Training and development opportunities will be available for staff to work 

collaboratively

P
age 84



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ The Community

✓ Community Impact

➢ The design of the new school will enable safe ‘zoning’ of sections

➢ Community use will be encouraged to access the resources available i.e. Sports /Digital

➢ Activities in the current school will continue at the new site

➢ Any groups not wishing travel will be supported in finding alternative venues

✓ Community Benefit

➢ All 21st Century Schools Project have targets to support the community

➢ As part of the ‘quality’ score in the tender process the following are considered:

o Local recruitment and training

o Local suppliers

o Community and Education initiatives   i.e. demonstrations in schools

o Minimising waste, protecting habitats and biodiversity

P
age 85



What are the Benefits?

Benefits Disbenefits Risks

➢ New school with room for more 

pupils and other facilities

➢ No disruption to existing school 

day whilst building the new school

➢ Improved accessibility and energy 

efficiency

➢ Modern flagship school for Welsh-

medium education

➢ ‘Zoning’ for more Community Use

➢ New site is less than 1 mile away 

but may mean travel times change 

for some pupils

➢ Current Groups using the current 

site may not want to travel to use 

new site. We’ll help find 

alternatives

➢ New site will mean a ‘transition 

period’ for pupils

➢ Separate Planning Process to be 

undertaken

➢ Funding to cover extras and any 

rising costs

➢ Availability of contractors

➢ Adverse Weather

➢ Benefits Realisation (meeting the 

end user requirements)

• What will the benefits and disadvantages 

be?

• Are there any risks?

These are only a 
selection. The full list is 

in the Consultation 
Document

P
age 86



What are the Benefits? • Why this project and not something else?

Option Description

Option 1 Do Nothing

Option 2 Refurbish existing school which has already met the 60-year life expectancy

Option 3 Build new school same size school on the existing site

Option 4 Build a new school, same size school on a new site with childcare

Option 5 Build a new, larger school on a new site with nursery, childcare and Special Resource

Base

✓ The Council has to consider a number of options for every proposal

✓ Each option is scored against a ‘shopping’ list of criteria to find the one with the 

best Strategic, Educational, Accessibility, Financial and Environmental Fit

✓ For this proposal, the options listed above were considered

✓ Option 5 scored the highest with 105 points 

(Option 4 = 94 which was the next highest)

P
age 87



Next Steps?
• How long are we gathering views?

• What will happen next?

✓ Consultation period begins on Monday 14th September 2020 

✓ This document is the Children and Young People’s Everyday Summary Version

✓ Full documentation is available on the Council’s website

✓ Printed versions and other formats are available on request : 01443 864817 

✓ Closing date for responses is midnight on Monday 26th October 

2020

✓ The Council is following the process in line with the School Organisation Code 

2018

✓ 42 day consultation period

✓ Consultation Report produced and submitted to cabinet along with 

comments from this consultation

✓ Cabinet decide how to proceed.

✓ If they do, a Statutory Notice is published with 28 days for objections

✓ Objection Report produced (if there are any received) and final decision is 

with the Cabinet

P
age 88



What do you think?

✓ Your views matter

✓ We want you to tell us what you think about the changes we have proposed in 

this document

✓ All views are welcomed in support of or opposed to the proposal. 

✓ If you would like to comment on the proposal, you can do this by:

➢ Completing the online response form on the Council’s website

➢ Complete a response pro forma attached to this document and return it to 

the 21st Century School Team at Caerphilly

➢ Email your comments to the 21st Century Schools Team at Caerphilly

✓ For this proposal, we will be undertaking a paper consultation exercise and we 

are only able to receive comments in writing.  You must include your full name 

and postal address!

P
age 89



Find Out More

There will 
also be a FAQ 

section on 
the website. 
Check it out

P
age 90



 
 
 

 

 

 

Here in Caerphilly we have bold ambitions to provide every learner with the best life chances 
and we are committed to doing this through the provision of high-quality teaching and learning 
environments as part of our 21st Century Schools programme. 
 
In some cases, schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended, or partially rebuilt 
to meet the standards needed for contemporary teaching and learning. However, some existing 
schools are no longer in the right place or meet pupil demand. In such cases we might propose 
new schools or changes to existing schools. 
 
 

 

 
The Council wishes to make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a maintained school. 

 

This response relates to: 

The Relocation of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon to a new 

purpose-built Welsh-medium provision school to be situated 

at the former Cwmcarn High School site 

 

The closing date for responses is 26th October 2020. 

 

It is recommended that you read the background information before completing this 

questionnaire. 

   

You can also visit our website and complete the survey online by going to: 
 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools 
 

 

                        21st Century Schools Consultation Document 2020 

YSGOL GYMRAEG CWM GWYDDON 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM 

 

 
 

 

 

Document 4 of 5

Page 91

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

We are collecting this information as part of our obligation under the Welsh Government’s School 

Organisation Code (November 2018).   

How  we use your personal information:  

The information you provide will used by the service area relevant to the consultation / survey 

within Caerphilly County Borough Council. Views expressed will be collated together and used 

to produce a summary report.  Depending on scope / nature of the survey / consultation, the 

summary report will be used to evaluate and remodel services / priorities etc. We will not keep 

your views in in a way that will identify you for longer than is necessary. 

You have a number of rights in relation to the information we hold about you, including the right 

of access to your information and the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your 

information is processed. For further information on how we process the information and your 

rights please follow this link:  

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-

Surveys.aspx 

 

About You: 
 

I am responding to this survey as: 
 

A Pupil  ☐  A Parent  ☐ A Staff Member   ☐ A School Governor ☐  

of the school affected by this proposal / or  

An Elected Member    ☐     Other (please give details)     

 

 

Print Name:    
 

Address: 
 

Postcode:                                             E-mail:  
  

 
 
All Consultation Documentation will be made available on the Council’s website.   
If you wish to be notified of the publication of the consultation report using the email provided, 

please tick here:   ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Please note that all comments made as part of this consultation will be considered by Cabinet as part 

of the first phase of the process.  Formal Responses can only be registered following the publication of 

a statutory notice. Full details of the Consultation Process can be found in the full Consultation 

Document. 

 
 

 

Page 92

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx


 
 

Your views matter.  
Please complete this questionnaire and return via post or email to: 
 

 
 
 
Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views about the proposal: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other ☐ 
 

I support the proposal ☐ 
 

I do not support the proposal ☐ 

 

Please provide your comments on the proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 93



 
 

Equalities Monitoring:  
 

Are you … Male                                              ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

Female                                          ☐  

Other (please write in) 

 

Age Under 16                                       ☐ 40-65                                            ☐ 

16-25                                            ☐ Over 65                                         ☐ 

26-39                                            ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

 

Disability I am not Disabled                          ☐ Learning Difficulties                      ☐ 

Physical / Mobility Impaired          ☐ Visually Impaired                          ☐ 

Hearing Impaired                          ☐ Speech Impaired                          ☐ 

Unwilling to declare                      ☐  

Other (please write in) 

 

Welsh Language 

Skills 

 A Little Moderately Quite Well Fluently 

Speak ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Understand ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Read  ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Write ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

No Welsh Language Skills         ☐ Unwilling to Declare           ☐ 

 

 

If you feel that your response to this survey has been influenced (positively or negatively) 

because of any of the following: your ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, 

disability, gender reassignment, religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or 

other languages, nationality or responsibility for any dependents, please give details below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
July 2019 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 

This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we 
will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 

We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality, 
responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be shown to be 
justified. 
 

EIAs are a legal requirement under equalities legislation (Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011) where the potential for a significant negative impact has 
been identified.  This legislation has been in place since 2000.  We also have a legislative 
duty to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that 
is prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not.  

 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  

• removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 
characteristics 

• taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people  

• encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in other 
activities where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 

The protected characteristics are: 
 

• Age • Race 

• Disability • Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 

• Gender Re-assignment • Sex 

• Marriage and Civil Partnership • Sexual Orientation 

• Pregnancy and Maternity • Welsh Language* 
 

*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 
2010, however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal basis as 
well as promoting and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

Document 5 of 5

Page 95



 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme - Band 
B Phase 1 – Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon 
 

DIRECTORATE Education and Corporate Services 
 

SERVICE AREA Education Planning and Strategy  
 

CONTACT OFFICER Andrea West 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

As or when required 
 

 

 
 
 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to 
what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, 
procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh 
Language issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making 
processes governing work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work 
done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in 
more detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 
2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative 
consequences of your proposals.  If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled 
people, you also need to think about what potential effects it could have on other areas 
e.g. young people with a disability, BME people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy 
Unit Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide advice as 
the EIA is being developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of 
service areas, the support offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, 
quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 

Page 96

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


  

Page 97



PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated 
proposal by way of introduction.) 
 
The Council wishes to make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a maintained school. 
 

• To relocate Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon to a new purpose-built Welsh-
medium provision school to be situated at the former Cwmcarn High School site 
(Cwmcarn, NP11 7NG) with an anticipated occupation date of September 2022. 

 
➢ It is proposed that the new building will incorporate a primary facility with 

Childcare, Special Resource Base (SRB), Nursery, Rising Threes and main 
school classrooms, main assembly hall, food technology space, a library and 
Information Technology space. 
 

➢ The new building will have improved the outside learning space offering 
external play areas, a tarmacadam Multi Use Games Area  and access to a 
grass pitch. The use of sporting facilities will also be considered for the 
community at suitable times in keeping with the curriculum timetable. 

 

•  To stimulate demand for Welsh medium education, which we know is more 
sustainable for families if education provision is expanded in line with childcare 
availability in line with the Welsh Education Strategic Plan (WESP). 

 

•  To provide additional opportunities for Welsh immersion, facilitate growth in 
Welsh medium education and use of the Welsh language that will contribute to 
meeting the Welsh Government’s aim of one million Welsh speakers by 2050.  

 

• To agree that officers can proceed to procurement and construction and agree 
the establishment of an earmarked reserve facility in the Education area of the 
Council’s accounts. 

 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the public 
generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road users, 
people using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data gaps?) 
 
 
The following service users have been identified: 
 

• Pupils 

• Parents, prospective parents, guardians and carers of all pupils of the school 
directly affected by the proposal  

• Staff linked to the school directly affected by the proposal, including: 
Teachers/Administrative Team/Catering/Cleaning/Transport/Leisure/Inclusion 
Services/ Early Years Team 

• Local Community 
 
 

Page 98



In addition, in line with the guidelines provided by Welsh Government as part of their 
School Organisation Code 2018 (Statutory document 011/2018). We will consult 
with the following interested parties: 
 
 
 

• Parents, prospective parents, guardians and carers of all pupils of schools 
directly affected by the proposal  

• Headteacher, staff and governors of schools directly affected by the proposal 

• Pupils/Pupil Councils of schools directly affected by the proposal 

• Directors of Education of all bordering Local Authorities – Blaenau Gwent, 
Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Newport, Powys, RCT, Torfaen 

• Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

• Church in Wales Diocesan Board 

• Local Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 

• Governing body of other schools which the proposer considers are likely to 
be affected by the proposal 

• Local CCBC Members  

• All Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing the area 
served by the schools directly affected by the proposal 

• Welsh Ministers 

• ESTYN 

• Teaching Associations 

• Support Staff Associations 

• South East Wales Consortium (EAS) 

• South East Wales Transport Alliance (SEWTA) 

• Gwent and South Wales Police and Crime Commissioners 

• Local Town and Community Councils 

• Mudiad Meithrin and voluntary nursery providers 

• Menter Iaith 

• Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 

• Parent Network 

• Welsh in Education Strategic Forum 

• Welsh Language Commissioner 
 
 
 
No data gaps identified 
 
 

 
 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the 
services available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed 
changes, or does not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the 
proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 

Page 99



Community Use: 
Those that attend, work and use the building will benefit from a fit for purpose, 
innovative 21st Century facility.  In addition, the proposal intends to extend access at 
the new premises to include community use and childcare provision. 
 
As part of the 21st Century School remit, consideration must be given for the 
school to benefit from enabling the facilities to be shared with the wider 
community.  The proposed project will take into account the desire to 
encourage and facilitate community use of the asset. To this end the design 
process will seek to include measures to enable safe ‘zoning’ of parts of the 
new school building, including the hall and a multi-functional classroom 
compliant space which could be adapted for use.  The Wi-Fi and Information 
Technology infrastructure will be established to support public access and 
community use. The use of sporting facilities will also be considered for the 
community at suitable times in keeping with the curriculum timetable. 
 
 
Active Travel: 
Local authorities have a statutory duty under Section 10 of the Learner Travel 
Measure (Wales) 2008 to promote access to education and training through the 
medium of Welsh.  Caerphilly complies with the requirements of the Learner Travel 
Measure (Wales) 2008 through providing transport to Welsh medium schools for 
pupils of statutory school age in accordance with our individual transport policy. 
Caerphilly’s transport policy is more generous than the legislative requirement by 
providing transport to the ‘relevant’ school (i.e. catchment or nearest school) of more 
than a distance of 1.5 miles primary and 2 miles secondary.  
 

It is the intention of the Authority to provide a system of transport that will seek to 
ensure pupils can safely and comfortably access their education.  The proposed 
new location was a former school site and as such a number of ‘Safe Travel’ routes, 
as far as reasonably practicable are already established which includes designated 
bus points, underpass/overpass points, lighting and designated footpaths.  The 
walking route from the existing site is less than 0.9 miles and as such would not be 
deemed to cause unreasonable levels of stress or take an unreasonable amount of 
time in line with the measure. 
 
The catchment area for the school will remain unchanged, however it is inevitable 
that some children will now be eligible and others will no longer be, dependent on 
where they reside.  At present, the authority is projecting an increase in capacity, 
but this will be controlled through the admissions intake but at this stage it will be 
difficult to interpret eligibility.  Whilst the on-going cost implications have been 
considered and a contingency has been factored into the Authority’s Medium-Term 
Financial Plan, it is not possible at present to determine the exact figure due to 
individual pupil needs determining the method of transport required. 
 
 
Welsh Language in the Community: 
‘The Cwricwlwm Cymreig is at the heart of the school’s work programme and 
provision for developing the Welsh language is promoted very effectively. The 
wide range of extra-curricular activities that are provided helps pupils to 
develop a number of key personal and social skills well’ – Estyn 2013 
 
The above comment was provided by Estyn in relation to the existing school 

Page 100



and the proposed project will take into account the desire to encourage and 
facilitate further development to strengthen and safeguard the promotion of the 
Welsh language, Culture and Heritage within the Community.  This also 
dovetails into one of the key objectives of the Well-being and Future 
Generations Act 2015 through the promotion of a Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh Language. 
  
In order to contribute to the Welsh Government target of one million Welsh 
speakers by 2050, there is significant importance in improving and expanding 
provision in Welsh medium childcare and education, as well as working in 
partnership with community based groups or organisations to continue the use 
of conversational Welsh socially or in the workplace following the end of formal 
education. Without the continued use of Welsh there is a risk young people 
from English speaking households may lose confidence in their Welsh 
language skills.  
 
The development proposed includes Welsh medium childcare from age 2 
years upwards enabling early development of Welsh language using 
immersion methodology. The provision of Welsh medium wraparound, after 
school and holiday provision will also enable continuation of the Welsh 
language social skill development and is critical for working parents to provide 
a full Welsh medium service with parity for those in English medium provision.  
 
A Welsh medium education assessment in accordance with the (Wales) 
Regulations 2013 has been conducted in accordance with the 3 year cycle 
requirement. A parental demand survey was also undertaken in 2018. These 
are the basis for all trend future projections of demand and provide evidence of 
need for additional places and location in the borough. Previously the parental 
surveys have influenced the language provision of new build schools, for 
example, Ysgol Penalltau was opened as a Welsh medium primary school to 
meet the increasing demand and local area need for Welsh medium provision. 
There are substantially decreasing surplus places in the Welsh medium 
Schools and an increasing demand from parents using Cylchoedd Meithrin. 
The location will better serve those further down the valley as well as enable 
increased size of provision to meet the increasing evidenced demand including 
through the Childcare Offer for 3-4year olds.  
 
Specific requirements for Special Resource Base Users: 
The Authority recognises the impact of the Additional Learning Needs Act (2018) 
and the need to future proof Welsh language provision.   Through this proposal 
consideration of the correct types, quantity and quality of provision to meet the 
future needs of the population has been considered and this project will further 
support Welsh language resource for those children who require specialist provision 
outside of mainstream school. This proposal meets the requirements as set in 
ALNET Act, Welsh Language Standards Act and also the Welsh Education Strategic 
Plan regulations.  
 

Impact on other schools: 
Increasing the admission number by a manageable amount will allow stimulation of 
the demands for Welsh medium while not over developing the provision to 
destabilise other already established educational provisions within the area. It is 
anticipated that the admission number for the new school will be 45 when the school 
initially opens and will be increased incrementally by 5 per year until it reaches its 

Page 101



full capacity of 60 pupils. 
 
It is clear how important the Welsh language is to life in Wales. Maintaining and 
increasing the range of Welsh medium provision is a significant challenge for the 
Council.  Changes to Welsh medium primary education will inevitably have an 
impact upon Welsh medium secondary education 
The more pupils who enjoy a Welsh medium primary education, the more are likely 
to attend Welsh medium secondary education and have the fullest opportunities to 
live their lives in Wales using the Welsh language. 
Within the borough, as evidenced in the WESP, more learners are continuing to 
improve their language skills on transfer from primary to secondary school and 
progression rates remain at a consistently high level.  In consideration of the 
potential impact of this proposal, the site layout and configuration will be undertaken 
strategically to ensure space maximisation and provide the potential to facilitate 
Secondary provision in the future should the need to increase capacity be identified in 
that area. 
 

4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with protected 
characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on 
any groups?  Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ 
dependent upon people’s protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

What will the impact be?   
If the impact is negative how can it be mitigated? 

Age Positive 

Maintaining and expanding Welsh Language 
Educational provision to include childcare and 
Additional Learning Needs Provision.  Also, wider 
community use. 

Disability Positive 

The current school site has limited accessibility for both 
pupils and the wider public. 
The new premises will be an accessible facility which is 
able to cater for anyone with additional needs.   

Gender 
Reassignment 

Neutral No anticipated change 

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral No impact 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

Neutral No impact 

Race Neutral No anticipated change 

Religion & Belief Neutral No anticipated change 

Sex Neutral No anticipated change 

Sexual Orientation Neutral No anticipated change 

 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive or 
adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the 

Page 102



English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 89, 
90, 91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the Corporate 
Policy Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the proposal is 
available in Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on Welsh speakers.) 
 
The 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme supports the provision of Welsh 
Medium Education and supporting opportunities for persons to use the Welsh 
Language which is critical to both the Welsh Education Strategic Plan and the 
Welsh Language Standards plan.  
 
All parents receive information on Welsh medium education from Caerphilly Starting 
School booklet which is distributed with school application forms as well as available 
on the Caerphilly CBC website and is available in Welsh and English. Parents are 
able to access information on Welsh medium childcare and Early Years Education 
provision through Family Information Services as well as the Becoming Bilingual 
promotional booklets online and in leaflet format in public places. 
 
As set out in its Welsh in Education Strategic Plan, Caerphilly County Borough 
Council’s commitment to the promotion of Welsh language and the provision of 
quality, attractive educational facilities is evident.  This proposal will strive to 
stimulate demand for Welsh medium education through providing a new fit-for 
purpose replacement Welsh medium educational facility on the former Cwmcarn 
High School site.   
 
The Authority has recognised the relationship between the existing school and 
maintaining the Welsh Language in the village and the school’s contribution towards 
it.  The current school site hosts a limited number of activities for the community to 
participate in through the medium of Welsh and English. The Authority will look to 
minimise any adverse effects that the relocation of the school may have on the local 
Cwmcarn village residents and the community’s ability to continue to sustain such 
activities, for example supporting the community to access the local library as a 
meeting place (Abercarn public library is within 2 minutes walking distance of the 
current school). 
 
The development of Welsh medium childcare provision on site adjacent to the Welsh 
medium Foundation Phase nursery will enable continuity of provision for parents as 
well as continue to strengthen the Welsh language acquisition of the youngest 
children. The provision of wraparound, after school and holiday provision will enable 
working families to have the same access to provision as their English medium 
counterparts as well as enabling children to have social play experiences through the 
medium of Welsh. There is a positive impact on the Welsh language of all services 
being on a single site in a cohesive development and making it sustainable for the 
longer term.  
 
As part of the policy making process, all consultation documentation will be made 
available in hardcopy and online in both Welsh and English medium in the first 
instance with other languages and formats available upon request.  The Authority 
already has a clear protocol established in relation to responding to any customer 
interaction.  Correspondence can be in any language or format and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to any delay.  In addition, anyone attending the consultation 
meetings will have the opportunity to conduct the session in their preferred language, 
Welsh or English. 

Page 103



 
The consultation document itself will contain specific sections that will proactively 
encourage all interested parties to consider the effect of the proposals on the Welsh 
language and have the opportunity to comment on any reasonable actions that 
would enable the proposal to have a more positive effect/less adverse effect on the 
Welsh language as well as the impact to relocate the school will have on the 
opportunities to use the Welsh language within the school or the wider community. 
 

 

INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which 
supports the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups? If so, 
what has been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does any 
savings proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
There are presently 11 Welsh medium primary schools across the County Borough 
with a combined capacity of approaching 3000 places.  
 
The Caerphilly Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020 clearly states that the 
Authority will work with the 21st Century Schools Team in Welsh Government to 
identify funding for the development of sufficient Welsh medium places in areas 
where they are coming under pressure, in particular Bedwas Trethomas Machen 
area, and the Islwyn East area. This proposal is linked to the Islwyn East area. 
 
As part of the research for this proposal, the findings of the Welsh medium 
education assessment 2018 and the parental demand survey 2018, undertaken as 
part of the Authority’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan was referred to.  These are 
the basis for all future trend projections of demand and provide evidence of need for 
additional places and location in the county borough.  
 
The existing Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon has occupied their current 
site for 19 years.  Located in the heart of a small village in Abercarn, the school is 
the 3rd occupier of the site which has seen multiple incarnations over the years to 
utilise the asset to its fullest extent.  There are approximately 260 pupils on role, an 
additional 180 to the original concept to house 80 when the school was originally 
handed occupancy of the site.  The latest information available from the latest 
condition survey undertaken on the premises utilising the industry recognised 
‘Faithful and Gould’ building surveying methodology has classified the school as 
Category C for condition.  This means the overall condition of the school is ‘poor, 
showing major problems or not operating adequately’. 

 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 
findings. 
(Include method of consultation, objectives and target audience.  What steps have 
been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been consulted during 
the development of this proposal?  Have you referred to the Equalities Consultation 

Page 104



and Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
 
The consultation process will proceed in line with the requirements of Welsh 
Government Statutory Code document no 011/2018 - School Organisation Code 2nd 
Edition 2018.  
 
A prescribed list of recipients (as outlined in Section 2) will be written to and 
provided with sufficient information through the publication of a consultation 
document for intelligent consideration.  All documentation will be made available in 
both Welsh and English throughout the process and other formats on request. 
 
The principles of engagement outlined in the Local Authority's Consultation and 
Engagement Framework 2020 will also be acknowledged and the project team will 
engage with any additional 'interested parties' as required.  
 
A consultation document will be published in hard copy and online in both Welsh 
and English and include a response proforma to enable collection of the views of 
various persons.  This document will be live during the consultation period which 
lasts for approximately 6 weeks.  Adequate time will be provided for consideration 
and response and conscientious consideration will be given to any responses 
received.   
 
It is also envisaged that a series of targeted sessions will be held over a given day 
between the hours of 10am and 8pm to provide information and the opportunity to 
pose questions to designated officers concerning the proposal. Individuals will be 
required to book 10 minute appointment slots and a translator will be available if 
required.  As part of this process, the target audiences who will be engaged with 
include – Pupils (School Council), School Staff, School Governors, 
Parents/Guardians and the wider Community. 
 
The 21st Century Schools Team has also acknowledged that the pupil voice is 
essential and involving children and pupils as active participants in the development, 
delivery, management and improvement of their educational and student experience 
needs.  This information should be at the heart of the planning, provision and 
evaluation processes.   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able 
analyse responses from particular groups?)  

Page 105



 
 
The programme is managed by a Project Board comprising of the Corporate 
Director – Education and Corporate Services, Head of Education Planning and 
Strategy, Chief Education Officer, Cabinet Member for Education and Achievement, 
Interim Head of Property Services and 21st Century Schools Manager.  The Project 
Board provides the overall direction, management and control for the Programme, 
being accountable for the success of the Programme and is the ultimate decision-
making body for the Programme.  
 
A Project Management Team comprising of the Head of Education Planning and 
Strategy, and resources and staff from Property Services will oversee the day to day 
development and implementation of each constituent project, reporting to the Board 
and other relevant senior officers, as appropriate.  
 
Project management principles will be followed (Prince2 and MS Project) throughout 
the programme. Programme management principles will be employed for the 
overarching Band B programme and the project will utilise the experience of the 
project team involved in the Band A project.  This will commence with a Programme 
execution plan that will define the programme objectives, responsibilities, dependant 
actions and risks. The latter will include risk elimination or mitigation actions and risk 
owner.  An overall programme monitoring tool will integrate and coordinate 
procurement, design and construction programmes and will highlight key 
dependencies and the critical path.   
 
The Council recognises that the whole organisation must be skilled in making the 
very best use of available resources. Good project management is recognised as 
being an essential ingredient to success in tackling our strategic work programme. 
 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the 
community are being met?) 
 
The Council produces a protocol document for each school 
opening/closure/amalgamation project. This outlines individual and team 
responsibilities for the full list of actions required over the 3 stages of design and 
pre-construction, construction and school occupation and decommissioning.  
 
Regular monitoring meetings take place and typically involve 21st Century Schools 
Team, Headteachers, Education advisers, Property Services, Catering Services, 
ICT, Traffic Management, Procurement and Audit representation.  Relevant 
stakeholders will also be involved in post project evaluation to review outcomes to 
ensure improvements are made for future projects. 
 
Benefits Realisation will be monitored by the Project Management Team and 
Caerphilly County Borough Council and reported to Welsh Government through 
the project closure report and other relevant documentation. Community benefits 
will be reported quarterly and yearly and when the project ends. 
 
The project will be subject to gateway review as required by the funding 
agreement.  The review is one by which independent practitioners from 
outside the programme/project use their experience and expertise to examine 
the progress and likelihood of successful delivery of the programme or 

Page 106



project.  Any recommendations of the review team will be taken on board and 
implemented as necessary.  
 
A post contract review will also be undertaken. 
 

 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising amongst 
staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of some sort?) 
 
 
Key personnel have received Equality Impact Awareness and Equalities Awareness 
Training and attended training and information sessions undertaken by Welsh 
Government.  Training needs will be constantly reviewed throughout the process 
and addressed when the need is evident. 
 
In addition, the 21st Century Schools Manager and Principal Officer have met with 
representatives from the Equalities, Welsh Language and Consultation Team to 
take guidance where required.  
 

 

11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation action. 
 
The impact identified will be positive as the proposal is to provide inspirational 21st 
Century facilities. 
 
As outlined in further detail on Sections 3 and 5 above, these include: 
 

• Welsh Language in the Community 

•  Community Use 

•  Special Resource Base 

•  Active Travel 
 
Should any negative impact be identified at a later point, due regard will be given 
and any reasonably practicable mitigation will be put into place.  All actions will be 
fully evidenced in the relevant documentation. 

 

12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 
(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, appendix 
to approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action shown below?) 
 
 
The Equality Impact Assessment will be appended to the report.  This is a working 
document and will be updated throughout the process. 
 

 
  

Page 107



13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, through 
more than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant 
outcome(s) of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the 
proposal was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or 
adverse impact.  All opportunities to promote equality have been taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential 
problems or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to remove 
barriers or better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the potential 
problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The justification(s) 
for continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The justification must be 
included in the impact assessment and must be in line with the duty to 
have due regard.  Compelling reasons will be needed for the most 
important relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified 
actual or potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped 
and removed, or changed. 

 

  

Form completed by: 

Name: Andrea West 

Job Title: 21st Century Schools Manager 

Date: 01/09/2020 

  

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Sue Richards 

Job Title: Head of Education Planning and Strategy 

Signature: S. Richards 

Date: 01/09/2020 

 
 

X 

 

 

 

Page 108



 

 

Ref: LT/AW 
21st Century Schools 
01443 864817 
 
14th September 2020 
 

 

Dear Consultee 

In line with the requirements of the School Organisation Code 2018, we are writing to 

inform you about a proposal the Council is submitting in relation to a regulated 

alteration to a special school. 

The proposal is in connection with: 

➢ The expansion of Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre 

The consultation period will run from the 14th September 2020 to the 26th October 

2020. 

Full details in relation to the proposal can be found at: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

 

Regards 

21st Century Schools Team 
Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Document 1 of 5

Page 109

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 110



 
 

21st Century Schools 
Consultation Document 
2020 
 

 

TRINITY FIELDS SCHOOL AND RESOURCE CENTRE 
 

14th September 2020– 26th October 2020 
 

 
 

 

This document is available electronically at   

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

Information can also be made available in other formats, languages and in hard copy on request. 

Please contact us on 01443 864817 to arrange this. 
 
 
 

                

Document 2 of 5

Page 111

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction 

➢ What is this booklet about? 
➢ What is the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme? 
➢ What are we proposing to do? 

 

 

Page 3 

Page 3 

Page 4 

Consultation Process 

➢ Who are we consulting with? 
➢ How can you find out more? 
➢ Views of children on the proposal 

 

 

Page 5 

Page 6 

Page 7  

Why are we proposing these changes? 

➢ Background Information 
➢ Planning of school places 
➢ Condition and Suitability of school buildings 
➢ Illustrative Master Plan 

 

 

Page 8 
Page 11 

Page 11 

Page 12 

How would other schools be affected? 

➢ Early Years Provision and Projected Demand 
➢ Primary Years Provision and Admissions 
➢ Catchment Area Arrangements 
➢ Disruption to pupils 

 

 

Page 12 

Page 13 

Page 14 

Page 14 

What will be the impact of the proposal? 

➢ Education Standards, Quality and Leadership 
➢ Governance Arrangements and School Categorisation 
➢ Staff Matters 
➢ Financial Matters 
➢ Impact on Welsh Language Provision 
➢ Learner Travel Arrangements 
➢ Equalities 
➢ Specialist Facilities / Additional Learning Needs 
➢ Community Impact and Community Benefit 

 

Page 14 

Page 16 

Page 17 

Page 17 

Page 17 

Page 18 

Page 18 

Page 20 

Page 21 
 

What are the Benefits of the proposal? 

➢ Benefits 
➢ Disbenefits 
➢ Risks 
➢ Alternative options that have been discounted 

 

 

Page 22 

Page 22 

Page 23 

Page 24 
 

Next Steps 

➢ Consultation Period and Key Dates 
➢ Statutory Notices, Reporting and Decision Making 
➢ Have your say 

 

 

Page 27 

Page 28 

Page 29 
 

Supporting Information 

➢ Frequently Asked Questions 
➢ Feedback Form  

 

Page 30 

Page 31 
 

Page 112



 
 

 

 

 

Introduction 

 

➢ What is this booklet about? 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) has embarked upon an exciting but challenging 

journey of improvement and change.  

Schools in Wales need to be in good condition and suitable for the delivery of education.  In 

some cases, schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended, or partially rebuilt to 

meet the standards needed for contemporary teaching and learning.  However, some existing 

schools are no longer in the right place and in such cases, we might propose new schools or 

changes to existing schools. 

We aspire to continue to raise school standards and improve the quality of the learning 

environment to create fit-for-purpose 21st century schools and give every child in Caerphilly the 

best possible start in life. 

This booklet is for anyone who has an interest in education in Caerphilly and may be of particular 

interest to parents/guardians of children attending or expecting to attend Trinity Fields School. 

Trinity Fields School has been identified as a priority site for development.  This booklet sets out 

the changes we are suggesting to this primary education facility in the Borough and the reasons 

for these proposed changes. 

The consultation process represents an opportunity for people to learn about the proposal, ask 

questions and make comments that will be recorded and summarised in a consultation report.  

This report will be published on the Council’s website and will be considered when Cabinet 

decides on the way forward. 

 

 

➢ What is the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme? 

The 21st Century Schools programme is a major, long-term, strategic capital investment 

programme.  It is jointly funded by the Welsh Government and local authorities and aims to create 

a generation of 21st century schools in Wales.  

The first part of the programme (Band A) ran from 2014 to March 2019.  

Caerphilly has benefited greatly from investments in the initial “Band A” 21st Century Schools 

programme with approximately £56.5 million invested in schools for both educational and 

community use.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



 
 

 

Band A funding in Caerphilly was used to deliver : 

 

 
✓ Islwyn High School 
✓ Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Rhymni, Y Gwyndy Campus 
✓ Idris Davies School 3-18 
✓ Newbridge School extension 
✓ Blackwood Comprehensive improvements  
✓ Blackwood Comprehensive 3G pitch 
✓ Trinity Fields School improvements  

 

 
The second part of this funding (Band B) started in April 2019, with the priority areas being: 
 

• Reduce the number of poor condition schools 

• Ensure that we have the right size schools in the right location  

• Provide enough places to deliver Welsh and English medium education 

• Ensure the effective and efficient use of the educational estate 
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council submitted a Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) and 
received Welsh government approval in principle for an identified investment of £78 million, 
subject to individual project consultation and approval.  
 
The SOP sets the strategic vision for the Band B programme within the context of the priorities 
and wellbeing goals of the Council.  We identified a need to invest in improving our school 
buildings, meeting the demand for education in both Welsh and English, reducing surplus 
places and developing shared and co-located facilities and it is this aspiration that is driving 
this proposal. 

 

 

➢ What are we proposing to do? 

 

We are proposing to: 

o To expand the existing Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre, via a new 
building extension and outdoor play space with an anticipated completion date of 
September 2023. 

 

➢ The proposed new building will provide additional facilities to accommodate growing 
demand for places and provide additional classrooms, specialist intervention areas 
and outdoor play space 

➢ It is proposed the additional facility will also house a new flexible hall, hydrotherapy pool 
and soft play facilities to increase provision on site which will also be considered for 
community use at suitable times in keeping with the curriculum timetable. 

 

o To ensure  that it can cater for the changing and more complex needs of Additional 
Learning Needs (ALN) pupils across the Council, both now and in the future and ensure 
compliance with the new Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act.  

 

 

Page 114



 
 

 

 

  
Library / IT / Breakout Areas ‘The Street’ 
 

Typical Classroom 

  
External Softplay Areas  Hall and Dining 

 

 
Images above are examples of what has been achieved as part of a Band A project at Idris Davies 3-18, Rhymney  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Consultation Process 

 

➢ Who are we consulting with? 

Our consultation process must follow the Welsh Government guidelines as set out in the School 

Organisation Code 2018.  Proposals must be published when we make a ‘regulated alteration’ 

to a special school under Section 44 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 

2013. 

Page 115



 
 

 

We are obligated to advise the following of our proposals by letter or email: 

 
 

o Parents, prospective parents, guardians and carers of all pupils of schools directly 
o affected by the proposal  
o Headteacher, staff and governors of schools directly affected by the proposal 
o Pupils/Pupil Councils of schools directly affected by the proposal 
o Directors of Education of all bordering LAs – Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr 

Tydfil, Newport, Powys, Rhondda Cynon Taf, Torfaen 
o Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 
o Church in Wales Diocesan Board 
o Local Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 
o Governing body of other schools which the proposer considers are likely to be affected 

by the proposal 
o Local CCBC Members  
o All Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing the area served 
o by the schools directly affected by the proposal 
o Welsh Ministers 
o ESTYN 
o Teaching Associations 
o Support Staff Associations 
o South East Wales Consortium (EAS) 
o South East Wales Transport Alliance (SEWTA) 

o Gwent and South Wales Police and Crime Commissioners 
o Local Town and Community Councils 
o Menter Iaith 
o Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
o Parent Network 
o Welsh Education Forum 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

➢ How can you find out more? 

The planning and development of effective school organisation proposals is crucial to the Welsh 

Government’s goal of transforming education in Wales and providing better educational 

outcomes with a commitment to increase school effectiveness, and narrow inequalities in 

achievement between advantaged and disadvantaged areas, groups and individuals. 

The School Organisation Code 2018 states that when undertaking a consultation process in 

connection with a school proposal, the Council must publish information to enable transparent, 

balanced and open decision making. 

 

 

Page 116



 
 

 

As part of this proposal, the following documentation has been produced: 

• A Consultation Document outlining the proposal (this document) 

• A Children and Young People’s Summary 

• An Equalities and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

• A Community Impact Assessment (contained in this document) 

 

The Welsh Language Standards are a set of legally binding requirements that aim to allow people 

in Wales the ability to receive services in the Welsh language. The Standards clearly set out our 

responsibilities are in terms of providing bilingual services, ensuring the Welsh language is not 

treated less favorably than the English language. All documentation is therefore published in 

Welsh and English and available in other languages or formats on request.  Further information 

is available on the Council’s website 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools 

Hardcopies can be made available on request and further details in relation to the processes 

and timelines can be found later in this document in the ‘Next Steps’ Section. 

 

Please note: A separate Planning Application Process will be carried out by the Council’s 

Property Services Department and details of all applications can be found on the Council’s 

Website when the process is live: 

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Planning-and-building-control/Planning-applications 

 

➢ Views of children on the proposal  
 

The Council has acknowledged that the voice of young people is about involving them as active 

participants in the development, delivery, management an improvement of their educational and 

student experience and needs to be at the heart of planning, provision and evaluation.  

Young people have a right to act to express their views in all matters affecting them and for their 

views to be heard and given due weight in accordance with their age and maturity.  The Council 

recognises the potential of young people to enrich the decision-making processes, to share 

perspectives and to participate as citizens and facilitators of change.   

This is also been reflected by the Estyn report ‘Pupil Participation: a best practice guide’, which 

highlights how effective participation benefits pupils and helps schools to improve.  

The 21st Century Schools Team in Caerphilly will ensure that when bringing forward any 

proposal, suitable arrangements are made to consult and involve pupils throughout the process 

and post occupancy.   

Trinity Fields School has a very active school council and is a highly inclusive community where 

all pupils feel safe and valued. Pupils play an active and influential role in shaping the life and 

work of the school. The school’s exemplary levels of care, support and guidance mean that nearly 

all pupils develop as enthusiastic learners who acquire a strong understanding of their rights and 

responsibilities. Work has already been undertaken as part of the Band A developments with 

pupils from Trinity Fields utilising eye recognition software and head maps for those with 

communication difficulties in relation to the ‘wish’ list for any developments.  Furthermore, the 

Head Boy for the school has been heavily involved assisting in discussions around colour 
Page 117

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Planning-and-building-control/Planning-applications


 
 

 

scheme and layout which has benefitted both the design team and pupil himself through social 

skills development.                                                                                                    

This ethos is embedded into practice as part of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges 

Programme in Caerphilly.  As part of the Band B proposals, the Council will consult with pupils 

in the most appropriate manner based on the expert recommendations of the Head of the School, 

and the information gathered will be included in the final consultation report.   

 

 

 

Why are we proposing these changes? 

 
 

➢ Background Information 

New buildings can play a key role not only as places to inspire and educate our children but also 
as vibrant and dynamic learning environments in which all ages are able to learn and grow that 
are used not only by pupils but by families and the wider community.  Our aim is to secure equality 
of access by promoting and supporting the development of inclusive education and giving a 
commitment to providing the best possible quality of education and services within available 
resources.   

The Council is committed to providing all children and young people with high quality education, 
tailored to meet their needs, which will develop their potential, extend aspiration, promote social 
inclusion and contribute to the economic regeneration of the area.  Progress has been made, 
however there is still work to be done to improve outcomes and wellbeing for all children and 
young people. 

It was therefore, implicit within the Council’s 21st Century School SOP that a fundamental review 
of the school estate be undertaken with a view to identify learning environments requiring 
investment and transformation to meet modern 21st Century expectations. 

The current Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre was purpose built in 1998 and offers 
pupils many unique and innovative features in order to develop their skills. It caters for pupils 
with a wide range of Special Education Needs and requirements.  Ranging from Physical and 
Medical Difficulties, Profound Multiple Learning Difficulties and Severe Learning Difficulties.   
 

 
 

Page 118

http://www.trinityfieldsschoolandresourcecentre.co.uk/


 
 

 

 
Trinity Fields Special School is the only special school in the Council which provides Education 
and Specialist Facilities for our pupils.  It caters for pupils from the ages of 3–19 years.  At present 
the school has 170 pupils on roll with more admissions anticipated.  
 
Nearly all pupils have a statement of special educational needs for severe learning difficulties, 
physical and medical difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties or autistic spectrum 
disorders and come from within the county borough (a very small number of pupils, currently 
two, come from  neighbouring local authorities).  
 
In addition to the provision on the Trinity Fields site, the school operates two satellite classes at 
Cwm Ifor Primary School and St Cenydd Community School. The resource centre based at the 
school works in partnership with the local authority to provide a range of services to support 
pupils with Special Educational Needs (SEN) in mainstream schools across the local authority. 
These services include the Caerphilly autistic spectrum service, health-based clinics, an 
outreach and inclusion service, youth and leisure activities, and respite and home support 
services. 
 
The Council recognises that Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre has a pivotal role in 
the current and future development of Additional Learning Needs provision across the borough. 
This role has been set against a backdrop of on-going local and national developments in terms 
of extending and enhancing the current role and functions of special schools across Wales and 
beyond so that they offer a broader range of support and services on behalf of the Local 
Authorities to other schools, specialist bases as well as to staff within the Council’s Education 
Service.  
 
The school was last inspected in June 2019 where Estyn awarded the school its top grades in 
all 5 inspection areas and has been categorised as a Green School since its inception through 
Welsh Government categorisation.  It has also just been given Flagship status for its Inclusion 
Quality Mark.  It is the only Special School that has been given the Healthy Schools Award.  The 
support, knowledge and level of expertise at Trinity Fields is now being disseminated across the 
Authority. The specialist facilities at the school, including the independent living areas, are now 
being used by the wider school community in a structured and managed way. 
 
It is apparent that there is increasing demand for the school from the projected pupil numbers, 
the more complex and changing needs of the pupils together with the requirements of the ALN 
and ET (Wales) Act has led to the urgency to expand the provision further at this School.  This 
is why this proposal is one of the first priorities as part of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges 
Band B programme. 
 
The Council has already invested £1.3 million, during the past 6 years, into capital projects at 
the school, which has included large maintenance schemes and change of use of areas in order 
to increase capacity. In addition, the Council has undertaken improvement works at the School 
using savings achieved in the 21st Century Schools and Education programme Band A.  
However, there is now no capacity or space to expand within the current building configuration. 
 
The school currently occupies a site of 1.6 hectares, with a ground floor Gross Internal Area of 
4,281.4m.  The site has a dedicated access route for vehicles and pedestrians and can 
accommodate specialist transportation vehicles as required as well as onsite parking facilities. 

 

Page 119



 
 

 

 

 
 
The current boundary of the school is enclosed to the North and East by the main A472 road.  
To the West is a border with a residential estate. To the South is a Council owned pay-as-you-
use pitch and the proposal is to extend the school onto the pitch area with the result of a 
substantially increased floor area, improved internal facilities and improved external areas. The 
expansion would allow appropriate separation between the primary and secondary phases and 
would allow continuity of Health and Education provision from a single location. The loss of the 
pay-as-you-use pitch would be a regrettable consequence of the expansion and would impact 
on Penallta RFC who are the main user of the pitch. However, officers have met with the club 
officials several times and proposals have been tabled to mitigate the impact on the Club.  
 
 
In order to “future proof” the school, further investment and growth is essential and Welsh 
Government has indicated that the expectation is for projects to be innovative and to be seen as 
a “once in a lifetime opportunity”.  It is the Councils aim, wherever possible, to try and educate 
all pupils within the Borough. This prevents the need for out of county provision which is not only 
costly but can also have a significant impact on individual families.  
 
The drawing up of the specification is at a very early stage and a board has been established 

including colleagues from Social Services, Education and Aneurin Bevan University Health 

Board to ensure that all parties are able to embrace this opportunity to develop and provide 

services in the  school to cater for our most vulnerable families and the wider Community. 

“We are excited to be part of the developments taking place at Trinity Fields School, with the 

opportunity to work in closer partnership with the school, health colleagues and the local 

community to provide a joined up model of working to achieve positive outcomes for all.” – 

Children with Disability Team 

Page 120



 
 

 

“ABUHB is proud to be a partner in the development of Trinity Fields new proposals, which will 

enable us to deliver integrated services/support that meets the holistic needs of children and 

young people.” – Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

 

 

➢ Planning of school places 

All Councils in Wales must make sure they provide enough school spaces for pupils of all ages 

in order to provide the best quality of education and ensure the funding provided by the Welsh 

government is used effectively. All Councils in Wales must also provide places that meet the 

needs of the pupils in Welsh, English or faith medium and must be suitable for any additional 

learning needs. 

With increasingly sophisticated medical interventions children are surviving longer and are 

coming into school at 3 with increasingly complex learning and medical needs. The school has 

collated data relating to the number of pre-school pupils with highly complex medical and 

learning needs that will need access to highly specialist provision when they are 3 years old.   

The Council works closely with multiagency professionals in the field as well as with the school, 

Flying Start and Health Visitors.  A fortnightly placement panel convenes to calculate the number 

of places that are required on site and utilising data from the Integrated Service for Children with 

Additional Needs (ISCAN).  Reviewing historic data linked to Statutory processes since 2012, 

growth has been identified as an area requiring action. There is a similar picture across Wales 

in terms of increasing numbers of pupils accessing special schools. 

 

 

➢ Condition and Suitability of school buildings 

As well as having the right number of school places the council must ensure that school facilities 

are fit for purpose. Schools must support the delivery of high quality learning.  

All existing Caerphilly schools have recently been subject to a Building Condition survey. 
Condition surveys are evidence-based auditable records and undertaken by suitably qualified 
and experienced personnel.  The current Trinity Fields site has been judged to be in condition 
B on a scale of A (excellent) to D (poor).   
 

 

 

Page 121



 
 

 

The existing main building (pictured above), was built around 1998 and operates over a single 
floor to maximise access for all.  The main entrance leads into a reception area with adjacent 
offices.  The school has a number of areas including classrooms with hoist systems, withdrawal 
rooms, hydrotherapy pool, IT suite, independent living areas and sensory garden.  Whilst 
provision has been enhanced through the Band A programme, there is still more that can be 
achieved to enhance the lives of the pupils which cannot be accommodated within the current 
building. 
 

 
➢ Illustrative Master Plan 

 
‘A Foundation for Success’ provide a framework for the future regeneration of the County 
Borough up to 2023. The document sets out strategic priorities for regeneration under four key 
themes: 

• Supporting People (reducing inequality, building capacity and resilience to create healthier, 
prosperous, cohesive communities); 

• Supporting Business (creating employment opportunities, increasing entrepreneurial activities, 
encouraging innovation and improving access to employment); 

• Supporting Quality of Life (providing the right physical environment for our communities that 
encourages them to prosper); 

• Connecting People and Places (improving connectivity locally, regionally and globally). 

The Regeneration Strategy is supported by a suite of targeted action plans and strategies aimed 
at capturing regeneration opportunities and developing key sites and premises throughout the 
County Borough. 

The Masterplan identifies a number of projects in the area that could deliver substantial economic 

and community benefit, and it will provide a framework for the delivery of those projects.  

 

 

 

How would other schools be affected? 

 
 

Changes in one part of the Education sector in the County has a wider ‘ripple’ effect on other 

schools and their pupils.   When considering any proposals, the sustainability and enhancement 

of the education network and wider area is considered.  Due regard will be given to the impact 

of this proposal and consultation will be undertaken with any affected schools.   

 

➢ Early Years Provision and Projected Demand 

 
In the current school, there is a registered holiday childcare provision that delivers specialist 
holiday care for children attending the school who need childcare in the summer. In addition, 
Action for Children also offer unregistered summer club provision with social services to support 
children with ALN.  

Childcare settings around the borough have accessed training previously to enable them to 
develop inclusive provision. The Inclusion toolkit helps each setting to understand and put 

Page 122



 
 

 

actions into their setting improvement plan for becoming ALN Act ready. During the last year 47 
childcare staff have attended the new ALNCO training from 39 group-based day care settings, 
which means 35% of our group day care providers have at least one member of staff trained to 
comply with ALN Act.  

32 childcare settings have been procured to offer Assisted and Supported Places for children 
with emerging additional needs in non-Flying Start areas prior to starting Nursery Education, and 
all children in Flying Start areas are offered a year of childcare prior to Nursery to support their 
developmental needs and enable early identification.  

Trinity Fields School also works alongside a number of Specialist Resource Bases around the 
borough for children with ALN offered in Welsh medium and English medium schools. The 
Childcare settings across the borough offer inclusive provision for children of working families 
who may need childcare outside of the school day or in the school holidays.   

There has not been the demand for childcare provision on site in Trinity Fields School and for 
sustainability for providers and low numbers of parents, it is more beneficial to upskill childcare 
settings in the community to provide the wraparound support needed for working families. For 
this reason, we have not included Childcare provision on site at Trinity Fields but continue to roll 
out the ALN training to upskill childcare setting staff across the borough.   

 
 

➢ Primary Years Provision and Admissions  
 

Trinity Fields School opened to pupils in 1998 and is the only Special School within the 
Borough.  Due to the nature and specific requirements of the pupils, it is not anticipated 
that this proposal would impact on any other school provision within the Authority as 
mainstream schools would not be able to cater for the complex needs of this most 
vulnerable group. 
 
Number on roll (2019-20 actual): 

 

Year 2019-20 

Trinity Fields  170 

 
The ‘Measuring Capacity of Schools Guidance in Wales’ 2011, describes the method for 
assessing the capacity of all maintained mainstream schools in Wales.  Special Schools 
such as in the case of Trinity Fields is not subject to this legislation and as such this 
means that there is no published capacity calculation. 
 
Admissions are decided via a Specialist Placement Panel, where a statutory process is 
followed to discuss pupils’ individual needs.  This applies to all pupils.   The panel gives 
consideration to recommendations for placement taking into account the following 
criteria: 
 

➢ Availability of places 
➢ Pupils’ needs 
➢ Parents/carers view on the placement 

 
Whilst Trinity Fields falls outside of the standard admissions arrangement for schools, 
the local authority determines the admissions arrangements.  Pupils who attend Trinity 

Page 123



 
 

 

Fields School are not required to have a statement of educational need as a pre-requisite 
to entry.  The majority of pupils will be between Stages 3 and 5 of the SEN Code of 
Practice and may be in the process of a multi-professional assessment, of which a 
placement at Trinity Fields school may be part. 

 

➢ Catchment Area Arrangements 
 
 

Special school catchment areas 

 

 

1 

 

Trinity Fields 

 

 
 
Trinity Fields School is the only Special School 
within the Authority so the catchment for the 
school covers the entire borough. 

 

 

➢ Disruption to pupils 
 

The proposal seeks to build a new extension onto the existing school.  The design and 

management of the works will minimise any disruption to the daily operations of the existing 

facility and any impact on the pupils attending the school. 

 

 

 

What will be the impact of the proposal? 

 
 

➢ Education Standards, Quality and Leadership 

 

During the implementation of the project, the schools will continue to receive ongoing advice and 
support from the local Council, school improvement service and any relevant stakeholders to 
help ensure that the school maintains effective leadership and provides high quality teaching 
and learning experiences. 

Page 124



 
 

 

 

Quality and standards in schools in Caerphilly are monitored by Estyn and the Local Council 
(LA).  Estyn is the office of Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education and Training in Wales. It 
is a Crown body, established under the Education Act 1992. Estyn is independent of the National 
Assembly for Wales but receives its funding from the Welsh Government under Section 104 of 
the Government of Wales Act 1998. Estyn inspects quality and standards in education and 
training providers in Wales.  
 
The most recent inspection result of Trinity Fields School is outlined below: 

The school received an Estyn inspection in 2019, therefore, the published reports reflect the 

revised inspection framework introduced in September 2017.  As detailed below, the five 

inspection areas indicate that Trinity Fields School is a highly effective setting, with strong 

leadership, providing excellent learning experiences and provision to all pupils. 

Notable features in the report, linked to the key inspection areas, are itemised below: 

1. Standards:  

• Nearly all pupils at Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre respond extremely 

positively to the school’s highly inclusive and supportive ethos. As a result, nearly all make 

notable progress in many important areas of their learning and development that support 

their future lives very effectively. 

• Nearly all pupils make particularly strong progress in achieving the targets on their 

individual education plans (IEPs). 

• By the time they leave the school, nearly all pupils achieve a suitable range of worthwhile 

units of credit and accreditation that are well-matched to their needs, interests and 

abilities. 

 

2. Wellbeing and attitudes to learning: 

• Nearly all pupils play an active and influential role in contributing to their learning and 

shaping the life and work of the school. Over time, nearly all develop as enthusiastic 

learners who enjoy coming to school and acquire a strong understanding of their rights 

and responsibilities. 

• Pupils develop their physical wellbeing and stamina very effectively through regular 

physical exercise and therapies. 

• Nearly all pupils engage enthusiastically in the school’s wide range of exciting and 

stimulating learning activities. 

 

 

 

Summary of Judgements: Trinity Fields Special School – inspected June 2019 
 

IA1 – Standards 
 

IA2 – Wellbeing 
and attitudes to 
learning  

IA3 – Teaching 
and learning 
experiences 

IA4 – Care, 
support and 
guidance 

IA5 – Leadership 
and 
management 

 
Excellent 

 

 
Excellent 

 
Excellent 

 
Excellent 

 
Excellent 

 

Page 125



 
 

 

3. Teaching and Learning: 

• The school’s wellbeing curriculum is exemplary and utilises a range of related frameworks 

to meet the needs of all pupils and their families. 

 

4. Care, guidance and support 

• The school has developed highly effective partnerships with a wide range of external 

agencies. 

• The school makes very strong provision for the development of pupils’ personal and social 

education in the classroom and around the school. 

• The school’s exceptional commitment to gaining the status of a rights respecting school 

ensures that pupil voice underpins all aspects of decision-making, policy writing and 

planning. 

• The school’s relationships with parents is a strength of its work. 

 

5. Leadership: 

• The headteacher and members of the senior leadership team provide outstanding 

strategic leadership for the school. 

• Leaders have developed highly beneficial and innovative partnerships with local 

mainstream schools to support the inclusion of pupils with special educational needs. 

• The school provides a high-quality learning environment that supports the development 

of pupils’ learning and wellbeing needs very well. 

 

Consideration of the potential impact of the proposal on quality and standards is aligned with the 
Estyn Inspection framework.  Considering the findings in the published report, it is not expected 
that any of the inspection areas will be adversely affected.  Indeed, the information outlined in 
the proposal will indicate how the school can continue to develop and build on their current 
excellent practice.  Throughout the transition period, the school will continue to receive 
appropriate support and challenge from the local Council and school improvement service to 
ensure that standards, wellbeing and attitudes to learning, teaching and learning, care, guidance 
and support and leadership retain their current effectiveness. 

 

➢ Governance Arrangements and School Categorisation  
 

There are no anticipated changes to school governance arrangements at Trinity Fields School 
as a result of this proposal. The governing body will continue in its current form.   

The National School Categorisation system provides a useful picture in identifying the schools 
that need the most help, support and guidance to improve. The system has been developed 
collectively between regional education consortia and Welsh Government.  Historically, the 
school has been identified as a ‘green’ school, therefore, requiring limited levels of support to 
self-improve. 
 
It should be noted that due to the current Covid-19 pandemic, national categorisation has been 
suspended from September 2020.  However, support is available to schools that require 
additional intervention and guidance. 

 

 

 

Page 126



 
 

 

➢ Staff Matters 
 

School staff play an important role in ensuring pupils are learning in a safe and 
supportive learning environment. They can foster positive, trusting relationships with pupils and 
improve the school climate by encouraging parent and family involvement in education. 
 
By forging strong relationships, staff can affect virtually every aspect of their pupils' lives, 
teaching them the important life lessons that will help them succeed beyond just academia. 
It is not always easy to change a pupil’s life, which is why it takes a great teacher to do so. 
 
The Council recognises that retaining the experience and support of the existing staff cohort at 
the school will support pupils through a period of transition.  This proposal will not look to make 
any reductions in the current arrangements, quite the opposite.  This proposal supports the 
potential to expand provision, breadth of knowledge accessible to the pupils and encourage 
workforce development through the sharing of best practice. 

 

 

➢ Financial Matters 
 

Funding has already been set aside for the Council’s share of the capital costs of the project. 
The recurrent (revenue) costs will be considered as part of budget planning moving forward. Any 
additional costs or savings will be factored into the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

Caerphilly CBC Members have already agreed to set aside an earmarked reserve for the 
Council’s contribution to capital costs associated with the Council’s 21st Century Band B 
proposals. The value of this reserve is currently £6.975m. Cabinet has agreed to allocate 
£5.766m from this reserve to support two Band B Projects, the Trinity Fields proposal being one 
of these (Cabinet 10th July 2019 / Cabinet 22nd July 2020) 

An additional amount of £647k is being funded from a Social Services capital earmarked reserve 
to support the Trinity Fields Project. In total the Council has capital funding of £6.413m 
earmarked to progress both Projects.  

At this point in time no capital receipts or recurrent cost savings have been identified to support 
the progression of these Projects. Funds have already been identified and earmarked for the 
Council’s share of the capital costs of the Projects.  

Whilst there is an initial increased cost identified as part of the initial expansion of provision, it is 
envisaged that better strategic Management of the school estate and reduced backlog 
maintenance will support the sustainable school’s agenda.   

 

 
➢ Impact on Welsh Language Provision 

The First Minister’s programme for Government 2016-2021 Taking Wales Forward, is working 
towards one million people speaking the Welsh language by 2050.  
 
The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the School Standards and Organisation 
(Wales) Act 2013 and the Legislation (Wales) Act 2019, provides a series of standards and 
places a statutory duty on the Council to assess the demand for Welsh medium education in 
the area.  One of the key standards is a requirement to develop a 5 year Welsh language 
strategy, with the aim of increasing the number of Welsh speakers and which will enable us to 
facilitate the use of the Welsh Language within the county borough.    
 

Page 127



 
 

 

The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan sets out Caerphilly’s commitment to the Promotion of 
Welsh language and the provision of quality, attractive educational facilities.  Within the WESP 
we are striving to stimulate demand for Welsh medium education, which we know is more 
sustainable for families if education provision is expanded in line with childcare available.   
 
In relation to Trinity Fields, there is currently no evidence of demand from parents for Welsh 
medium provision at the school as no requests for such provision have been received by the 
school and this is also acknowledged in the recent Estyn inspection “All of the pupils are from 
English-speaking backgrounds.”  The school has responsibility to understand and record the 
home language of all the pupils and actively offer Welsh provision if the home language is Welsh.  
The school already employs a number of teachers and teaching assistants who are Welsh 
speakers, and as such the Head Teacher and Local Authority are confident that an effective ALN 
provision through the medium of Welsh could be provided if Welsh speaking families are 
identified.  The school also works closely with the Specialist Resource Bases in Primary Schools 
across the borough; one in Ysgol Gynradd Cwm Derwen and secondary in Ysgol Gyfun Cwm 
Rhymni which are both Welsh medium schools.   

 

➢ Learner Travel Arrangements 

There is a Statutory duty placed upon the Authority to provide pupils with free transport to their 

nearest suitable school if they reside beyond ‘walking distance’ to that school.  All pupils are 

assessed in accordance with the Leaner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008. However, the Authority 

does offer a more generous policy than what is statutorily required by the Measure. 

Free transport is provided to all pupils who attend special resource bases and our Special School 

(Trinity Fields), irrespective of distance and family circumstances and Pupils are provided with 

the appropriate transport arrangements, as determined by the individual needs of the child. 

The catchment area for the school will remain unchanged and as the location of the school is 

not anticipated to change, therefore there is no impact to current journey times.    As a result of 

the proposals, the authority is projecting that the number of pupils being transported to this site 

will increase with the additional intake. 

The next nearest available Specialist School provision would be outside of the Authority’s 
boundary and subject to availability. 
 
 

 

➢ Equalities 

The Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we will 
work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and mutual respect 
within and between our communities. 

Impact assessments help us to show that the council has due regard in the exercise of its equality 
duty under the Equality Act 2010. They are a tool we use to ensure the policies, practices, 
projects and activities which shape our work are ensuring equal access to all our services.  

Impact assessments  look at whether changes to how we do things (like working practices or 
ways we deliver services) are likely to have a positive or negative impact on the people we serve 
and on those who deliver our services. They help us to plan to reduce or remove negative impact 

Page 128



 
 

 

- for example by making reasonable changes to how a group receives a service (perhaps 
providing information in a different format or providing ramped access into a building etc.).  

A full Equalities and Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been undertaken.  This document 

is available to view a part of the consultation pack on the website.  

In addition, in line with the recommendations of the School Organisational Code 2018, a 

Community Impact Assessment has been undertaken (as per below) : 

School Organisation Code 2018  

Please provide information regarding … 

 

Community Impact Assessment 

• Proportion of pupils from the catchment 
area that attend the school 

 

98.2% as of September 2019 

• Proportion of pupils from outside the 
catchment area that attend the school 

 

1.8% as of September 2019 

 

• Any other facilities the school 
accommodates e.g. youth club/play group 

 

The Trinity Fields School also 
accommodates a Resource Centre utilised 
by the Caerphilly Autistic Spectrum Service 
and a Home Support Service as well as 
providing an agile working space for Health 
and Social Services partners.  The proposal 
will assist in strengthening this collaborative 
working approach through providing 
additional resources for access. 
 

• Any other facilities or services the school 
provides e.g. after school clubs, 
community library 

 

Trinity Fields provides a leisure service which 
includes a Saturday club, holiday leisure 
scheme and specialist respite service.  The 
school is a day care provider registered with 
the Care Inspectorate Wales.  The proposal 
would not impact on this area of provision. 

 

• If accommodation, facilities or services 
are provided by a school, where they 
would be provided in the event of closure; 

 

The proposal is to extend the existing Trinity 
Fields School on the same site with an 
enhanced facility.  Provision would still be 
accessible. 

 

• Whether other facilities available in the 
immediate local or wider community will 
or could be enhanced in the event of a 
school closure  

 

The proposal is to extend the existing school 
site.  It is anticipated that groups would 
continue to utilise the school. 
 
It is acknowledged that the extension will 
require use of land already owned by the 
Council which is a pay-to-use Rugby pitch.  
The loss of this pitch will be compensated by 
enhancing pitch provision within walking 
distance of the site.  Specifically it is 
proposed that the pitch at Sue Noakes LC is 

Page 129



 
 

 

improved to include spectator areas, barriers  
and improved training lighting 

 

• Facilities and services provided at any 
alternative school 

Trinity Fields School is the only Special 
School in the Borough.  The current facilities 
and services will be further enhanced by the 
proposal and accessible for use by the 
pupils, partner organisation’s and the wider 
community. 
 

• The distance and travelling time involved 
in attending an alternative school of the 
same language category 

Trinity Fields is the only Special School in the 
Borough.  Access to comparable services 
would require travel outside of the borough. 

 

• How parents’ and pupils’ engagement 
with the alternative school and any 
facilities it may offer could be supported 
(e.g. how pupils (and particularly any less 
advantaged pupils) will be helped to 
participate in after school activities) 

The Council aims to support attendance at 
the provision within the borough.  Any 
support for alternative provision would need 
to be discussed on a case by case basis. 

• Impact on health and wellbeing  Whilst the Council actively supports the 
Learner Travel ethos, a number of pupils will 
still require site transport.  The new facility 
will provide improved access and internal 
space to encourage independence for pupils 
to remain active and engaged. 
 

• Any wider implications the changes would 
have on public transport provisions 

A minimal impact is anticipated as the 
proposal is to expand the current site and 
should pupils access the existing public 
transport routes, this would remain 
unchanged. 
 

• Wider community safety issues These issues will be looked at as part of the 
Planning Application process.  Further 
information on where to access this 
information is referenced earlier in this 
document 
 

 

 

➢ Specialist Facilities / Additional Learning Needs 

A key responsibility of the Council is to ensure that there are sufficient pupil places in the most 

appropriate locations and maintain an awareness of demographic changes (i.e increases and 

decreases in the pupil population).  The Council is also required to identify a Council-wide 

strategy for community provision in schools, as well as specialist provision for pupils with SEN 

or disabilities.  The proposed extension will be built in accordance with the Building Bulletin 104 

framework.  The key design criteria will aim to ensure the facilities are appropriate and usable 

for present and future circumstances. 

Page 130



 
 

 

The Council reviews SEN provision on a regular basis in line with the ALN and Tribunal 

Act.  Information shows that the numbers of children with needs requiring specialist provision are 

increasing.  The Council is committed to ensuring that all learners have equality of opportunity 

and recognise the right of all children and young people to receive high quality education. The 

Council is also committed to the principle of keeping children close to home wherever possible. 

Future proofing provision within the county is therefore essential.  

Trinity Fields acts as a hub and is intrinsic to the ‘hub and spoke’ model, supporting the most 

complex children within resource bases and mainstream schools.  This includes the 

development of satellite provision for children from the special school within mainstream settings.  

It should be noted that there are no plans to move all children from SRB’s into Trinity Fields as 

this would not be appropriate to meet individual needs.   

The Welsh Government is committed to transforming the existing SEN system to ensure a more 

unified approach focusing on early identification and partnership working.  The Council’s 

proposal will make a significant contribution to its approach to implementing the ALN Act ensuing 

that children’s needs are appropriately identified and that there is a skilled workforce in place. 

The development of hub and spoke model linked to the special school contributes to a cohesive 

approach to workforce development, essential in ensuring SEN provision is fit for purpose.   

More broadly these developments will make a significant contribution to the Council approach to 

the ALN reform.  The Council focus is on ensuring that children with ALN across all schools in 

the borough have their needs met with appropriate provision in place in mainstream or more 

specialist settings.  The approach includes the development of a workforce that has the 

appropriate skills and training opportunities to meet needs, and promoting collaborative  working 

with other agencies.  

 

 
➢ Community Impact and Community Benefit 

 

Community Impact 

 
Trinity Fields School has developed strong links with the local community, the Authority and local 
schools, as well as with other schools across Wales and further afield.  Trinity Fields already 
provides a range of services and activities, often beyond the school day, to help meet the needs 
of its pupils, their families and the wider community such as access to the hydrotherapy pool 
which is unique in so much as it is maintained at a more comfortable temperature of 37 degrees 
for water baby sessions and a spondylitis group.  The school also supports the respite and youth 
leisure holiday scheme and is open 51 weeks of the year, 6 days a week.  However, community 
use is limited due to the current design of the facility and the need for appropriate safeguards 
and security to be in place. 
 
The proposed project will take into account the desire to encourage and facilitate community use 
of the asset. To this end the design process will seek to include measures to enable safe ‘zoning’ 
of parts of the new school building, including the hall and a multi-functional classroom compliant 
space which could be adapted for use.  The usage of facilities will also be considered for the 
community at suitable times in keeping with the curriculum timetable.  It will also strengthen 
and safeguard the promotion of inclusivity and wellbeing within the Community.    
 
As outlined in the Community Impact Assessment, it is envisaged that a number of the current 
activities that the school supports the community in undertaking will continue.  

Page 131



 
 

 

 

Community Benefit 

Projects include Community Benefits as a Core Requirement and will therefore be scored as part 

of the Quality evaluation. It sets out a number of targets around local targeted recruitment & 

training, supply chains, community & education initiatives and environmental matters such as 

minimising waste and reducing energy consumption. Protecting habitats, biodiversity and 

reducing pollution is a matter of course throughout the contract period and relevant surveys have 

already been undertaken and included within the procurement documentation. 

 

 

 

 

What are the Benefits of the proposal? 

 
 

➢ Benefits 

The principal benefits of the scheme are as follows: 

 

• Provides a facility to accommodate an additional capacity of 80 pupils 

• Retaining pupils within the authority and keeping family units together 

• Provision of an energy efficient facility 

• Modern state of the art classrooms 

• New flexible hall, hydrotherapy pool and soft play facilities to increase provision on site 

• New additional outdoor activity facilities 

• Modern flagship facility for Special Needs Pupils in Caerphilly 

• Space maximisation through reconfiguration of existing building 

• A stimulating environment to deliver high quality learner outcomes 

• Community Use 
 

The proposal will benefit pupils across the whole of the Authority as the additional facilities 

and adaptions will support children who have specialist needs in an appropriate and secure 

environment that will create a holistic approach towards learning and development.  The new 

building will provide accommodation and ensure equality of access by promoting and 

supporting the development and delivery of inclusive education through delivery of the full 

curriculum to pupils in a modern, safe and inspiring learning environment. 

 

➢ Disbenefits 

 
The principal disbenefits of the scheme are as follows: 

 

• There will be a period of building works carried out adjacent to the existing site that will 
need to be carefully managed to mitigate any disruption to the current operations of 
the school 

• There will be a period of transition for the pupils and appropriate support for ‘Settling 
in’ will require consideration to cater for the needs of individuals 

Page 132



 
 

 

• The current piece of land already in ownership of the Council that has been identified 
for the expansion will need to transfer from recreational to educational use 

• The land already owned by the Council is utilised as a pay-to-use Rugby pitch.  The 
loss of this pitch will be compensated by enhancing pitch provision within walking 
distance of the site at Sue Noakes Leisure Centre. 
 

 
➢ Risks 

 
Risks will be managed pro-actively in accordance with our risk management procedures.  The 

programme makes an allowance for a risk contingency to cover unforeseen events, having 

regard to the results of the optimism bias assessments. 

The Council recognises the risks associated with construction procurement. 
The principal risks of the delivery of the scheme are identified as follows: 
 
 

Risk Mitigating Factor 

 

Planning process (this is separate to this 
consultation document) 

The planning process will be managed by 
Property Services in line with legislative 
requirements 

 

Impact of any planning conditions on cost Full Tender process will be undertaken 

 

Sufficiency of funding to deliver scope including 
abnormals 

Contingency planning will form part of the 
tender process 

 

Availability of resources/ contractors The South East & Mid Wales 
Collaborative Construction (SEWSCAP) 
framework will be accessed 

 

Rising costs due to regional supply/demand 
dynamic 

Will be managed through contingency 
planning 

 

Design development In house architect service will be 
accessed 

 

Adverse weather conditions Factored into project management 
timelines 

 

Sufficiency of Utilities services Factored into project management 
timelines 

 

Project Governance and decision making Full Project Board will be established 

 

Benefits realisation (meeting end user 
requirements) 

Factored into consultation and 
procurement process 

Page 133



 
 

 

 

In addition to the risks identified above: 

The land on which the expansion is proposed to be built is a Council owned, pay-to-use rugby 
pitch, which is currently used by Penallta RFC.  The Council will look to mitigate the loss of this 
pitch by enhancing pitch provision within walking distance of the site in addition to the 
enhancement of 2 existing school sites to now include the playing of rugby for use by schools 
and the wider community.  The Council will also look to establish the viability, benefits and 
drawbacks of progressing Fields in Trust protection in perpetuity for the retained pitches. 
Relevant stake holders and elected members will be consulted on the findings and feedback will 
be reported to Cabinet for further instruction.   

 

 

➢ Alternative options that have been discounted 

The following options were considered and scored: - 

Option Description 

 

Option 1  

 

Do Nothing 

Option 2  

 
Further reconfiguration of the existing school 

Option 3  

 

Build a new primary school provision on another site 

 

Option 4  

 

Build a new extension onto the existing school to accommodate an additional 
80 places 

 

Option 5  

 

Build a new school on another site to accommodate all identified provision and 
full cohort of 260 pupils (existing plus additional) 

 

Each option was initially discussed between a selection of Council Officers from across multiple-

departments and then a score allocated to each option against the following Critical Success 

Factors: 

• Building Bulletin compliant school 

• Low carbon, low energy eco-friendly environment 

• Building suited to local environment and acceptable to planning Council 

• Education facility that is acceptable to stakeholders 

• Delivered within budget and within required timescales 

• Agreement of the proposal by Welsh Government 

 

As well as considering the Critical Success Factors, the Officers also considered the Strategic 

Fit, Educational Fit, Accessibility, Financial Fit and Environmental Impact as key Investment 

Objectives. 

The Investment Objectives were weighted based on the current priority areas for the Council.  

Priority Investment areas were given a 5 (High) to 1 (Low).   

 

Page 134



 
 

 

 

Each option was then scored against the criteria outlined above 

5 exceeds the criteria 

4 meets the criteria 

3 neither meets/does not meet the criteria 

2 partially meets the criteria, and, 

1 does not meet the criteria 

The score was then multiplied by the weighting for each section and an overall total for each 

option. 

 

Option Score 

 

Option 1 – Do Nothing  

 

52 

Option 2 – Further reconfiguration of the existing school 

 
50 

Option 3 - Build a new primary school provision on another site 

 

72 

Option 4 - Build a new extension onto the existing school to accommodate an 
additional 80 places 

 

101 

Option 5 - Build a new school on another site to accommodate all identified 
provision and full cohort of 260 pupils (existing plus additional) 

 

87 

 

The outcome of the options analysis resulted in the highest 2 scoring options being taken forward 

to a shortlist, where the benefits if the options were considered. The tables below illustrate this 

based on comparative analysis: 

 

Option 4 – Build a new extension onto the existing school to accommodate an additional 80 

places 

➢ A new extension onto the existing school offering high quality, modern educational 
facilities fit for the 21st Century  

➢ New build would be able to accommodate additional pupils 
➢ A better use of resources and economy of scale by improving the existing estate of the 

school and its operational cost effectiveness 
➢ Minimises any geographical displacement of existing cohort who are identified as 

vulnerable learners 
➢ Maximises significant investment already made to the existing site via Band A 
➢ Provides continuity of provision on one site for Health care and Education 
➢ Increased and enhanced community use and income generation opportunities# 

 
Page 135



 
 

 

Option 4 

Build a new extension onto the existing school to accommodate an additional 80 places 

BENEFITS DISBENEFITS 

 
• New extension building 

• Provides an adequate and equitable 
teaching environment to meet Building 
Bulletin requirements 

• Complies with all National and Local 
policies 

• Improved accessibility 

• Improves the outside learning space  

• Improve the learning outcomes for pupils  

• Continuity of provision from one location 
meeting the needs of the ALN cohort 

• Increases capacity within strategic 
allowance 

• Caters for the Educational needs and 
preferences of the Local Community and 
provide and provide sufficient, permanent, 
fit for purpose and sustainable 
accommodation 

• Authority is already in ownership of 
adjacent viable land and minimal delay  

• Current location is geographically central 
to the local authority boundary 

• Delivery of project within identified 
investment envelope 

 

 
• Extension proposal only, existing 

building would remain in place 

• Need to minimise any disruption to site 
whilst existing build is still in operation 

• Compromising access routes into the 
existing site would also need to be 
monitored and minimised 

 

 

 

Option 5 - Build a new school on another site to accommodate all identified provision and full 

cohort of 260 pupils (existing plus additional) 

➢ A new school offering high quality, modern educational facilities fit for the 21st Century 
➢ Meeting the recommendations of BB 104 
➢ Potential to achieve better educational outcomes for pupils currently at the school through 

enhancing their learning environment 
➢ Improved access to outdoor learning facilities 
➢ A school building that will be more energy efficient, reduce the backlog maintenance and 

ensure compliance with Equality Act 2010 
➢ Facility with an ability to meet community need 

 

Option 5 

Build a new school on another site to accommodate all identified provision and full cohort of 260 
pupils (existing plus additional) 

BENEFITS DISBENEFITS 

• Brand new fit for purpose building 

• Provides an adequate and equitable 
teaching environment to meet Building 
Bulletin requirements 

• New build to be located on site away 
from existing school site 

Page 136



 
 

 

• Complies with all National and Local 
policies 

• Improved accessibility 

• Improves the outside learning space  

• Improve the learning outcomes for pupils  

• Continuity of provision from one location 
meeting the needs of the ALN cohort 

• Caters for the Educational needs and 
preferences of the Local Community and 
provide and provide sufficient, permanent, 
fit for purpose and sustainable 
accommodation 

 

• Disruption to existing cohort identified as 
vulnerable learners through 
transplantation process 

• Identifying viable land in the Authority 
and costs and time associated with 
purchasing this  

• Increases capacity would be outside of 
strategic allowance 

• Development would require significant 
spend profile reconfiguration at the 
detriment of mainstream provision 

 

 

Taking the appraisals together delivers the conclusion that the new build replacement 
schemes provide the best balance of costs, benefits and risks, with the remodel and limited 
rebuild options offering poor value for money and high risk.  Consequently, Option 4 is 
confirmed as the preferred option for the Council. 

 

 

 

 

Next Steps 

 
 

➢ Consultation Period and key dates 

 

The formal consultation process begins on Monday 14th September 2020  

This consultation document is available electronically on the Council website.  For further 

information, please visit: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

 

A Children and Young People’s Everyday Summary Version of this consultation has also been 

produced.  Both this and the full version are available via the Caerphilly County Borough Council 

website and printed copies are also available on request. 

If you would like this information in any other format, for example large print, or help with 

interpretation in a different language, please contact us on 01443 864817 so that the necessary 

arrangements can be made to provide this service.   

The closing date for responses to this consultation is midnight on Monday 26th October 

2020 

Unfortunately, we will not be able to consider any responses received after this date. 

 

 

 
Page 137

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

➢ Statutory Notices, Reporting and Decision Making 
 

Following consultation, Caerphilly’s Cabinet will receive a Consultation Report which will outline 
the proposal and all the comments received from the public during the consultation period.  At 
this stage, the members can decide whether to proceed with the proposal, make changes to the 
proposal or not to proceed with the proposal. 
 

Should Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, a Statutory Notice will be published 

providing a 28 day notice period for objections.  The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 

Act 2013 provides that anyone wishing to make objections to a school organisation proposal has 

the opportunity to do so.  To be considered as statutory objections, objections must be made in 

writing and sent to the Council within the 28-day period. 

Cabinet will then consider the outcome of the Statutory Notice at a future meeting and determine 

whether to implement the proposal having given due consideration to all the information 

provided. 

In the event of objections, the Council will publish an objection report providing a summary of the 

objections and Cabinet’s response to those objections within 7 days or the day of the 

determination of the proposal consideration.  This report will be available for all persons to view 

on the Council website and paper copies will be available on request. 

Should Cabinet approve the proposal, a full Business Case will be submitted to the Welsh 

Minister for final approval and the works will commence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 138



 
 

 

➢ Have your say 

 
Your views matter and we want you to tell us what you think about the changes we have 

proposed in this document.  We would like you to consider the information contained within the 

document and to hear your views as to whether or not you support the proposal.  All views are 

welcomed in support of or opposed to the proposal.  This is your chance to ask questions and 

make comments that will be considered when the Council decides how to proceed. 

For further information, please visit: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools  

 

For this proposal, we will be undertaking a paper consultation exercise.  Due to the current 

implications of COVID-19 we will refrain from undertaking any face-to-face consultation sessions 

to support social distancing and maintain safe working practices for all. 

If you would like to comment on the proposal, you can do this by: 

o Completing the online response form on the Council’s website 

o Complete a response pro forma attached to this document and return it to the 21st Century 

School Team at Caerphilly 

o Email your comments to the 21st Century Schools Team at Caerphilly 

 

 

 

Please note that we are only able to receive comments in writing, either via the online form, pro 

forma or via email.  You must include your full name and postal address as part of the information 

provided. 

Page 139

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Supporting Information 

 
 

➢ Frequently Asked Questions 

 

The Council and the 21st Century Schools Team have a history of delivering innovative and 
transformational projects as part of the Band A 21st Century Schools Programme and beyond. 

 

From the 21st September 2020 until the 28th September 2020, the 21st Century Schools Team 

will be collating a list of your queries in the form of an ‘Frequently Asked Questions’ document 

that will be updated at the end of that week and posted on the website. 

 

 

➢ Feedback Form  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 140



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Here in Caerphilly we have bold ambitions to provide every learner with the best life chances 
and we are committed to doing this through the provision of high-quality teaching and learning 
environments as part of our 21st Century Schools programme. 
 
In some cases, schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended, or partially rebuilt 
to meet the standards needed for contemporary teaching and learning. However, some existing 
schools are no longer in the right place or meet pupil demand.  In such cases we might propose 
new schools or changes to existing schools. 
 
 

 

 
The Council wishes to make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a Special school. 
 

This response relates to: 

The expansion of the existing Trinity Fields School and 

Resource Centre to provide additional classrooms and 

specialist intervention areas via a new building and outdoor 

play space 
 

The closing date for responses is 26th October 2020. 

 

It is recommended that you read the background information before completing this 

questionnaire. 

   

You can also visit our website and complete the survey online by going to: 
 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools 

 

 

            21st Century Schools Consultation Document 2020 

TRINITY FIELDS SCHOOL AND RESOURCE CENTRE 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 141

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

 

We are collecting this information as part of our obligation under the Welsh Government’s 
School Organisation Code (November 2018).   
 

How  we use your personal information:  
The information you provide will used by the service area relevant to the consultation / survey 

within Caerphilly County Borough Council. Views expressed will be collated together and used 

to produce a summary report.  Depending on scope / nature of the survey / consultation, the 

summary report will be used to evaluate and remodel services / priorities etc. We will not keep 

your views in in a way that will identify you for longer than is necessary. 

You have a number of rights in relation to the information we hold about you, including the right 

of access to your information and the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your 

information is processed. For further information on how we process the information and your 

rights please follow this link:  

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-

Surveys.aspx 

 
 

About You: 
 
I am responding to this survey as: 
 

A Pupil  ☐  A Parent  ☐ A Staff Member   ☐ A School Governor ☐  

of the school affected by this proposal / or  

An Elected Member    ☐     Other (please give details)     

 
 

Print Name:    
 

Address: 
 

Postcode:                                             E-mail:  
  
 

All Consultation Documentation will be made available on the Council’s website.   
If you wish to be notified of the publication of the consultation report using the email provided, 

please tick here:   ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

Please note that all comments made as part of this consultation will be considered by Cabinet as part of 

the first phase of the process.  Formal Responses can only be registered following the publication of a 

statutory notice. Full details of the Consultation Process can be found in the full Consultation Document. 

 
 

 Page 142

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx


 
 

 

 

Your views matter.  
Please complete this questionnaire and return via post or email to: 
 

 
 
 
Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views about the proposal: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other ☐ 
 

I support the proposal ☐ 
 

I do not support the proposal ☐ 

 

Please provide your comments on the proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 143



 
 

 

Equalities Monitoring:  

 

Are you … Male                                              ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

Female                                          ☐  

Other (please write in) 

 

 

Age Under 16                                       ☐ 40-65                                            ☐ 

16-25                                            ☐ Over 65                                         ☐ 

26-39                                            ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

 

 

Disability I am not Disabled                          ☐ Learning Difficulties                      ☐ 

Physical / Mobility Impaired          ☐ Visually Impaired                          ☐ 

Hearing Impaired                          ☐ Speech Impaired                          ☐ 

Other (please write in) 

 

 

Welsh Language 

Skills 

 A Little Moderately Quite Well Fluently 

Speak ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Understand ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Read  ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Write ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

No Welsh Language Skills         ☐ Unwilling to Declare           ☐ 

 

 

If you feel that your response to this survey has been influenced (positively or negatively) 

because of any of the following: your ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, 

disability, gender reassignment, religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or 

other languages, nationality or responsibility for any dependents, please give details below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 144



21st Century Schools – Consultation Children and Young People’s Summary

Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre
14th September– 26th October 2020

Document 3 of 5 

P
age 145



Hi, I’m Vision and this is 

my dog K9-2.1

We’re here to talk to you 

about an exciting project 

and we want to know what 

you think!

What we’ll talk about:

• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

• What is the project being proposed?

• Who else are we talking with?

• How can you tell us what you think?

• Why is it important for us to know your views?

• Why do we want to carry out the project?

• Will other schools be affected?

• How will the project impact on things like…

✓ Education and Quality 

✓ Governance and Staffing

✓ Finance

✓ Welsh Language 

✓ Travel and the Environment

✓ Equalities

✓ Specialist Facilities and Additional Learning Needs

✓ The Community

• What will the benefits and disadvantages be?

• Are there any risks?

• Why this project and not something else?

• How long are we gathering views?

• What will happen next?

P
age 146



Introduction
• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

✓ Caerphilly Council wants to improve school conditions to raise standards and give 

every child the best possible start in life.

✓ Sometimes schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended or a new 

school built entirely.

✓ The 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme is a partnership between the 

Council and Welsh Government. 

P
age 147



Introduction
• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

✓ Caerphilly has its own team who bid for money to invest in schools like   

they’ve already done for:

Islwyn High

Idris Davies 3-18

Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Rhymni – Y Gwyndy

Newbridge School

Blackwood Comprehensive

Trinity Fields 

✓ £56.5 million already spent in Band A of the programme between 2014  

and 2019.  This proposal would be part of a new Band B programme

✓ Band B is focusing on:

➢ reducing the number of poor condition schools

➢ ensuring we have the right size schools in the right location

➢ providing enough places to deliver Welsh and English medium 

education

➢ ensuring the effective and efficient use of schools

Here’s a photo of 
the new  Islwyn 
High, one of the 

Band A projects the 
Council delivered

P
age 148



Introduction
• What this presentation is about?

• What is the 21st Century Schools Programme?

‘Woof!’ These 
photos are some 
examples of what 
has been achieved

P
age 149



Introduction • What is the project being proposed?

The Council are proposing to:

✓ To expand the existing Trinity Fields School and Resource 

Centre, via a new building extension and outdoor play space.

✓ The proposed new building will provide additional facilities to 

accommodate growing demand for places and provide additional 

classrooms, specialist intervention areas and outdoor play space

✓ It will also house a new flexible hall, hydrotherapy pool and soft play 

facilities to increase provision on site which will also be considered for 

community use at suitable times in keeping with the curriculum 

timetable.

✓ To future proof the current site by ensuring that it can cater for the 

changing and more complex requirements of those with  Additional 

Learning Needs

P
age 150



Consultation • Who else are we talking with?

✓ The Council has to follow a piece of legislation produced by the Welsh Government called the 

School Organisation Code 2018 when they want to make any changes to a school.  

✓ This proposal falls under the heading called making a ‘Regulated Alteration to a special school’

✓ The Code says that the Council has to write to a number of groups (by letter or email) and tell them about 

what they would like to do, this includes:

➢ Parents

➢ Pupils

➢ Headteachers, Staff and Governors of the schools affected

➢ Other neighbouring Local Authorities

➢ The Welsh Minister

➢ Local Town and Community Councils

➢ ESTYN

✓ There is a formal consultation process that must be followed and a Consultation 

Document must be published in both hardcopy and electronic version

✓ The full process is explained in the full Consultation Document
More information can be found here: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools

P
age 151

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


Consultation
• How can you tell us what you think?

• Why is it important for us to know your views?

✓ There are several ways to tell the Council what you think –

➢ Completing the online response form on the Council’s website

➢ Complete a response pro forma attached to the Consultation Document and return it to the 21st Century School Team at Caerphilly

➢ Email your comments to the 21st Century Schools Team   21stCenturySchools@caerphilly.gov.uk

✓ The Closing date for responses to this consultation is midnight on Monday 26th October 2020

✓ Your views matter and we welcome any in support or opposed to the proposal. 

This is your change to ask questions and make comments that will be considered when the Council decides    

how to proceed.

✓ The 21st Century Schools Team will be meeting with the School Council.  The voice of young people in the 

development, delivery, management and improvement of their education is at the heart of everything.

P
age 152

mailto:21stCenturySchools@caerphilly.gov.uk


Proposal • Background

✓ Trinity Field School is the only Special School in the 

Borough

✓ It provides Education and Specialist Facilities for our 

most vulnerable pupils

✓ It caters for pupils from ages 3-19

✓ At present the school has 170 pupils on roll with more 

expected

✓ There is no capacity of space to expand the current 

building configuration

P
age 153



Proposal • Why do we want to carry out the project?

Planning of School Places Condition and Suitability Master Plan

The Council must provide enough school 

spaces for pupils:

➢ There must be enough places 

for pupils with additional learning 

needs

➢ Demand is increasing 

➢ Children are surviving longer  

with more complex learning

and medical needs

➢ A placement Panel 

meets to calculate the 

number of places 

needed

The Council must ensure that schools are 

fit for purpose:

➢ The current Trinity Fields School 

was purpose built in 1998

➢ We know that the site has been 

reconfigured to make the most 

of the space including a 

hydrotherapy pool, sensory 

garden and independent living 

areas

➢ The Condition Survey rates the 

school as a ‘B’

The Council has a Regeneration Strategy 

for the Caerphilly area:

➢ Supporting People – reducing 

inequality and creating healthier, 

prosperous, cohesive 

communities

➢ Supporting Business – creating 

employment opportunities

➢ Supporting Quality of Life –

providing the right physical 

environments

➢ Connecting People and Places –

improving connectivity 

P
age 154



Other Schools? • Will other schools be affected?

✓ Trinity Fields is the only Special 

School in the Borough

✓ Each school has its own catchment 

area.  If you live in that area you are 

eligible to attend that school subject 

to availability

✓ The catchment area for Trinity covers 

the whole Authority

✓ Admission numbers are decided by a 

Specialist Placement Panel

✓ There is satellite provision in some 

schools (Special Resource Bases) 

and how these are set up will remain 

unchanged

Trinity Fields has a large Catchment 

Area.

I’ll bring my ball

P
age 155



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Education and Quality 

✓ Quality and standards are monitored by Estyn and the Local Authority 

✓ Trinity had its last Estyn inspection in 2019

✓ During (and after) the proposal, the School will continue to receive ongoing advice 

and support from the local authority, school improvement service and any relevant 

stakeholders to help ensure that the school maintains effective leadership and 

provides high quality teaching and learning experiences.

Summary of Judgements: Trinity Fields Special School – inspected June 2019

IA1 – Standards IA2 – Wellbeing and

attitudes to learning

IA3 – Teaching and

learning experiences

IA4 – Care, support

and guidance

IA5 – Leadership and

management

Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent

P
age 156



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Staff

✓ School staff play an important role in ensuring pupils are learning in 

a safe and supportive learning environment

✓ Good staff foster positive, trusting relationships with pupils and 

improve the school climate by encouraging parent and family 

involvement in education.

✓ The Council wants to retain the experience and support of the 

existing staff at the school

➢ No reductions in staffing levels are proposed

➢ There is potential to increase the number of staff 

✓ The Council wants to encourage workforce development through the 

sharing of best practice.

✓ The Governing Body of the School will also stay the same

P
age 157



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Finance

✓ The Council has already set aside funding for it’s share of the project 

(Capital costs)

✓ Any ongoing cost will be part of budget planning moving forward 

(Revenue costs)

✓ There is a reserve of £5.766 million to support the first 2 Band B 

projects

✓ Initial increased costs have been identified to expand the school on the 

adjacent site but this will be offset by improved site management of 

entire combined facility

✓ The pay-to-use pitch identified to build on is owned by the Council and 

needs to be transferred from ‘recreational’ to ‘educational’ use. The 

Council is looking to reduce the impact of that loss of this pitch by 

developing others nearby

P
age 158



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Welsh Language

✓ The Council has to follow a piece of legislation called the School 

Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 which places a duty 

on the Council to assess the demand for Welsh medium education in 

the area

✓ The Council has produced a 5 year strategy called the Welsh in 

Education Strategic Plan with the aim of increasing the number of 

Welsh Speakers by 2050

✓ The school has responsibility to understand and record the home 

language of all the pupils and actively offer Welsh provision if the home 

language is Welsh

✓ The school already employs a number of teachers and teaching 

assistants who are Welsh speakers

✓ Effective Additional Learning Need provision through the medium of 

Welsh could be provided if Welsh speaking families are identified 

P
age 159



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Travel and the Environment

✓ The Council has to follow a piece of legislation called the 

Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 and provide transport for pupils of  

statutory school age

✓ The Council’s Transport Policy helps pupils to get to their school (i.e nearest 

school) if they live more than 1.5 miles away from a Primary or 2 miles for a 

Secondary

✓ The proposed new site for the extension is directly next to the existing Trinity 

Fields School.  Therefore there will be no impact on the distance travelled for 

those pupils already attending the school

✓ None the less, the Council has to carry out an assessment to help understand 

how this proposal will impact on the time it takes you to get to school

✓ To help the environment the Council will look at supporting safe walking 

routes and cycle paths into the school as well as new drop-off zones

✓ The new part of the building will also be low carbon and eco-friendly with the 

designs considering things like solar panels, automated lighting, special 

glazing, venting and enhanced outdoor spaces

P
age 160



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Equalities

✓ People have different needs, requirements and goals

✓ The Council is working to tackle discrimination and promote good relations and mutual 

respect within our communities

✓ Impact Assessments are a tool to show how projects and policies are ensuring equal 

access to all our services

✓ A full Equalities and Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been carried out

✓ In addition, a Community Impact Assessment has been undertaken looking:

• Proportion of catchment pupils

▪ Facilities and Services provided at the current school and what happens if they move

▪ Where are the next nearest alternative schools and how far away are they

▪ How to proposal would impact on health and wellbeing

▪ Any wider implications on transport and community safety

✓ The full version of the Community Impact Assessment can be found in the Full 

Consultation Document

To read all the Impact Assessments, visit: 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools

P
age 161

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ Specialist Facilities / Additional Learning Needs

✓ All learners have a right to equality of opportunity and high quality education

✓ The Council has a Strategy for providing specialist support for pupils with Special 

Education Needs or disabilities.

✓ A key principle is keeping children close to home where possible and not travel out 

of the Borough

✓ The number of children with needs requiring specialist provision is increasing

✓ This proposal will expand the Special school to provide additional support and meet 

local need for our most vulnerable pupils

✓ The New building will be built to Building Bulletin 104 standard to ensure facilities 

are fit for all

✓ Training and development opportunities will be available for staff to work 

collaboratively

P
age 162



What is the Impact? • How will the project impact on things like…
✓ The Community

✓ Community Impact

➢ The design of the new extension will enable safe ‘zoning’ of sections

➢ Community use will be encouraged to access the resources available i.e. Pool / Softplay

➢ Activities in the current school will continue

✓ Community Benefit

➢ All 21st Century Schools Project have targets to support the community

➢ As part of the ‘quality’ score in the tender process the following are considered:

o Local recruitment and training

o Local suppliers

o Community and Education initiatives   i.e. demonstrations in schools

o Minimising waste, protecting habitats and biodiversity

P
age 163



What are the Benefits?

Benefits Disbenefits Risks

➢ Increased capacity with room for 

more pupils and other services 

like Health and Social Services 

facilities on the current site

➢ Improved accessibility and 

energy efficiency

➢ Expanded flagship school for 

Special School education

➢ ‘Zoning’ for more Community 

Use

➢ Building works would be taking 

place next to the school although 

we’ll try and keep disruption to a 

minimum

➢ The current land for development 

is owned by the Council but will 

need to be changed from 

‘recreational’ to ‘educational’ use

➢ New extension will mean a 

‘transition period’ for pupils

➢ Separate Planning Process to be 

undertaken

➢ Funding to cover extras and any 

rising costs

➢ Availability of contractors

➢ Adverse Weather

➢ Benefits Realisation (meeting the 

end user requirements

• What will the benefits and disadvantages 

be?

• Are there any risks?

These are only a 
selection. The full list is 

in the Consultation 
Document

P
age 164



What are the Benefits? • Why this project and not something else?

✓ The Council has to consider a number of options for every proposal

✓ Each option is scored against a ‘shopping’ list of criteria to find the one with the 

best Strategic, Educational, Accessibility, Financial and Environmental Fit

✓ For this proposal, the options listed above were considered

✓ Option 4  scored the highest with 101 points 

(Option 5 = 87 which was the next highest)

Option Description

Option 1 Do Nothing

Option 2 Further reconfiguration of the existing school

Option 3 Build a new primary school provision on another site

Option 4 Build a new extension onto the existing school to accommodate an additional 80 places

Option 5 Build a new school on another site to accommodate all identified provision and full

cohort of 260 pupils (existing plus additional)

P
age 165



Next Steps?
• How long are we gathering views?

• What will happen next?

✓ Consultation period begins on Monday 14th September 2020 

✓ This document is the Children and Young People’s Everyday Summary Version

✓ Full documentation is available on the Council’s website

✓ Printed versions and other formats are available on request : 01443 864817 

✓ Closing date for responses is midnight on Monday 26th October 

2020

✓ The Council is following the process in line with the School Organisation Code 

2018

✓ 42 day consultation period

✓ Consultation Report produced and submitted to cabinet along with 

comments from this consultation

✓ Cabinet decide how to proceed.

✓ If they do, a Statutory Notice is published with 28 days for objections

✓ Objection Report produced (if there are any received) and final decision is 

with the Cabinet

P
age 166



What do you think?

✓ Your views matter

✓ We want you to tell us what you think about the changes we have proposed in 

this document

✓ All views are welcomed in support of or opposed to the proposal. 

✓ If you would like to comment on the proposal, you can do this by:

➢ Completing the online response form on the Council’s website

➢ Complete a response pro forma attached to this document and return it to 

the 21st Century School Team at Caerphilly

➢ Email your comments to the 21st Century Schools Team at Caerphilly

✓ For this proposal, we will be undertaking a paper consultation exercise and we 

are only able to receive comments in writing.  You must include your full name 

and postal address!

P
age 167



Find Out More

There will 
also be a FAQ 

section on 
the website. 
Check it out

P
age 168



 
 
 

 

 

 
Here in Caerphilly we have bold ambitions to provide every learner with the best life chances 
and we are committed to doing this through the provision of high-quality teaching and learning 
environments as part of our 21st Century Schools programme. 
 
In some cases, schools can be modernised, repaired, refurbished, extended, or partially rebuilt 
to meet the standards needed for contemporary teaching and learning. However, some existing 
schools are no longer in the right place or meet pupil demand. In such cases we might propose 
new schools or changes to existing schools. 
 
 

 

 
The Council wishes to make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a special school. 
 

This response relates to: 

The expansion of the existing Trinity Fields School and 

Resource Centre to provide additional classrooms and 

specialist intervention areas via a new building and outdoor 

play space 

 

The closing date for responses is 26th October 2020. 

 

It is recommended that you read the background information before completing this 

questionnaire. 

   

You can also visit our website and complete the survey online by going to: 
 

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools 

 

 

                        21st Century Schools Consultation Document 2020 

TRINITY FIELDS SCHOOL AND RESOURCE CENTRE 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM 

 

 
 

 

 

Document 4 of 5

Page 169

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Schools-and-learning/21st-Century-Schools


 
 

We are collecting this information as part of our obligation under the Welsh Government’s 
School Organisation Code (November 2018).   
 

How  we use your personal information:  
The information you provide will used by the service area relevant to the consultation / survey 

within Caerphilly County Borough Council. Views expressed will be collated together and used 

to produce a summary report.  Depending on scope / nature of the survey / consultation, the 

summary report will be used to evaluate and remodel services / priorities etc. We will not keep 

your views in in a way that will identify you for longer than is necessary. 

You have a number of rights in relation to the information we hold about you, including the right 

of access to your information and the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your 

information is processed. For further information on how we process the information and your 

rights please follow this link:  

www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-

Surveys.aspx 

 

About You: 
 
I am responding to this survey as: 
 

A Pupil  ☐  A Parent  ☐ A Staff Member   ☐ A School Governor ☐  

of the school affected by this proposal / or  

An Elected Member    ☐     Other (please give details)     

 
 

Print Name:    
 

Address: 
 

Postcode:                                             E-mail:  
  
 

All Consultation Documentation will be made available on the Council’s website.   
If you wish to be notified of the publication of the consultation report using the email provided, 

please tick here:   ☐ 

 

 

 

 

Please note that all comments made as part of this consultation will be considered by Cabinet as part 

of the first phase of the process.  Formal Responses can only be registered following the publication of 

a statutory notice. Full details of the Consultation Process can be found in the full Consultation 

Document. 

 
 

Page 170

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx


 
 

Your views matter.  
Please complete this questionnaire and return via post or email to: 
 

 
 
 
Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views about the proposal: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other ☐ 
 

I support the proposal ☐ 
 

I do not support the proposal ☐ 

 

Please provide your comments on the proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 171



 
 

Equalities Monitoring:  

 

Are you … Male                                              ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

Female                                          ☐  

Other (please write in) 

 

Age Under 16                                       ☐ 40-65                                            ☐ 

16-25                                            ☐ Over 65                                         ☐ 

26-39                                            ☐ Unwilling to declare                      ☐ 

 

Disability I am not Disabled                          ☐ Learning Difficulties                      ☐ 

Physical / Mobility Impaired          ☐ Visually Impaired                          ☐ 

Hearing Impaired                          ☐ Speech Impaired                          ☐ 

Unwilling to declare                      ☐  

Other (please write in) 

 

Welsh Language 

Skills 

 A Little Moderately Quite Well Fluently 

Speak ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Understand ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Read  ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Write ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

No Welsh Language Skills         ☐ Unwilling to Declare           ☐ 

 

 

If you feel that your response to this survey has been influenced (positively or negatively) 

because of any of the following: your ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, 

disability, gender reassignment, religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or 

other languages, nationality or responsibility for any dependents, please give details below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 172



 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
July 2019 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 

This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and 
we will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 

We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, 
nationality, responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be 
shown to be justified. 
 

EIAs are a legal requirement under equalities legislation (Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011) where the potential for a significant negative impact 
has been identified.  This legislation has been in place since 2000.  We also have a 
legislative duty to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that 
is prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not.  

 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  

• removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 
characteristics 

• taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people  

• encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in 
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 

The protected characteristics are: 
 

• Age • Race 

• Disability • Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 

• Gender Re-assignment • Sex 

• Marriage and Civil Partnership • Sexual Orientation 

• Pregnancy and Maternity • Welsh Language* 
 

*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality 
Act 2010, however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal 
basis as well as promoting and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

Document 5 of 5

Page 173



 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme - 
Band B Phase 1 - Trinity Fields School Resource 
Centre 
 

DIRECTORATE Education and Corporate Services 
 

SERVICE AREA Education Planning and Strategy 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Andrea West 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

As or when required 
 

 

 
 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to 
what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, 
procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh 
Language issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making 
processes governing work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work 
done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in 
more detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 
2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative 
consequences of your proposals.  If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled 
people, you also need to think about what potential effects it could have on other areas 
e.g. young people with a disability, BME people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy 
Unit Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide advice as 
the EIA is being developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of 
service areas, the support offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, 
quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 

Page 174

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


  

Page 175



PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated 
proposal by way of introduction.) 
 
The Council wishes to make a ‘regulated alteration’ to a special school. 
 

• To expand the existing Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre, via a new 
building extension and outdoor play space with an anticipated completion 
date of September 2022. 

 
➢ The proposed new building will provide additional facilities to 

accommodate growing demand for places and provide additional 
classrooms, specialist intervention areas and outdoor play space/ 

➢ It is proposed the additional facility will also house a new flexible hall, 
hydrotherapy pool and soft play facilities to increase provision on site which 
will also be considered for community use at suitable times in keeping 
with the curriculum timetable. 
 

• To future proof the current site by ensuring that it can cater for the changing 
and more complex needs of Additional Learning Needs (ALN) pupils across 
the Authority, both now and in the future and ensure compliance with the new 
Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act.  

 

• To agree for officers to proceed to procurement and construction and agree 
the establishment of an earmarked reserve facility in the Education area of the 
Council’s accounts. 

 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the 
public generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road 
users, people using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data 
gaps?) 
 
 
The following service users have been identified: 
 

• Pupils 

• Parents, prospective parents, guardians and carers of all pupils of the 
school directly affected by the proposal  

• Staff linked to the school directly affected by the proposal, including: 
Teachers/Administrative 
Team/Catering/Cleaning/Transport/Leisure/Inclusion Services/ Social 
Services / Health Team 

• Disabled Children, Young People and those with Additional Learning 
Needs 

• Local Community  

• Local Rugby Club 
 

Page 176



In addition, in line with the guidelines provided by Welsh Government as part of 
their School Organisation Code 2018 (Statutory document 011/2018). We will 
consult with the following interested parties: 
 
 
 

• Parents, prospective parents, guardians and carers of all pupils of schools 
directly affected by the proposal  

• Headteacher, staff and governors of schools directly affected by the 
proposal 

• Pupils/Pupil Councils of schools directly affected by the proposal 

• Directors of Education of all bordering LAs – Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, 
Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Newport, Powys, RCT, Torfaen 

• Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

• Church in Wales Diocesan Board 

• Local Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 

• Governing body of other schools which the proposer considers are likely to 
be affected by the proposal 

• Local CCBC Members  

• All Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing the area 
served by the schools directly affected by the proposal 

• Welsh Ministers 

• ESTYN 

• Teaching Associations 

• Support Staff Associations 

• South East Wales Consortium (EAS) 

• South East Wales Transport Alliance (SEWTA) 

• Gwent and South Wales Police and Crime Commissioners 

• Local Town and Community Councils 

• Menter Iaith 

• Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 

• Parent Network 

• Welsh in Education Strategic Forum 
 
No data gaps identified 
 

 
 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the 
services available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed 
changes, or does not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the 
proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access 
to the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from 
other people?) 
 
Community Use: 
Those that attend, work and use the building will benefit from a fit for purpose, 
innovative 21st Century facility.  In addition, the proposal intends to extend access 
at the new premises to include community use. 

Page 177



 
As part of the 21st Century School remit, consideration must be given for the 
school to benefit from enabling the facilities to be shared with the wider 
community.  The proposed project will consider the desire to encourage and 
facilitate community use of the asset. To this end the design process will 
seek to include measures to enable safe ‘zoning’ of parts of the new school 
building, including hydrotherapy pool and soft play facilities which could be 
adapted for use.  The Wi-Fi and Information Technology infrastructure will be 
established to support public access and community use. The use of 
outdoor facilities will also be considered for community access at suitable 
times, in keeping with the curriculum timetable. 
 
Active Travel: 
There is a Statutory duty placed upon the Authority to provide pupils with free 
transport to their nearest suitable school if they reside beyond ‘walking distance’ to 
that school.  All pupils are assessed in accordance with the Leaner Travel (Wales) 
Measure 2008. However, the Authority does offer a more generous policy than 
what is statutorily required by the Measure. 
 
Free transport is provided to all pupils who attend special resource bases and our 
Special School (Trinity Fields), irrespective of distance and family circumstances 
and Pupils are provided with the appropriate transport arrangements, as 
determined by the individual needs of the child. 
 
The catchment area for the school will remain unchanged and as the location of 
the school is not anticipated to change, therefore there is no impact to current 
journey times.    As a result of the proposals, the authority is projecting that the 
number of pupils being transported to this site will increase with the additional 
intake. 
 
Childcare: 
The Foundation Phase provision at Trinity Fields offers full time Education so does 
not need wraparound childcare provision and in line with the recommendations of 
many eminent researchers, early intervention is essential for pupils with ALN in 
order to improve their life chances.  
 
There are several day nurseries in the local area to Trinity, many of whom are 
contracted on the Assisted and Supported Places scheme; however this provision 
would not be accessible for pupils with highly complex medical and learning needs 
(pupils who require oxygen, nasogastric feeding tubes, gastrostomies etc.).  
 
There are strong links between the School, the Local Authority’s Early Years 
Manager and with the Integrated Service for Children with Additional Needs 
(ISCAN) to ensure pupils have early access the appropriate provision to meet their 
highly complex needs. 
 
In addition, Trinity School is registered as a childcare provider to run holiday 
childcare provision and had a successful Care Inspectorate Wales inspection last 
year with an excellent rating. As a result there is limited need to develop childcare 
provision on site and it is more preferable to upskill providers across the borough 
to meet needs of children prior to starting in the nursery. 
 
 

Page 178



Welsh Language in the Community: 
The Local Authority is fully aware of its obligations under the Welsh 
Language Standards and to support the provision of Welsh Language 
Education as set out in its Welsh in Education Strategic Plan where 
Caerphilly’s commitment to the promotion of Welsh language and the 
provision of quality, attractive educational facilities is evident. 
A Welsh medium education assessment in accordance with the (Wales) 
Regulations 2013 has been conducted in accordance with the 3-year cycle 
requirement. A parental demand survey was also undertaken in 2018. These 
are the basis for all trend future projections of demand and provide evidence 
of need for additional places and location in the borough.  
 
In relation to this particular facility, as acknowledged in the recent Estyn inspection 
report, “All of the pupils are from English-speaking backgrounds.”  However, the 
school employs a number of teachers and teaching assistants who are Welsh 1st 
language and as such ALN provision through the medium of Welsh could be 
provided if required. School has responsibility to understand and record the home 
language of all the pupils and actively offer Welsh provision if the home language 
is Welsh.  Welsh provision is already offered in the Specialist Resource Base in 
Ysgol Gynradd Cwm Derwen and Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni.  
 
 

Impact on other schools: 
There is no identified negative impact on other schools within the authority, 
although the school development will positively support the children across the 
borough and actively work with SRB in other primary schools. 
 

  

Page 179



4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with 
protected characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on 
any groups?  Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ 
dependent upon people’s protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

What will the impact be?   
If the impact is negative how can it be mitigated? 

Age Positive 
The proposal seeks to cater for pupils aged 3-19 and 
with plans to support community usage, has the 
potential to benefit all age ranges. 

Disability Positive 
The proposal seeks to increase provision to provide 
facilities for some of our most vulnerable individuals. 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Neutral No anticipated change 

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral No impact 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

Neutral No impact 

Race Neutral No anticipated change 

Religion & Belief Neutral No anticipated change 

Sex Neutral No anticipated change 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Neutral No anticipated change 

 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive 
or adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use 
the Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably 
than the English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 
89, 90, 91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the 
Corporate Policy Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the 
proposal is available in Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on 
Welsh speakers.) 
 
 
The 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme supports the provision of 
Welsh Medium Education and supporting opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh Language which is critical to both the Welsh Education Strategic Plan and 
the Welsh Language Standards plan.  
 
All parents receive information on Welsh medium education from Caerphilly 
Starting School booklet which is distributed with school application forms as well 
as available on the Caerphilly CBC website and is available in Welsh and English. 
Parents are able to access information on Welsh medium childcare and Early 
Years Education provision through Family Information Services. 
 
 

Page 180



 
 
 
In relation to this proposal, there is currently no evidence of demand from parents 
for Welsh medium provision at the school as no requests for such provision have 
been received by the school and this is also acknowledged in the recent Estyn 
inspection.  However, the school already employs a number of teachers and 
teaching assistants who are Welsh speakers, and as such the Head Teacher and 
Local Authority are confident that an effective ALN provision through the medium 
of Welsh could be provided if Welsh speaking families are identified. The school 
also works closely with the Specialist Resource Bases in Primary Schools across 
the borough; one in Ysgol Gynradd Cwm Derwen and secondary in Ysgol Gyfun 
Cwm Rhymni which are both Welsh medium schools.   
 
As part of the policy making process, all consultation documentation will be made 
available in hardcopy and online in both Welsh and English medium in the first 
instance with other formats available upon request.  The Authority already has a 
clear protocol established in relation to responding to any customer interaction.   
Correspondence can be in any language or format and corresponding in Welsh will 
not lead to any delay.  In addition, anyone attending the consultation meetings will 
have the opportunity to conduct the session in their preferred language. 
 
The consultation document itself will contain specific sections that will proactively 
encourage all interested parties to consider the effect of the proposals on the 
Welsh Language and have the opportunity to comment on any reasonable actions 
that would enable the proposal to have a more positive effect/less adverse effect 
on the Welsh Language as well as the impact to relocate the school will have on 
the opportunities to use the Welsh Language.  The Welsh language will also be a 
consideration of the procurement and tendering process. 
 

 

 
  

Page 181



INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which 
supports the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups? If so, 
what has been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does 
any savings proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
 
There is growing demand for specialist school provision within Caerphilly county 
borough.  The Local Authority works closely with multiagency professionals in the 
field as well as the school, Early Years, Flying Start and Health Visitors.  A 
fortnightly placement panel convenes to calculate the number of places that are 
required on site and utilising data from ISCAN and reviewing the trend data since 
2012, growth has been identified as an area requiring action.  There is a similar 
picture across Wales in terms of increasing numbers of pupils accessing special 
schools. 
 
Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre is the only special school in the 
Authority which provides education and specialist facilities.  It caters for a wide 
range of ages, with pupils from the foundation phase (3-7), school curriculum (7-
14) and learning pathway (14-19).  At present the school has 180 pupils on roll 
with more admissions anticipated and no capacity or space to expand within the 
current building configuration.   
 
The school caters for pupils with a wide range of Special Educational Needs and 
requirements, ranging from physical and medical difficulties, profound multiple 
learning difficulties and severe learning difficulties.   Trinity Fields School and 
Resource Centre was purpose built in September 1998, and was considered to be 
“Innovative”, however over the years pupils needs have become more complex 
and challenging and the school’s infrastructure is now becoming an obstacle that 
is preventing the school from developing further in supporting pupils with 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) across the county borough. 
 
It is the Authority’s aim, wherever possible, to educate all pupils within the county 
borough.  This prevents the need for out of county provision, which is not only 
costly but can also have a significant impact on individual families. 
 
The proposal will benefit pupils across the whole of the Authority as the additional 
facilities and adaptions will support children and young people who have specialist 
needs in an appropriate and secure environment that will create a holistic 
approach towards learning and development. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 182



 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 
findings. 
(Include method of consultation, objectives and target audience.  What steps have 
been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been consulted during 
the development of this proposal?  Have you referred to the Equalities 
Consultation and Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
The consultation process will proceed in line with the requirements of Welsh 
Government Statutory Code document no 011/2018 - School Organisation Code 
2nd Edition 2018.  
 
A prescribed list of recipients (as outlined in Section 2) will be written to and 
provided with sufficient information through the publication of a consultation 
document for intelligent consideration.  All documentation will be made available in 
both Welsh and English throughout the process and other formats on request. 
 
The principles of engagement outlined in the Local Authority's Consultation and 
Engagement Framework 2020 will also be acknowledged and the project team will 
engage with any additional 'interested parties' as required.  
 
A consultation document will be published in hard copy and online in both Welsh 
and English and include a response pro-forma to enable collection of the views of 
various persons.  This document will be live during the consultation period which 
lasts for approximately 6 weeks.  Adequate time will be provided for consideration 
and response and conscientious consideration will be given to any responses 
received.  
It is also envisaged that a series of targeted sessions will be held over a given day 
between the hours of 10am and 8pm to provide information and the opportunity to 
pose questions to designated officers concerning the proposal. Individuals will be 
required to book 10 minute appointment slots and a translator will be available if 
required.  As part of this process, the target audiences who will be engaged with 
include – Pupils (School Council), School Staff, School Governors, 
Parents/Guardians and the wider Community. 
 
Officers have already begun to engage in discussions with the local rugby club to 
look at mitigating any impact the development may pose.  The proposed site for 
the location of the works is an adjacent piece of land to the current site owned by 
the local authority and utilised for recreational use. The land in question is 
currently configured as a rugby/football pitch available on a “pay as you use” basis 
and the only club using the pitch is Penallta RFC.  The authority is aware that the 
team access the Centre of Excellent 3G provision for training and that the majority 
of their matches are played at this location, however will work closely with the club 
to look at potential options for the remaining 2 pitches on site and any other 
actions considered appropriate. 
 
The 21st Century Schools Team has also acknowledged that the pupil voice is 
essential and involving children and pupils as active participants in the 
development, delivery, management and improvement of their educational and 

Page 183



student experience needs.  This information should be at the heart of the 
planning, provision and evaluation processes.  Trinity Fields School and Resource 
Centre has a very active school Council that ensures pupils are kept at the heart 
of delivery.  This ethos is embedded into practice by working with pupils from the 
school and the Authority’s Property Services team has already undertaken pupil 
engagement utilising eye-recognition software and head maps for those with 
communication difficulties in relation to the ‘wish’ list for any developments.  
Furthermore, the Head Boy for the school has been heavily involved in assisting in 
discussions around colour scheme and layout, which has benefitted both the 
design team and pupil himself through social skills development.                     

 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able 
analyse responses from particular groups?)  
 
The programme is managed by a Project Board comprising of the Corporate 
Director – Education and Corporate Services, Head of Education Planning and 
Strategy, Chief Education Officer, Cabinet Member for Education and 
Achievement, Interim Head of Property Services and 21st Century Schools 
Manager.  The Project Board provides the overall direction, management and 
control for the Programme, being accountable for the success of the Programme 
and is the ultimate decision making body for the Programme.  
 
A Project Management Team comprising of the Head of Education Planning and 
Strategy, and resources and staff from Property Services will oversee the day to 
day development and implementation of each constituent project, reporting to the 
Board and other relevant senior officers, as appropriate.  
 
Project management principles will be followed (Prince2 and MS Project) 
throughout the programme. Programme management principles will be employed 
for the overarching Band B programme and the project will utilise the experience 
of the project team involved in the Band A project.  This will commence with a 
Programme execution plan that will define the programme objectives, 
responsibilities, dependant actions and risks. The latter will include risk elimination 
or mitigation actions and risk owner.  An overall programme monitoring tool will 
integrate and coordinate procurement, design and construction programmes and 
will highlight key dependencies and the critical path.   
 
The Council recognises that the whole organisation must be skilled in making the 
very best use of available resources. Good project management is recognised as 
being an essential ingredient to success in tackling our strategic work programme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 184



 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the 
community are being met?) 
 
The Council produces a protocol document for each school 
opening/closure/amalgamation project. This outlines individual and team 
responsibilities for the full list of actions required over the 3 stages of design and 
pre-construction, construction and school occupation and decommissioning.  
 
Regular monitoring meetings take place and typically involve 21st Century 
Schools Team, Headteachers, Education advisers, Property Services, Catering 
Services, ICT, Traffic Management, Procurement and Audit representation.  
Relevant stakeholders will also be involved in post project evaluation to review 
outcomes to ensure improvements are made for future projects. 
 
Benefits Realisation will be monitored by the project team and Caerphilly County 
Borough Council and reported to Welsh Government through the project closure 
report and other relevant documentation. Community benefits will be reported 
quarterly and yearly and when the project ends. 
 
The project will be subject to gateway review as required by the funding 
agreement.  The review is one by which independent practitioners from 
outside the programme/project use their experience and expertise to 
examine the progress and likelihood of successful delivery of the 
programme or project.  Any recommendations of the review team will be 
taken on board and implemented as appropriate.  
 
A post contract review will also be undertaken. 
 

 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising 
amongst staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of 
some sort?) 
 
Key personnel have received Equality Impact Awareness and Equalities 
Awareness Training and attended training and information sessions undertaken 
by Welsh Government.  Training needs will be constantly reviewed throughout the 
process and addressed when the need is evident. 
 
In addition, the 21st Century Schools Manager and Principal Officer have met with 
representatives from the Equalities, Welsh Language and Consultation Team to 
take guidance where required.  
 

 

11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation 
action. 
 
The proposal is to provide inspirational 21st Century facilities and an expanded 
facility that will further support our most vulnerable pupils.  The proposal will also 
develop facilities that will be accessible for community use will be a positive 
impact when compared with the current availability. 

Page 185



 
The Authority has identified that there will be an adverse impact on the local rugby 
club in relation to the piece of land identified for the developmental works although 
this is perceived as minimal for the following reasons: 
 

• The piece of land, directly adjacent to the current Trinity Fields site, is owned 
by the local authority. 

• The land is currently utilised for recreational use as a Football/Rugby pitch and 
is 1 of 3 pitches at that location.   

• The pitch in question is available for “pay as you use” usage and therefore no 
lease or automatic rights are in place.  

• The only club currently using the identified land is Penallta RFC and within the 
last 12 months, the club is only recorded as having paid for use 17 times.  In 
addition, their 1st Team and Youth Team train and hold the majority of their 
home matches on the 3G provision at the Centre of Excellence which is 0.2 
miles / within 5 minutes walking distance. 

 
Officers are meeting with representatives of the club to discuss viable mitigations 
such as developments to the 2 remaining pitches but these are currently being 
negotiated via the Asset Management Team.  

 

12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 
(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, 
appendix to approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action 
shown below?) 
 
 
The Equality Impact Assessment will be appended to the report.  This is a working 
document and will be updated throughout the process. 
 

 
  

Page 186



13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, through 
more than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant 
outcome(s) of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the 
proposal was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or 
adverse impact.  All opportunities to promote equality have been 
taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential 
problems or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to 
remove barriers or better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the 
potential problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The 
justification(s) for continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The 
justification must be included in the impact assessment and must be in 
line with the duty to have due regard.  Compelling reasons will be 
needed for the most important relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified 
actual or potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped 
and removed, or changed. 

 

  

Form completed by: 

Name: Andrea West 

Job Title: 21st Century Schools Manager 

Date: 01/09/2020 

  

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Sue Richards 

Job Title: Head of Education Planning and Strategy 

Signature: S.Richards 

Date: 01/09/2020 

 
 

X 

 

 

 

Page 187



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 188



Full Return to School

September 2020

P
age 189 E

item
 A

r Y
r A

genda 8



Context

• Schools closure announced Wednesday, 18th March, 

2020 for Friday, 20th March.

• FSM strategy agreed and implemented.

• Approximately 1,000 applications for childcare for key 

workers processed on Saturday 21st and Sunday 22nd

March.

• 6 mainstream hubs and 1 ALN base established 

Monday, 23rd March.

P
age 190



Context

• 4 mainstream additional hubs and 2 vulnerable pupil 

hubs.

• Over 1,700 staff contributed.

P
age 191



July 2020

• Schools re-opened on Monday, 29th June, 2020, in 

order to check in, catch up and prepare - maximum 

of 1/3rd capacity.

• Risk Assessments (RAs) were completed for all 

school sites and staff and pupils who are vulnerable.

• LA guidance was issued.

• Weekly meetings with headteachers continued.

P
age 192



June 2020 – September 2020

• Internal LA officer group meet weekly to revise guidance.

• LA officers meet weekly with Trade Unions to consult upon 

changes to guidance.

• Meetings with headteachers continued through the summer into 

the autumn.

• New LA guidance drafted.

• Advice and support given for revision of RAs for site and staff.

• Catering and cleaning arrangements continue to be reviewed 

but all pupils bring packed lunch until 1.10.2020

P
age 193



September 2020 Expectations

• FSM delivery continue until 30th September, 2020.

• Tuesday 1st and Wednesday 2nd September, 2020 

designated planning days to enable Risk 

Assessments to be updated.

• Pupils begin to come in in groups from 3rd

September so that all pupils will be in from 

Monday, 14th September.

• Schools to establish business continuity plans.

P
age 194



What support has been offered to 

schools ?
• Advice and support for site and individual Risk 

Assessments.

• LA Guidance regularly updated to include processes, 

e.g. test, trace and protect.

• Frequent communication and access to advice and 

support.

• Guest Wifi in all schools.

P
age 195



What support has been offered to 

schools ?
• Ed tech programme.

• Funding for text books for all pupils in Years 10 and 11

• Face coverings policy and distribution

• Accelerated Learning Funding.

P
age 196



What have been the most 

challenging aspects for schools?
• Ensuring social distancing and minimising 

contact between groups

• TTP process

• Managing anxiety

• Catering solutions, including breakfast clubs,  

from 1st October, 2020.

P
age 197



Related Links

• Public Health Wales
• https://phw.nhs.wales/topics/latest-information-on-novel-

coronavirus-covid-19

• Welsh Government
• https://gov.wales/coronavirus

P
age 198



Questions

P
age 199



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 200


	Agenda
	3 Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a gynhaliwyd ar 24 Chwefror 2020.
	5 Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg.
	App 1 Education Scrutiny Committee FWP Reports 2020-21
	App 1 Education Scrutiny Committee FWP 2020-21 Information Items
	Appendix 2 - FWP
	Appendix 3 - FWP - Prioritisation

	7 Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif    Ymgynghoriad statudol - Ehangu Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae'r Drindod. Ymgynghoriad statudol - Ehangu ac ail-leoli Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon ar hen safle Ysgol Uwchradd Cwmcarn
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4
	Atodiad 5
	Atodiad 6
	Atodiad 7
	Atodiad 8
	Atodiad 9
	Atodiad 10

	8 Cyflwyniad - Dychwelyd yn llawn i ysgolion, Medi 2020.

